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PART I

ltem 1. Business

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwédwmdking statements regarding our business, findnoiedition, results of operatio
and prospects. Words such as “expects,” “anticiggte’intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “thinks,” “may,” “could,”
“will,” “would,” “should,” “continues,” “potential, " “likely,” “opportunity” and similar expressions or variations of such waads intende
to identify forward-looking statements, but are nbé exclusive means of identifying forwdodking statements in this Annual Ref
Additionally, statements concerning future matt®ush as the development or regulatory approvales products, enhancements of exis
products or technologies, third party performanceder key collaboration agreements, revenue and resg@devels and other stateme
regarding matters that are not historical are fomddooking statements.

Although forwardlooking statements in this Annual Report refleet good faith judgment of our management, such rstatés can on
be based on facts and factors currently known byCesisequently, forwarbboking statements are inherently subject to risikd uncertaintie
and actual results and outcomes may differ matigrilom the results and outcomes discussed in dicipated by the forwardieoking
statements. Factors that could cause or contrittatsuch differences in results and outcomes inciuidieout limitation those discussed un
the heading “Risk Factorsbelow, as well as those discussed elsewhere irAtinsial Report. Readers are urged not to place arrdliance o
these forwardeoking statements, which speak only as of the dathis Annual Report. We undertake no obligatomevise or update al
forward-looking statements in order to reflect any eventioccumstance that may arise after the date of Ansual Report. Readers are urg
to carefully review and consider the various discliees made in this Annual Report, which attempdaise interested parties of the risks
factors that may affect our business, financialditian, results of operations and prospet

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated teldewmg and commercializing innovative productst tadvance patient care. (
research targets the extracellular matrix, an argaide the cell that provides structural supporti$sues and orchestrates many impa
biological activities, including cell migration,gialing and survival. Over many years, we have ldgeel unique scientific expertise that allc
us to pursue this target-rich environment for theedopment of future therapies.

Our research focuses primarily on human enzymest dhar the extracellular matrix. Our lead enzyntlee recombinant hum
hyaluronidase or rHuPH20, temporarily degrades urgalan, or HA, a matrix component in the skin, dadilitates the dispersion a
absorption of drugs and fluids. We are also devefpmovel enzymes that may target other matrixcstmes for therapeutic benefit. (
Enhanze™ technology is the platform for the delivery of prighary small and large molecules. We apply oueaesh to develop products
partnership with other companies as well as forawn proprietary pipeline in therapeutic areas gitinificant unmet medical need, sucl
diabetes, oncology and dermatology.

Our operations to date have involved: (i) orgamgzamd staffing our operating subsidiary, Halozyine,; (ii) acquiring, developing al
securing our technology; (iii) undertaking produwt#velopment for our existing products and a limitegmber of product candidat
(iv) supporting the development of partnered prodizdidates; and (v) sellindylenex® recombinant (hyaluronidase human injection).
continue to increase our focus on our proprietandpct pipeline and have expanded investments inpoaprietary product candidates.
currently have multiple proprietary programs inivas stages of research and development. In additi@ currently have collaborat
partnerships with F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd and fA@innia Roche, Inc., or Roche, Baxter Healthcare Cotporaor Baxter, ViroPharn
Incorporated, or ViroPharma, and Intrexon Corporatior Intrexon, to apply Enhanze technology to plaetners’biological therapeut
compounds. We
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also had another partnership with Baxter, undeckiaxter had worldwide marketing rights for ourrkeied productHylenexrecombinan
or the Hylenex Partnership. We and Baxter mutuadjseed to terminate the Hylenex Partnership inagn2011. Currently, we have recei
only limited revenue from the salesldflenexrecombinant, in addition to other revenues frompmantnerships.

In February 2007, we and Baxter amended certaistingi agreements relating tdylenexrecombinant and entered into the Hyle
Partnership for kits and formulations with rHUPH20.October 2009, Baxter commenced the commereaiahdh ofHylenexrecombinan
Hylenexrecombinant was voluntarily recalled in May 201@dgse a portion of thidylenexrecombinant manufactured by Baxter was n
compliance with regulatory requirements. During skeond quarter of 2011, we submitted the datathiealt).S. Food and Drug Administrati
or FDA, had requested to support the reintroductidnHylenex recombinant. The FDA approved the submitted datd granted th
reintroduction oHylenexrecombinant and we reintroduckglenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011.

Effective January 7, 2011, we and Baxter mutuaffyead to terminate the Hylenex Partnership andaisaciated agreements. In {
2011, we entered into a commercial manufacturing anpply agreement with Baxter, under which BaXids and finishesHylene:
recombinant for us. On July 18, 2011, we and Baatgered into an agreement setting forth certgihtsi data and assets to be transferre
Baxter to us during a transition period, or theribiion Agreement. The termination of these agregmdoes not affect the other relations
between the parties, including the applicationwf®Bnhanze technology to Baxter's GAMMAGARD LIQUID.

We and our partners have product candidates imebearch, preclinical and clinical stages, butrkitxevenues from the sales an
royalties of these product candidates will depemdur partnersabilities and ours to develop, manufacture, obtagulatory approvals for a
successfully commercialize product candidates.dy foe years, if ever, before we and our partnexsabte to obtain regulatory approvals
these product candidates. We have incurred neatipgriosses each year since inception, with anraatated deficit of approximately $24
million as of December 31, 2011.

We reincorporated from the State of Nevada to ttaeeSf Delaware in November 2007. Our principdicels and research facilities
located at 11388 Sorrento Valley Road, San Diegalif@nia 92121. Our telephone number is (858) 8889 and our enail address
info@halozyme.com Additional information about the Company can berfd on our website at www.halozyme.com, and inpmiiodic an
current reports filed with the SEC. Copies of ourrent and periodic reports filed with the SEC available at the SEC Public Reference R
at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 205#&d online at www.sec.gov and our website at wwiedyame.com.

Technology

Our existing products and our products under dgeknt are based primarily on intellectual propexyering the family of hum
enzymes known as hyaluronidases. Hyaluronidasesramames (proteins) that break down HA, which imaturally occurring space-filling, gel-
like substance that is a major component of botlmabtissues throughout the body, such as skincamtlage, and abnormal tissues suc
tumors. Our primary technology, Enhanze technolagya proprietary delivery platform using rHuPH20 human recombinant version
hyaluronidase. rHUPH20 is a naturally occurringyeme that temporarily degrades HA, thereby faciligtthe penetration and diffusion
other drugs and fluids that are injected understkia or in the muscle. rHUPH20 is the active commubin our first commercially approv
product,Hylenexrecombinant. Our proprietary rHUPH20 technologgpglicable to multiple therapeutic areas and mayd®sl to both expa
existing markets and create new ones through thelaigment of our own proprietary products. Throygiitnerships or other collaboratic
the rHUPH20 technology may also be applied to mgsand developmental products of biopharmaceuticethpanies that market dr
requiring or benefiting from injection via the sult@neous route of administration.
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Strategy

We are dedicated to the development and commeaiin of recombinant human enzymes that eithesteatly modify tissue under t
skin to facilitate injection of other therapiesamrrect diseased tissue structures for clinicaefierBy expanding upon our scientific exper
in the extracellular matrix, we hope to developéipeutic and aesthetic drugs. Our lead enzyme, iH20fyaluronidase, facilitates the deliv
of drugs and fluids through the extracellular matind into circulation. rHuPH20 is the underlyingug delivery technology oHylene;
recombinant for small molecules and fluids, and &#e technology for the delivery of proprietary 8raad large molecules. We continue
seek ways to combine rHUPH20 with previously appcbdrugs to develop new proprietary products, witentially new patent protection.

We are also expanding our scientific work in theraoellular matrix by developing other enzymes agdnts that target unique aspec
the extracellular matrix, giving rise to potentredw molecular entities targeting indications in @réhology, oncology and dermatology.
instance, we are developing a formulation of rHuBH2d insulin for the treatment of diabetes mellitWe are also developing a PEGyl
version of the rHUPH20 enzyme, or PEGPH20, thds lemger in the bloodstream, and may thereforéebédrget solid tumors by clear
away the surrounding HA and reducing the integdtfluid pressure within malignant tumors to all@etter penetration by chemotherape
agents. In addition, we are developing an extratzlimatrixmodifying enzyme that targets components of the skid subcutaneous tiss
that may have both therapeutic and aesthetic atjalits within dermatology. Key aspects of our coap® strategy include the following:

» Develop our own proprietary products based on ti2@Penzyme

» Develop other new molecular entities or enzymedHerextracellular matriy

» Seek partnerships for our Enhanze technology deligedy platform;

» Support product development and commercializatimaten our Enhanze technology collaborations;
* Increase sales and continue to drive physiciantamopf Hylenexrecombinant in the United Statt

3
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Product and Product Candidates

We have one marketed product and multiple prodaciditiates targeting several indications in varistegjes of development. 1
following table summarizes our proprietary prodaicti product candidates as well as our partneredlpt@andidates:

Research/ |
Produoct and Therapeuntic Use/ Pre- Filed for Approved
Produoct Candidates Area Indication{s) Clinical Phase 1 | Phase 2 Phase 3  Approval  Product

Proprietary Product and Produci Candidates

oo rcombiunt Narows Pepid, st |

muolecule and
fiuid delivery

Analog Insulin-PH20 |Endocrinology Diabetes _
MOP)  Oneology Soidtumors |
HTI-501 Dermatology ~ Aesthetic [

medicine,
[ other

Partnered Product Candidates
Baxter BioScience | Immunology  Primary |
Hy() Immuno-
(GAMMAGARD deficiency
LIQUID
with rHuPH20)

Roche o m s g

Sbewneons Oncology Breastcancer

Herceptm®

Subcumneos  Oncology  Non- |

MabThera® in's
Iymphoma

Subcutaneous Amti- Rheummatoid —
Actemra® Inflammatory | arthritis

ViroPharma Immunology | Hereditary _

Cinryze® with angioedema
rHuPH20
| Intrexon Immunology | Hereditary -
Alpha 1-anfitrypsin emphysema
with rtHuPH20

Ultrafast Insulin Program

Our lead proprietary program focuses on the fortraraof rHuUPH20 with prandial (mealtime) insulinsrfthe treatment of diabe
mellitus. Diabetes mellitus is an increasingly @ewnt, costly condition associated with substantiarbidity and mortality. Attaining al
maintaining normal blood sugar levels to minimike tongterm clinical risks is a key treatment goal forlgtic patients. We have combi
rHUPH20 with a rapid acting analog insulin, e.gsuilin lispro (Humalo@ ), or Lispro-PH20, insuligpart (Novolo@® ), or Aspart-PH20, and

4
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insulin glulisine (Apidra® ), or each such combioati Analog-PH20, to accelerate their action. ThésalogPH20 combinations facilita
faster insulin dispersion in, and absorption frahg subcutaneous space into the vascular compaditieading to faster insulin response.
making mealtime insulin onset faster, i.e., providearlier insulin to the blood and thus earliarcgkse lowering activity, AnaloBH20 ma
yield a better profile of insulin effect, more likieat found in healthy, n-diabetic people.

The primary goal of our ultrafast insulin prograsnte develop a best-idlass insulin product, with demonstrated clinicahéfits for typ
1 and 2 diabetes mellitus patients, in comparisothé current standard of care analog productsh Wimore rapidly absorbed, faster ac
insulin product, we seek to demonstrate one or raigr@ficant improvements relative to existing treant, such as improved glycemic con
less hypoglycemia, and less weight gain. A numlié@hase 1 and Phase 2 clinical pharmacology taiadsregistration triaénabling treatme
studies in connection with our ultrafast insuliogram investigating the various attributes of awsulin candidates, have been completec
ongoing or planned. The status of some of theaks fis summarized below:

e In June 2011, we reported results from the firagstof an insulin pump study comparing Aspit20 versus aspart alone at
Scientific Sessions of the American Diabetes Assarm in San Diego, California. The results demiaist that Aspar®H20 ha
pharmacokinetic and glucodynamic profiles that wereelerated and showed more consistent absomgtid@ction rates over infusi
set life as compared to analog alone, and the A$}420 also provided a reduction of poseal glycemic excursions relative to as
alone.

* In October 2011, we announced positive results fieensecond stage of an insulin pump study in peieith type 1 diabetes at-
Diabetes Technology Meeting in San Francisco, @ailif, which took place from October 27 to 29, 20Tkis Phase 1b study v
conducted as a randomized, doublied, crossover design, to determine insulin plerokinetics, glucodynamics, safety
tolerability of rHUPH20 as a single injection pritar the start of three days of commercially avddatmealtime insulin aspart pul
infusion therapy. The data demonstrated thatagiministration of rHuUPH20 led to a consistent aamstdr insulin exposure profile o
the infusion set life and superior glucose contotibwing meals. Compared to insulin aspart algme-administration with rHuPHZ
reduced the variability in insulin exposure andiarctprofiles observed with continuous insulin irifurs and provided a consist:
ultrafast profile over three days of use. In thst teeal setting, the consistent ultrafast profilthvyere-administration of rHUPH20 led
consistently reduced postprandial excursions. insaspart infusion with and without rHUPH20 pretre@nt was similarly we
tolerated

» In October 2011, we announced the positive reéudta two Phase 2 clinical trials of our ultrafastaéloc-PH20 injection formulatior
in patients with type 1 and type 2 diabetes. Mbent110 patients enrolled in each of the trials raeeived an insulin analog alone
an Analog-PH20 treatment for 12 weeks along witkab@sulin, followed by the opposite treatmentdoradditional 12 weeks in a 2-
way double blind crossover design. The primary eimdpof each study was a comparison of glycemidrobnthe main measurem
that people with diabetes use to assess treatrffentieeness, as assessed by the change in HbAC aseline. Data regarding post-
prandial glucose levels, the proportion of patiethtat safely achieve HbA1C targets, rates of hypmghia, weight change a
additional endpoints were collected as well. Boihls met the primary endpoint of namferiority for HbA1C, which reflects avera
blood sugar level over a prolonged period of tic@mpared to the insulin analog comparator, withesiop reductions in pogtrandia
glucose excursions in the Analog-PH20 arms. Comp#weinsulin analog alone, Anald®H20 use resulted in a greater than
increase in the proportion of both type 1 and tgppatients able to consistently achieve AACE (Aweami Association of Clinic
Endocrinologists) pogtrandial glucose targets at both one and two hdarghe study of patients with type 1 diabetes,rall
hypoglycemia (defined either as blood glucose <dadin or <56 mg/dL) was modestly but statisticaligrsficantly reduced for bo
definitions of hypoglycemia compared to analog elom the study of patients with type 2 diabetepdglycemia rates we
comparable between treatment groups. Hypoglycewgate were generally mild, and adverse events Avitaloc-PH20

5
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formulations were similar to those observed dutimg insulin analog comparator phase. We currentpeet to present the detai
results of these studies at a major medical me@ti2@12.

We view AnalogPH20 for injection and pump therapy as distincoict opportunities that could be pursued separaBelged on the d¢
we have seen thus far, we believe that a largedtiodr pharmaceutical company with global accesed@rimary care markets would be |
positioned to maximize the value of the injectaflarket, and therefore entering into a collaboraticuld be an attractive option for us
exploit this opportunity. We believe that the @ministration of rHuPH20 could be the best proditaring for the pump market. The n
step will be for us to evaluate this opportunityingsHylenexrecombinant in a clinical study (rHuPH20 is the eriging drug deliver
technology inHylenexrecombinant). We expect to present results fromghidy at an appropriate scientific meeting in201

PEGPH20

We are developing an investigational PEGylated fofmHuPH20, or PEGPH20, a new molecular entitya asindidate for the syster
treatment of tumors that accumulate HA. PEGylatieiers to the attachment of polyethylene glycothinPH20, now known as PEGPH
which converts rHUPH20 from a transient and shiggdl enzyme to a more stable entity in blood tlzat loe used to treat systemic disease.

Certain cancers, including pancreatic, lung, breadbn and prostate cancers, have been showrctoradate high levels of HA. Aberre
accumulation of this component of the tunsomfrastructure supports a protective network shatrounds certain tumors. This pathol
accumulation of HA along with other matrix compotgeareates a unique microenvironment for the gravfttumor cells compared to norr
cells. We believe that depleting the HA compondrihe tumor architecture with PEGPH20 disruptsttimaor microenvironment and opens
previously constricted vessels to allow anti-canitesrapies to have greater access to the tumoihwmay enhance the chemotherapy’
treatment effect. Increased blood flow may alsoasck radiotherapy treatment effect. We have geswrddta showing that disrupting
specialized environment around tumors will diredtiigibit the growth. Because HA accumulates in at5% of all solid tumors, we belie
that PEGPH20 has the potential to help patients miny different kinds of cancer.

We are currently conducting a Phase 1 clinical wigh PEGPH20 in the treatment of solid tumorsisTinial incorporates the use of ¢
dexamethasone as prophylactic treatment for alepiat prior to receiving intravenous administratafhPEGPH20 and subsequent pdsst
oral dexamethasone. We are also conducting a Phelggcal trial, with a Phase 1b run-period, for patients with metastatic pancrea#ocel
In the ongoing Phase 1b portion, the patients will recei&5PH20 in combination with gemcitabine. The objextof the phase 1b is
identity the recommended phase 2 dose of PEGPHZrmbination with gemcitabine. The phase 2 will @eandomized, doublelind,
placebo-controlled study to assess safety, toligkand efficacy of PEGPH20 in combination witlrgcitabine versus gemcitabine alone.

HTI-501

HTI-501, a recombinant human proteinase known as csithépis a lysosomal proteinase that acts by dégegacollagen and is our fil
conditionally-active biologic. Collagen is an abundant proteithim body, particularly in connective tissue, an@riesent in high amounts in
extracellular matrix in the form of collagen fibeGollagens are a class of helical proteins thataasembled into macromolecular fibrils
fibers. The collagen fiber network provides a dmual scaffolding framework in the extracellular tniva In the skin, these collagen fib
connect the superficial epithelial tissues to timglarlying connective tissues. Collagen abnormalitentribute to a number of conditic
including frozen shoulder, Dupuytren’s contracti®eyronie’s disease and cellulite.

A conditionally active biologic is a molecule thiatonly active under certain physiological condigo HTI501 is active under mild
acidic conditions and inactive at the pH normadiyrid in the tissue. The enzyme
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is combined with a low pH buffer and injected is #ctive state. The enzyme is only active locafig &r a short period of time. Once
mildly acidic conditions of the HT501 administration have been neutralized by theybtite enzyme becomes inactive. We intend to ha
this conditional activity to exert control over tharation and location of the enzyragherapeutic activity, potentially improving thiieacy ol
safety of this product candidate for both medical aesthetic conditions.

We are exploring HTBO1 as an approach to the treatment of edematbussélerotic panniculopathy, also known as cebBulithe
condition affects 80 to 90 percent of pasivlescent women and is prevalent in all races. ckagen fibers, or fibrous septa, anchor
epidermis against the swelling of subcutaneouswhich creates the dimpled appearance associathdthd condition. We believe that HTI-
501 acts by releasing the tension in the collagefiibwous septa and smooth the dimpled appeardrtbe skin. HT1501 has the potential to
studied as a treatment for other conditions invawtollagen, such as frozen shoulder, Dupuytreorgracture, Peyronig’disease, keloids a
hypertrophic scarring.

In September 2011, we initiated a Phase 1/2 cliita of HTI-501 in women with moderate to severe cellulite. Hiase 1 do
escalation portion of the trial evaluates a singjection of different HTI501 formulations into dimpled lesions of the skitidwed by a Pha:
2 portion of the trial where multiple lesions whik targeted with the optimal dose and formulatidp.to 48 and 76 subjects may be enrolle
the Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions of the trialeotisply. We presented interim results from thedehh proof-ofeoncept and local tolerabil
study of HTI-501 at the 8 World Congress of the International Academy of CesmDermatology in Cancun, Mexico, which was hieten
January 31February 3, 2012. In the ongoing Phase 1 portiathetlinical trial, no serious or severe adversenés have been reported and
injection has been well tolerated. The most comradwerse event has been mild to moderate pain ainjbetion site that was genere
bilateral (present at both investigational drug aodfer control injection sites), lasted a few nmemiand did not require treatment. Data 1
this study support commencement of the future PRgsm@tion of the clinical trial.

Enhanze Technology

Enhanze technology is a proprietary delivery platfasing rHuPH20. This enzyme temporarily degraddAs We believe this tempora
degradation creates an opportunistic window foritimgroved subcutaneous delivery of injectable l@ads, such as monoclonal antibodies
other large therapeutic molecules, as well as smalecules and fluids. The HA reconstitutes itsnmalr density within several days a
therefore, we anticipate that any effect of the PH20 on the architecture of the subcutaneous sigatsmporary. By using our rHUPH
enzyme, many therapeutics that could normally delynjected intravenously can now be administetdtistaneously. This change in the rt
of delivery to subcutaneous from intravenous, ord&n often improve patient convenience, enhaneenpdicokinetics, boost efficacy, ext
the product lifecycle and reduce cost.

We currently have Enhanze technology partnershigis Roche, Baxter, ViroPharma and Intrexon. We armgently pursuing addition
partnerships with biopharmaceutical companies thatket drugs requiring or benefiting from injectisa the subcutaneous route
administration.

Roche Partnership

In December 2006, we and Roche entered into areagnet under which Roche obtained a worldwide, estedulicense to develop a
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 withto thirteen Roche target compounds, or the R&artership. Roche initially had
exclusive right to apply rHUPH20 to only three piefined Roche biologic targets with the option xalesively develop and commercial
rHUPH20 with ten additional targets. As of DecemBEr 2011, Roche has elected a total of five exsdutargets and retains the optior
develop and commercialize rHUPH20 with three adddl targets through the payment of annual liceamséntenance fees. Pending
successful completion of various clinical, regutsitand sales
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events, Roche will be obligated to make milestoagnments to us, as well as royalty payments on éhesf products that result from
partnership.

Clinical trials have commenced for compounds deécat three of the five Roche exclusive targetseuride Roche Partnership. (
compound formulated with rHUPH20 (subcutaneous éfgin ® ) has completed a Phase 3 clinical trial, one comgdianmulated witl
rHUPH20 (subcutaneous MabThéra ) is in a Phasmi8alltrial and one compound formulated with rHUEHsubcutaneous Actem®a has
completed a Phase 1 clinical trial.

In October 2011, Roche announced positive top eseilts from the Phase 3 clinical trial in womerthwearly HER2positive brea:
cancer who received a fixed dose of a new subcateste delivered version of Roctseanticancer biologic, Herceptin (trastuzumab
Herceptin SC. In the study, the subcutaneous fatimid showed comparable results to Herceptin ga®man IV infusion, or Herceptin |
Herceptin SC takes about 5 minutes to administezrads Herceptin 1V takes about 30 minutes to infReche is also developing an auto-
injector device that should further simplify theopess and could enable patients to be dosed at boinehe doctos office rather than at
infusion clinic or hospital. The ready to use fotation may also significantly reduce pharmacy tiaee no medicine preparation time
required. This Phase 3 clinical trial was an oparel trial involving 596 women with HER@ssitive early breast cancer. The trial was desl
to compare trastuzumab concentration in the blptdrmacokinetics), efficacy (pathologic completspanse) and safety of Herceptin St
that of Herceptin IV. The trial met its quimary endpoints that were trastuzumab concenptraith the blood (serum concentrations)
efficacy. No new safety signals were observed ahti@e events were overall consistent with Heroefi Herceptin is approved to tr
HER2positive breast cancer and currently is given irdreously. Breast cancer is the most common carmoeng women worldwide. Ea
year, more than 1.4 million new cases of breaste&aare diagnosed worldwide, and nearly 450,00@lpewill die of the disease annually.
HERZ2-positive breast cancer, increased quantitigkeoHER2 protein are present on the surface efttimor cells. This is known aBlERZ
positivity’ and affects approximately 120% of people with breast cancer. Roche recenttpanced that data from this trial will be prese
at the European Breast Cancer Conference in Viemhigh will be held from March 21 to 24, 2012. larky March 2012, we announced 1
Roche has submitted a Line Extension ApplicatiotheoEuropean Medicines Agency for Herceptin SC.

In February 2011, Roche began a Phase 3 cliniedlfor a subcutaneous formulation of MabTheraugiinab) or MabThera SC. T
study investigates pharmacokinetics, efficacy aafgéty of MabThera SC. IV administered MabTherapgraved for the treatment of non-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma (NHL) and Chronic Lymphocytic Leukem@L(), types of cancer that affects lymphocyteswiiite blood cells. A
estimated 66,000 new cases of NHL were diagnoséukit.S. in 2009 with approximately 125,000 newesareported worldwide. Roche
stated that they will present data from the progmard012 and plans to file a marketing applicatiorregulatory authorities in the Europ:
Union in 2012.

In 2009, Roche completed a Phase 1 clinical tal & subcutaneous formulation of Actemra. Thisl tii@estigated the safety a
pharmacokinetics of subcutaneous Actemra in patievith rheumatoid arthritis. The results from tiibase 1 trial suggest that furt
exploration may be warranted. Actemra administéndévenously is approved for the treatment of rhatoid arthritis. Roche is separa
developing a subcutaneous form of Actemra that doésise rHUPH20 and is being investigated for \yeekbiweekly administration.

Additional information about the Phase 3 subcutasederceptin and Phase 3 subcutaneous MabTheieatlirials can be found
www.clinicaltrials.gov and www.roche-trials.comfénmation available on these websites is not inomaed into this report.
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Baxter Gammagard Partnership

GAMMAGARD LIQUID is a current Baxter product that indicated for the treatment of primary immunodeficy disorders associa
with defects in the immune system. In Septembef72@@& and Baxter entered into an agreement undahwBeaxter obtained a worldwic
exclusive license to develop and commercialize pcodombinations of rHUPH20 with GAMMAGARD LIQUIDr HyQ, or the Gammage
Partnership. Pending the successful completioradbus regulatory and sales milestones, Baxterheilbbligated to make milestone paym
to us, as well as royalty payments on the saleproflucts that result from the partnership. Baxterdsponsible for all developme
manufacturing, clinical, regulatory, sales and re&irlg costs under the Gammagard Partnership, wiglavill be responsible for the supply
the rHUPH20 enzyme. We perform research and dewedopactivities at the request of Baxter, whichraienbursed by Baxter under the te
of the Gammagard Partnership. In addition, Baxi&s bertain product development and commercialimatibligations in major marke
identified in the Gammagard License. Baxter filed fegulatory approval of HyQ in the US in the setquarter of 2011. In September 2(
Baxter announced that it had submitted an apptinath the European Medicines AgereyCommittee for Human Medicinal products see
marketing approval for HyQ.

ViroPharma Partnership

Effective May 10, 2011, we and ViroPharma entemgith ia collaboration and license agreement undectwkiroPharma obtained
worldwide exclusive license for the use of rHuUPH2ryme in the development of a subcutaneous ifjlecfarmulation of ViroPharma’
commercialized product, Cinry2e C{ esterase inhibitor [human]), or the ViroPharragtership. In addition, the license provides ViiaFn:
with exclusivity to C1 esterase inhibitor and te tiereditary angioedema indication, along withetadditional orphan indications. ViroPhal
is solely responsible for the development, manufég, regulatory approval and marketing of anydorcts resulting from this partnership.
are entitled to receive payments for research aneldpment services and supply of bulk formulattdrrHuPH20 (active pharmaceuti
ingredients, or API), if requested by ViroPharmae \Wre also entitled to receive milestone payments rayalties on product sales
ViroPharma. ViroPharma may terminate the agreerpéot to expiration for any reason on a productgogduct basis upon 90 daygtior
written notice to us. Upon any such terminatiore titense granted to ViroPharma (in total or widspect to the terminated product
applicable) will terminate.

In September 2011, ViroPharma announced that thdyifitiated an open-label, multiptisse Phase 2 clinical trial designed to eva
the safety, pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynanfissilicutaneous administration of Cinryze in comtiamawith rHuPH20 in 12 subjec
with hereditary angioedema. Hereditary angioedesra fiare, debilitating and potentially fatal genetisease. On December 6, 2011, we
ViroPharma announced positive top line data frors Bhase 2 study of subcutaneous delivery of Cenmgzombination with rHUPH20, whi
are informative for the trial design of the upcogiRhase 2 dose ranging combination study. Thenpiredry data suggest that rHuPt
enhances the delivery and absorption of Cinryze iantkases systemic exposure to C1 esterase ohitgtative to subcutaneous Cinr
administered alone. We believe this product candidauld improve flexibility and convenience, andtgntially allow preventiomindec
patients living with hereditary angioedema to selininister every three or four days, just as theyodlay with the current IV formulation, |
with a single subcutaneous injection.

Intrexon Partnership

Effective June 6, 2011, we and Intrexon entered &tollaboration and license agreement under winitexon obtained a worldwir
exclusive license for the use of rHUPH20 enzymiaéndevelopment of a subcutaneous injectable fatioul of Intrexons recombinant humi
alpha lantitrypsin (rtHUA1AT), or the Intrexon Partnership.addition, the license provides Intrexon witlckesivity for a defined indicatio
or Exclusive Field. Intrexon is solely responsilibe the development, manufacturing, regulatory apal and marketing of any produ
resulting from this partnership. We are entitledgoeive payments for research and

9



Table of Contents

development services and supply of rHUPH20 APéduested by Intrexon. We are also entitled to veceiilestone payments and royaltie:
product sales. Intrexon may terminate the agreeprémt to expiration for any reason on a producipbgduct basis upon 90 daywior writter
notice to us. Upon any such termination, the lieegsanted to Intrexon (in total or with respecttie terminated product, as applicable)
terminate. Intrexon’s chief executive officer arithitman of its board of directors is also a mendfeur board of directors.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ar@ 2990, 52% and 76% of total revenues, respectivedye from Roche and 42
42% and 20% of total revenues, respectively, wesenfBaxter. In addition, for the year ended Decen®ie 2011, 22% and 16% of tc
revenues were from Viropharma and Intrexon, re$pedgt For information regarding our revenues freriernal customers, please see Na
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Cotragions of Credit Risk, Sources of Supply and Baant Customers in our consolidate
financial statements included elsewhere in thisrep

Hylenex Recombinant

Hylenexrecombinant is a formulation of rHUPH20 that haseieed FDA approval to facilitate subcutaneousdfladministration fc
achieving hydration; to increase the dispersion @pgbrption of other injected drugs; and in subwedas urography for improving resorpt
of radiopaque agents.

In February 2007, we and Baxter amended certaistingi agreements relating tdylenexrecombinant and entered into the Hyle
Partnership for kits and formulations with rHUPH20.October 2009, Baxter commenced the commereaiahdh ofHylenexrecombinan
Hylenexrecombinant was voluntarily recalled in May 201@dgse a portion of thidylenexrecombinant manufactured by Baxter was n
compliance with regulatory requirements. During seeond quarter of 2011, we submitted the datathiegaFDA had requested to support
reintroduction ofHylenexrecombinant. The FDA approved the submitted dathgranted the reintroduction éfylenexrecombinant and v
reintroducedHylenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011.

Effective January 7, 2011, we and Baxter mutuaffyead to terminate the Hylenex Partnership andaisaciated agreements. In {
2011, we entered into a commercial manufacturind aupply agreement with Baxter, under which Baxtks and finishesHylene:
recombinant for us. On July 18, 2011, we and Bagtgered into a Transition Agreement setting faghtain rights, data and assets t
transferred by Baxter to us during a transitioniqeerThe termination of these agreements does ffittahe other relationships between
parties, including the application of our Enhareehhology to Baxter's GAMMAGARD LIQUID.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are essdwotialir business. Our success will depend in padwrability to obtain patent protecti
for our inventions, to preserve our trade secretsta operate without infringing the proprietargtris of third parties. Our strategy is to acti
pursue patent protection in the United States amthio foreign jurisdictions for technology that Wwelieve to be proprietary to us and
offers us a potential competitive advantage. Ouemtaportfolio includes thirteen issued patentsjuding one granted European patent, &
number of pending patent applications. We are tt@usive licensee of the University of Connecticutder a patent covering the DI
sequence that encodes human hyaluronidase. Thastpatpires in 2015. We have a patent issued byJtBe Patent and Trademark Off
pertaining to recombinant human hyaluronidase whiqbires in 2027. A European patent, EP160354imoig rHUPH20 was granted to us
November 11, 2009 with claims to the human PH2@gpyotein, PEGylated variants, a method of prodydive glycoprotein produced
recombinant methods, and pharmaceutical compositigth other agents, including antibodies, insylingokines, a chemotherapeutic a
and additional therapeutic classes. A third papyased this patent in the European Patent Offi@dik0, but withdrew the opposition in Ma
2012. We are currently attempting to resolve theosgion with the European Patent Office, and altffowe expect to obtain
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European patent protection that would be no lesadthan claims previously issued in a counterpaited States patent (U.S. Patent
7,767,429), there can be no assurance that wéevdble to do so. In addition, we have under pragat throughout the world, multiple pat
applications that relate to the recombinant humygadunonidase and methods of using and manufactugagmbinant human hyaluronid
(expiration of which applications can only be daély determined upon maturation to our issued ma)e We believe our patent filin
represent a barrier to entry for potential competitooking to utilize these hyaluronidases.

In addition to patents, we rely on unpatented traelerets, proprietary knotvaw and continuing technological innovation. Wek
protection of these trade secrets, proprietary khow and innovation, in part, through confidentialiind proprietary information agreeme
Our policy is to require our employees, directom)sultants, advisors, partners, outside sciergdiaborators and sponsored researchers,
advisors and other individuals and entities to ei@confidentiality agreements upon the start oplegment, consulting or other contract
relationships with us. These agreements providealhaonfidential information developed or madetm to the individual or entity during t
course of the relationship is to be kept confiddrand not disclosed to third parties except ircgjecircumstances. In the case of emplo
and some other parties, the agreements providalhaventions conceived by the individual will ber exclusive property. Despite the us
these agreements and our efforts to protect oaliéstual property, there will always be a riskuofauthorized use or disclosure of informat
Furthermore, our trade secrets may otherwise beémiown to, or be independently developed by, ounmetitors.

We also file trademark applications to protect tlaenes of our products and product candidates. Taggkcations may not mature
registration and may be challenged by third parti¥e are pursuing trademark protection in a nunalbefifferent countries around the woi
There can be no assurances that registered oristeregl trademarks or trade names of our compahyatiinfringe on third parties rights
will be acceptable to regulatory agencies.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development expenses consistrjlyiroé costs associated with the development arahufiacturing of our produ
candidates, compensation and other expenses fearodsand development personnel, supplies and iadaterosts for consultants and rel:
contract research, clinical trials, facility coatsd amortization and depreciation. We charge a#larsch and development expenses to oper.
as they are incurred. Our research and developaotinities are primarily focused on the developnmafur various product candidates.

Since our inception in 1998 through December 31,120ve have incurred research and development egpesf $259.1 million. Fro
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2011, appeirign 30% and 16% of our research and developmargnses were associated with
development of our ultrafast insulin and PEGPH28dpct candidates, respectively. Due to the uncwdytan obtaining the FDA and otf
regulatory approvals, our reliance on third paréied competitive pressures, we are unable to estimish any certainty the additional costs
will incur in the continued development of our priepary product candidates for commercializatiomwéver, we expect our research
development expenses to increase as our produdidesies advance into later stages of clinical dgwelent.

Manufacturing

We have existing supply agreements with contractufeecturing organizations Avid Bioservices, Ina. Avid, and Cook Pharmica LL
or Cook, to produce supplies of bulk rHUPH20 APhe3e manufacturers each produce APl under curreat ®anufacturing Practices,
cGMP, for clinical uses. In addition, Avid currgngproduces API foHylenexrecombinant. Avid and Cook will also provide suppir the
chemistry, manufacturing and controls sectionsHiDA and other regulatory filings. We rely on thability to successfully manufacture th
batches according to product specifications, thaDgbk has limited experience
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manufacturing our API. In addition, as a resultoof contractual obligations to Roche, we have beguired to significantly scale up «
commercial API production at Cook during the lagb tyears. The ability of Cook to obtain status asGdMP-approved manufacturing facil
and the ability of both manufacturers to (i) rettieir status as cGMBpproved manufacturing facilities; (ii) to succedlsfscale up our AF
production; or (iii) manufacture the API required &ur proprietary and partnered products and prodadidates is essential to our corpc
strategy.

In June 2011, we entered into a commercial manurfiagt and supply agreement with Baxter, a cGafproved manufacturing facili
Under the terms of the manufacturing agreement Bétkter, Baxter provides the final fill and finiskeps in the production processtbflene;
recombinant. The initial term of the agreement vBdixter extends until December 2012 and is reneavidslone additional year upon mui
agreement. In June 2011, we entered into a seraigeeement with another third party manufacturerttie technology transfer and fill &
finish of Hylenexrecombinant in order to increase capacity and aitawe favorable pricing.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution
HYLENEX Recombinant

We reintroducedylenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011 aftsolotion of the voluntary recall and the returnBgxter o
marketing rights to us. Upon its return to the nearkve intend to take advantage of the initial reéirlg inroads achieved by Baxter. We
continuing to assess our commercial and stratqgioms for the product to address additional uses.

We sellHylenexrecombinant in the United States to wholesale ibistors, whoin turn sell to hospitals, ambulatory surgery cesn
other enddsers. Decisions made by the customers of the wala@alistributors regarding the levels of inventitrgy hold, and thus the amo
of Hylenex they purchase, may affect the levelrofdoict sales in any particular period.

We have engaged Integrated Commercial Solutions|C&, a division of AmerisourceBergen Specialty @rp a subsidiary
AmerisourceBergen, to act as our exclusive distoibfor commercial shipment and distributionHflenexrecombinant to our customers in
United States. In addition to distribution servicéSS provides us with other key services relatedogistics, warehousing, returns
inventory management, contract administration amargeback processing and accounts receivable mayengeln addition, we utilize thi
parties to perform various other services for uatiry to regulatory monitoring, including call den management, adverse event repol
safety database management and other product mante services.

Competition
HYLENEX Recombinant

Other manufacturers have FDapproved products for use as spreading agentsiding ISTA Pharmaceuticals, Inc., with an ovinan()
hyaluronidase, Vitrase In addition, some commercial pharmacies compouralungnidase preparations for institutions and pligsis eve
though compounded preparations are not FDA-apprpveducts.

12



Table of Contents

Government Regulations

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in gor@ountries regulate extensively the manufactaek sale of the pharmaceuti
products that we have developed or currently aveldping. The FDA has established guidelines afetyatandards that are applicable tc
laboratory and preclinical evaluation and clinicalestigation of therapeutic products and stringegulations that govern the manufacture
sale of these products. The process of obtainigglagory approval for a new therapeutic productallgurequires a significant amount of ti
and substantial resources. The steps typicallyiredjbefore a product can be produced and marifetdtuman use include:

» animal pharmacology studies to obtain preliminafpimation on the safety and efficacy of a drug
 laboratory and preclinical evaluatiin vitro andin vivoincluding extensive toxicology studie

The results of these laboratory and preclinicatigsi may be submitted to the FDA as part of anstigational new drug, or INI
application. The sponsor of an IND application ntaynmence human testing of the compound 30 days &ftemission of the IND, unle
notified to the contrary by the FDA.

The clinical testing program for a new drug typligahvolves three phases:

» Phase 1 investigations are generally conductedeatthy subjects (in certain instances, Phase liestutlat determine the maxim
tolerated dose and initial safety of the producididate are performed in patients with the dise:

» Phase 2 studies are conducted in limited numbessigjécts with the disease or condition to be égtaind are aimed at determining
most effective dose and schedule of administratievaluating both safety and whether the product afestnates therapeu
effectiveness against the disease;

» Phase 3 studies involve large, wetintrolled investigations in diseased subjectsamedaimed at verifying the safety and effective
of the drug

Data from all clinical studies, as well as all ledtory and preclinical studies and evidence of pobdjuality, are typically submitted to
FDA in a new drug application, or NDA. The resuifsthe preclinical and clinical testing of a biologproduct candidate are submitted to
FDA in the form of a biologic license applicatioor, BLA, for evaluation to determine whether the qarot candidate may be approved
commercial sale. In responding to a BLA or NDA, thBA may grant marketing approval, request add#iomformation, or deny tt
application. Although the FDA’ requirements for clinical trials are well estabéid and we believe that we have planned and ctetloc
clinical trials in accordance with the FDAapplicable regulations and guidelines, theseirements, including requirements relating to tey
the safety of drug candidates, may be subject &m@h as a result of recent announcements regasdiiety problems with approved drt
Additionally, we could be required to conduct amdigl trials beyond what we had planned due tdRDA’s safety and/or efficacy concern:
due to differing interpretations of the meaningaf clinical data. (See Part |, Iltem 1A, “Risk Fast”)

The FDA's Center for Drug Evaluation and Researcistnapprove an NDA and the FDRACenter for Biologics Evaluation and Rese
must approve a BLA for a drug before it may be retell in the United States. If we begin to marketmoposed products for commercial
in the U.S., any manufacturing operations that bayestablished in or outside the United States algib be subject to rigorous regulat
including compliance with cGMP. We also may be suobjto regulation under the Occupational Safety Hedlth Act, the Environmen
Protection Act, the Toxic Substance Control Acg Export Control Act and other present and futaresl of general application. In additi
the handling, care and use of laboratory animassabject to the Guidelines for the Humane UseGara of Laboratory Animals published
the National Institutes of Health.

Regulatory obligations continue pagbproval, and include the reporting of adverse tsvernen a drug is utilized in the broader pa
population. Promotion and marketing of drugs i® a&lsictly regulated, with
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penalties imposed for violations of FDA regulatiptise Lanham Act and other federal and state lamduding the federal antiickback
Statute.

We currently intend to continue to seek, directlffoough our partners, approval to market our potsland product candidates in fore
countries, which may have regulatory processes difé¢r materially from those of the FDA. We anpate that we will rely upc
pharmaceutical or biotechnology companies to lieeasr proposed products or independent consultanteek approvals to market
proposed products in foreign countries. We canssti@ you that approvals to market any of our pseggroducts can be obtained in
country. Approval to market a product in any oneeifign country does not necessarily indicate thapt@pal can be obtained in other countries.

From time to time, legislation is drafted and imtmoed in Congress that could significantly chargedtatutory provisions governing
approval, manufacturing and marketing of drug potsluln addition, FDA regulations and guidance @ften revised or reinterpreted by
agency or reviewing courts in ways that may sigaffitly affect our business and development of oadyct candidates and any products
we may commercialize. It is impossible to predidiether additional legislative changes will be eedctor FDA regulations, guidance
interpretations changed, or what the impact of@rgh changes may be.

Segment Information

We operate our business as one segment, whichdeglall activities related to the research, devalt and commercialization
human enzymes that either transiently modify tissnger the skin to facilitate injection of otheethpies or correct diseased tissue struc
for clinical benefit. This segment also includeserues and expenses related to (i) research aredog@vent activities conducted under
collaboration agreements with third parties anjipfioduct sales oHylenexrecombinant. The chief operating decisimakers review tt
operating results on an aggregate basis and mahageperations as a single operating segment. \Wenbdoreign based operations anc
long-lived assets located in foreign countriestfar years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our executive officers, umihg their names, ages and certain biographid¢atrimation can be found in Part
Item 10. “Directors, Executive Officers and Corger&overnance.” This information is incorporatedréference into Part | of this report.

Employees

As of March 1, 2012, we had 135 ftilre employees, including 95 engaged in researdhcéinical development activities. Includec
our total headcount are 41 employees who hold PorDA.D. degrees. None of our employees are unémhiend we believe our relations
with our employees is good.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related To Our Business

We have generated only minimal revenue from prodsates to date; we have a history of net losses a@ghtive cash flow, and we may
never achieve or maintain profitability.

Relative to expenses incurred in our operationshase generated only minimal revenues from prodatgs, licensing fees, milest
payments and research reimbursements to date andayenever generate sufficient revenues from fupragluct sales, licensing fees
milestone payments to offset expenses. Even if ltimately do achieve significant revenues from podsales, licensing fees, rese:
reimbursements and/or milestone payments, we expeticur significant operating losses over thetnfexv years. We have never b
profitable, and we may never become profitable.oligh December 31, 2011, we have incurred aggregstimsses of approximately $24
million.
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If our proprietary and partnered product candidate® not receive and maintain regulatory approvats,if approvals are not obtained in
a timely manner, such failure or delay would substally impair our ability to generate revenues.

Approval from the FDA is necessary to manufacturd market pharmaceutical products in the UnitedeStand the other countries
which we anticipate doing business have similauiregents. The process for obtaining FDA and othgulatory approvals is extensive, time-
consuming and costly, and there is no guaranteethba-rDA or other regulatory bodies will approwey applications that may be filed w
respect to any of our proprietary or partnered povatandidates, or that the timing of any such eygrwill be appropriate for the desil
product launch schedule for a product candidate. afid our partners, attempt to provide guidande #ise timing for the filing and acceptal
of such regulatory approvals, but such filings apgrovals may not occur on the originally antiogohtimeline, or at all. Only one of ¢
partnered product candidates is currentlythia regulatory approval process and there are aprigtary product candidates currently in
regulatory approval process. We and our partneng moa be successful in obtaining such approvalsafoy potential products in a tim
manner, or at all. See “ -Our proprietary and partnered product candidatesynmet receive regulatory approvals for a varietyreisons
including unsuccessful clinical trialsfor additional information relating the approwaflproduct candidates.

Additionally, in order to continue to manufacturedanarket pharmaceutical products, we must mairgairregulatory approvals. If we
any of our partners are unsuccessful in maintaioungregulatory approvals, our ability to generaeenues would be adversely affected.

If our contract manufacturers are unable to manufaare significant amounts of the API used in our pduicts and product candidates,
our product development and commercialization etorould be delayed or stopped and our collabomartnerships could be damage

We have existing supply agreements with contractufacturing organizations Avid and Cook to prodboék API. These manufacturt
each produce API under cGMP for clinical uses.dditon, Avid currently produces API fdylenexrecombinant. Avid and Cook will al
provide support for the chemistry, manufacturingl aontrols sections for FDA and other regulatofindis. We rely on their ability -
successfully manufacture these batches accordipgoituct specifications and Cook has relativelyitiih experience manufacturing our A
In addition, as a result of our contractual obligas to Roche, we have been required to signifigaattale up our commercial API productiol
Cook during the last two years. If Cook is unalbl@btain status as a cGM#pproved manufacturing facility, or if either Aviat Cook: (i) ar
unable to retain status as cGMPproved manufacturing facilities; (ii) are unabdeotherwise successfully scale up our API produrtiol
(iii) fail to manufacture the API required by ouroprietary and partnered products and product ciatels for any other reason, our busi
will be adversely affected. We have not establislaed may not be able to establish, favorable gaarents with additional APl manufactul
and suppliers of the ingredients necessary to nagtwfe the API should the existing manufactureid suppliers become unavailable or in
event that our existing manufacturers and supphleesunable to adequately perform their resporitsésil We have attempted to mitigate
impact of supply interruption through the estabhigimt of excess API inventory, but there can be ssumnces that this safety stock wil
maintained or that it will be sufficient to addresmsy delays, interruptions or other problems exgmexd by Avid and/or Cook. Any dela
interruptions or other problems regarding the gbihf Avid and/or Cook to supply API on a timelydis could: (i) cause the delay of clini
trials or otherwise delay or prevent the regulatapproval of proprietary or partnered product cdatds; (ii) delay or prevent the effec
commercialization of proprietary or partnered pretduand/or (iii) cause us to breach contractuabalibns to deliver API to our partners. S
delays would likely damage our relationship withr partners under our key collaboration agreememtistaey would have a material adve
effect on our business and financial condition.
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If any party to a key collaboration agreement, inicling us, fails to perform material obligations urd such agreement, or if a key
collaboration agreement, or any other collaborati@greement, is terminated for any reason, our busss could significantly suffer.

We have entered into multiple collaboration agrem:ainder which we may receive significant futusgympents in the form
maintenance fees, milestone payments and royaltigbe event that a party fails to perform undéses collaboration agreement, or if a
collaboration agreement is terminated, the redadticanticipated revenues could delay or suspemngmduct development activities for sc
of our product candidates, as well as our commization efforts for some or all of our products addition, the termination of a k
collaboration agreement by one of our partnersccouditerially impact our ability to enter into adalital collaboration agreements with r
partners on favorable terms, if at all. In certaiitumstances, the termination of a key collaboraigreement would require us to revise
corporate strategy going forward and reevaluatefmications and value of our technology.

Most of our current proprietary and partnered prodts and product candidates rely on the rHUPH20 en&y,

rHUPH20 is a key technological component of Enhatemdnology, our ultrafast insulin program, our FEZ0 programHylene:
recombinant and other proprietary and partnerediymis and product candidates. An adverse developfoemHuPH20 (e.g., an adve
regulatory determination relating to rHuUPH20, we anable to obtain sufficient quantities of rHUPH2@ are unable to obtain or main
material proprietary rights to rHUPH20 or we diseownegative characteristics of rHUPH20) would saigally impact multiple areas of ¢
business, including current and potential partripsstas well as proprietary programs.

Our proprietary and partnered product candidates ynaot receive regulatory approvals for a varietyrefasons, including unsuccessful
clinical trials.

Clinical testing of pharmaceutical products is magpexpensive and uncertain process and the faludelay of a clinical trial can occut
any stage. Even if initial results of preclinicalidies or clinical trial results are promising, meour partners may obtain different results
fail to show the desired levels of safety and effit, or we may not, or our partners may not, obapiplicable regulatory approval for a var
of other reasons. Clinical trials for any of ouoprietary or partnered product candidates couldriziccessful, which would delay or prot
regulatory approval and commercialization of theduct candidates. In the United States and othésdjations, regulatory approval can
delayed, limited or not granted for many reasomduiding, among others:

« clinical results may not meet prescribed endpdiatsthe studies or otherwise provide sufficientadéd support the efficacy of ¢
product candidate:

« clinical and nonclinical test results may revedeseffects, adverse events or unexpected safatgssgssociated with the use of
product candidate:

 regulatory review may not find a product candidsgige or effective enough to merit either contintesding or final approva

» regulatory review may not find that the data froragtinical testing and clinical trials justifies@pval, or they may require additio
studies that would significantly delay or make @oud pursuit of approval commercially unattracti

» aregulatory agency may reject our trial data eadiee with our interpretations of either clinical data or applicable regulatior

 the cost of a clinical trial may be greater tharatvive originally anticipate, and we may decide & pursue regulatory approval
such a trial
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» aregulatory agency may not approve our manufagysrocesses or facilities, or the processes ditia of our partners, our contr:
manufacturers or our raw material supplit

» a regulatory agency may identify problems or otieficiencies in our existing manufacturing processe facilities, or the existir
processes or facilities of our partners, our cattn@anufacturers or our raw material suppli

» aregulatory agency may change its formal or infdrapproval requirements and policies, act contragrevious guidance, adopt r
regulations or raise new issues or concerns latgeimpproval process;

» a product candidate may be approved only for intina that are narrow or under conditions that @l product at a competit
disadvantage, which may limit the sales and mangefctivities for such product candidate or otheewadversely impact t
commercial potential of a produ

If a proprietary or partnered product candidatedsapproved in a timely fashion on commerciallgble terms, or if development of ¢
product candidate is terminated due to difficultiesdelays encountered in the regulatory approvatgss, it could have a material adv
impact on our business and we will become more rldga on the development of other proprietary otngaed product candidates and/or
ability to successfully acquire other products &exhnologies. There can be no assurances thatrapyigtary or partnered product candic
will receive regulatory approval in a timely manner at all.

We anticipate that certain proprietary and partthgueoducts will be marketed, and perhaps manufadiuin foreign countries. T
process of obtaining regulatory approvals in faneguntries is subject to delay and failure fortb@&sons set forth above, as well as for re:
that vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. The aqoval process varies among countries and jurigsistand can involve additional testing. -
time required to obtain approval may differ fronathequired to obtain FDA approval. Foreign reqaiatagencies may not provide appro
on a timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDAab not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiesther countries or jurisdictions, ¢
approval by one foreign regulatory authority does ensure approval by regulatory authorities ireofforeign countries or jurisdictions or
the FDA.

Our key partners are responsible for providing cairt proprietary materials that are essential compaoris of our partnered product
candidates, and any failure to supply these matésieould delay the development and commercializatgfforts for these partnered
product candidates and/or damage our collaboratpa&tnerships.

Our partners are responsible for providing cerpaprietary materials that are essential componentsir partnered product candida
For example, Roche is responsible for producingHkeceptin and MabThera required for its subcutasgmoduct candidates and Baxte
responsible for producing the GAMMAGARD LIQUID fits product candidate. If a partner, or any applieahird party service provider o
partner, encounters difficulties in the manufactsterage, delivery, fill, finish or packaging other components of the partnered pro
candidate or the partnered product candidate jtsetfh difficulties could: (i) cause the delay bhical trials or otherwise delay or prevent
regulatory approval of partnered product candidadesl/or (ii) delay or prevent the effective comuoialization of partnered products. S
delays could have a material adverse effect onbasimess and financial condition. For example, Baréceived a Warning Letter from
FDA in January 2010 regarding Bax@GAMMAGARD LIQUID manufacturing facility in Lesses, Belgium. The FDA indicated in Ma
2010 that the issues raised in the Warning Leter been addressed by Baxter and we do not expeset thsues to impact the developme
the GAMMAGARD LIQUID product candidate.

If we have problems with third parties that eithdrstribute API on our behalf or prepare, fill, firsh and package our products and
product candidates for distribution, our commerciaation and development efforts for our productsdproduct candidates could be
delayed or stopped.

We rely on third parties to store and ship APl amr behalf and to also prepare, fill, finish and gge our products and prod
candidates prior to their distribution. If we amable to locate third parties to perform
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these functions on terms that are acceptable torukthe third parties we identify fail to perfartheir obligations, the progress of clinical &
could be delayed or even suspended and the conatization of approved product candidates could &ykd or prevented. For exam
Hylenexrecombinant was voluntarily recalled in May 201@d¢se a portion of thidylenexrecombinant manufactured by Baxter was n
compliance with the requirements of the underlyitydenexrecombinant agreements. During the second quar@d1d, we submitted the d
that the FDA had requested to support the reinttioln of Hylenexrecombinant. The FDA approved the submitted dath granted th
reintroduction ofHylenexrecombinant and we reintroducetylenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011. In R0, we enter¢
into a commercial manufacturing and supply agreemetihh Baxter, under which Baxter will fill, finisland packageélylenexrecombinar
product for us. Under our commercial manufacturangd supply agreement with Baxter, Baxter has agteefill and finish Hylene;
recombinant product for us for a limited periodtiofie. The initial term of the commercial manufaaigrand supply agreement with Ba:
expires on December 31, 2012 and is renewable rier amlditional year upon mutual agreement. In JWEL2we entered into a servi
agreement with a third party manufacturer for gaghhology transfer and manufactureHyienexrecombinant. While we expect to enter in
commercial manufacturing and supply agreement withew manufacturer dflylenexrecombinant, if we are unable to find a suit
manufacturer oHylenexrecombinant prior to the expiration of the commarehanufacturing and supply agreement with Baxteif a new
manufacturer encounters difficulties in the mantuee; fill, finish or packaging oHylenexrecombinant, our business and financial cond
could be adversely effected.

We may wish to raise additional capital in the nemtelve months and there can be no assurance thatwill be able to obtain such fund

During the next twelve months, we may wish to radditional capital to continue the developmenbwf product candidates or for ot
current corporate purposes. Our current cash paositnd expected revenues during the next few yaagsnot constitute the amount of caj
necessary for us to continue the development ofpoaprietary product candidates and to fund gergpatations. In addition, if we engage
acquisitions of companies, products or technolaggrider to execute our business strategy, we may teeraise additional capital. We \
need to raise additional capital in the future tigto one or more financing vehicles that may belabls to us. Potential financing vehic
include: (i) the public or private issuance of g#@s; (ii) new collaborative agreements; and/oi) €xpansions or revisions to exist
collaborative relationships.

Considering our stage of development, the natureusfcapital structure and general market conditiagh we are required to ra
additional capital in the future, the additionaldincing may not be available on favorable termst@dl. If additional capital is not available
favorable terms when needed, we will be requiredigaificantly reduce operating expenses throughréstructuring of our operations. If
are successful in raising additional capital, astatial number of additional shares may be isaugtithese shares will dilute the owner
interest of our current investors.

If we are unable to sufficiently develop our salesarketing and distribution capabilities or entento successful agreements with third
parties to perform these functions, we will not bble to fully commercialize our products.

We may not be successful in marketing and promoting existing productHylenexrecombinant, product candidates or any ¢
products we develop or acquire in the future. Guiess marketing and distribution capabilities aeeyMimited. In order to commercialize ¢
products successfully, we must internally developssantial sales, marketing and distribution cédljigdsi or establish collaborations or ot
arrangements with third parties to perform theseices. We do not have extensive experience inetteeas, and we may not be abl
establish adequate house sales, marketing and distribution capalsliie engage and effectively manage relationshipl third parties t
perform any or all of such services. To the extbat we enter into cpromotion or other licensing arrangements, our pebdevenues a
likely to be lower than if we directly marketed aswld our products, and any revenues we receiMadeflend upon the efforts of third part
whose
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efforts may not meet our expectations or be sufgeskhese third parties would be largely respolesior the speed and scope of sales
marketing efforts, and may not dedicate the ressurecessary to maximize product opportunities. @bility to cause these third partie:
increase the speed and scope of their efforts rsaybee limited. In addition, sales and marketinfpre$ could be negatively impacted by
delay or failure to obtain additional supportivenidal trial data for our products. In some cagbid party partners are responsible
conducting these additional clinical trials and @inility to increase the efforts and resourcescalied to these trials may be limited.
example, in January 2011 we and Baxter mutuallgedjto terminate the Hylenex Partnership and thecésted agreements.

If we or our partners fail to comply with regulatgrrequirements, regulatory agencies may take actagainst us or them, which could
significantly harm our business.

Any approved products, along with the manufacturprgcesses, postpproval clinical data, labeling, advertising ancrpotiona
activities for these products, are subject to carai requirements and review by the FDA and otkgulatory bodies. Regulatory authori
subject a marketed product, its manufacturer aadrtanufacturing facilities to continual review gretiodic inspections. We, and our partr
will be subject to ongoing regulatory requiremenitguding required submissions of safety and othestmarket information and repot
registration requirements, cGMP regulations, rexuents regarding the distribution of samples tosjatigns and recordkeeping requireme
The cGMP regulations include requirements relatmgyuality control and quality assurance, as wslltlee corresponding maintenanct
records and documentation. We rely on the compdidncour contract manufacturers with cGMP regutetiand other regulatory requireme
relating to the manufacture of our products. We and partners are also subject to state laws agi$tration requirements covering
distribution of our products. Regulatory agenciesyrohange existing requirements or adopt new rements or policies. We or our partr
may be slow to adapt or may not be able to adajbietee changes or new requirements.

Regulatory requirements applicable to pharmacduficaducts make the substitution of suppliers arghufiacturers costly and tit
consuming. We have minimal internal manufacturirgabilities and are, and expect to be in the futergirely dependent on contr
manufacturers and suppliers for the manufacturewf products and for their active and other inggati. The disqualification of the
manufacturers and suppliers through their failarecdmply with regulatory requirements could negativimpact our business because
delays and costs in obtaining and qualifying alésrsuppliers (if such alternative suppliers ar@ilaile, which we cannot assure) could d
clinical trials or otherwise inhibit our ability toring approved products to market, which wouldenavmaterial adverse effect on our busi
and financial condition.

Later discovery of previously unknown problems wotlr proprietary or partnered products, manufaastugrocesses or failure to com
with regulatory requirements, may result in anyhaf following:

* restrictions on our products or manufacturing psses

* warning letters

» withdrawal of the products from the mark

 voluntary or mandatory reca

» fines;

» suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approv

» suspension or termination of any of our ongoingicél trials;

« refusal to permit the import or export of our proti

 refusal to approve pending applications or suppteme approved applications that we sub

» product seizure; c
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* injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimingkenalties

If proprietary or partnered product candidates aspproved by regulatory bodies such as the FDA botrabt gain market acceptance, our
business may suffer and we may not be able to féutdre operations.

Assuming that our proprietary or partnered prodizstdidates obtain the necessary regulatory apmoaatumber of factors may aff
the market acceptance of these existing produdtidates or any other products which are developedtquired in the future, including, amc
others:

 the price of products relative to other therap@sliie same or similar treatmer

» the perception by patients, physicians and othenbees of the health care community of the effectbss and safety of these prod
for their prescribed treatmen

 our ability to fund our sales and marketing eff@tsl the ability and willingness of our partnersund sales and marketing effor
» the degree to which the use of these productstaaid by the approved product lak

+ the effectiveness of our sales and marketing effand the effectiveness of the sales and markeffogs of our partners

 the introduction of generic competitors; ¢

» the extent to which reimbursement for our prodactd related treatments will be available from thgedty payors

If these products do not gain market acceptancenasenot be able to fund future operations, ineigdhe development or acquisitior
new product candidates and/or our sales and magkefforts for our approved products, which wouddige our business to suffer.

In addition, our proprietary and partnered prodwantididates will be restricted to the labels appddwe applicable regulatory bodies s
as the FDA, and these restrictions may limit thek®ting and promotion of the ultimate productshé approved labels are restrictive, the ¢
and marketing efforts for these products may betiegly affected.

Developing and marketing pharmaceutical products fuman use involves product liability risks, forivich we currently have limited
insurance coverage.

The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceuticadiycts involves the risk of product liability alas by consumers and other tl
parties. Although we maintain product liability imance coverage, product liability claims can bghhin the pharmaceutical industry and
insurance may not sufficiently cover our actuabiliies. If product liability claims were to be mea against us, it is possible that our insur
carriers may deny, or attempt to deny, coverageentain instances. If a lawsuit against us is ss&fod then the lack or insufficiency
insurance coverage could materially and adverséigcta our business and financial condition. Funthere, various distributors
pharmaceutical products require minimum produdbility insurance coverage before purchase or aepegt of products for distributic
Failure to satisfy these insurance requirementddcoupede our ability to achieve broad distributioh our proposed products and
imposition of higher insurance requirements couighdse additional costs on us. In addition, sinceyraf our partnered product candid:
include the pharmaceutical products of a thirdypaste run the risk that problems with the thirdtggsharmaceutical product will give rise
liability claims against us.

Our inability to attract, hire and retain key managnent and scientific personnel could negativelyeff our business.

Our success depends on the performance of key raargag and scientific employees with biotechnologyegience. Given our relative
small staff size relative to the number of programmsently under development,
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we depend substantially on our ability to hirejrtranotivate and retain high quality personnel,ezsglly our scientists and management t
If we are unable to retain existing personnel enidy or hire additional personnel, we may notaide to research, develop, commercializ
market our products and product candidates as tegher on a timely basis and we may not be abledeguately support current and fu
alliances with strategic partners.

Furthermore, if we were to lose key managementopere, such as Gregory Frost, Ph.D., our PresidedtChief Executive Officer, v
would likely lose some portion of our institutiorialowledge and technical knolmew, potentially causing a substantial delay in onenore o
our development programs until adequate replacepensbnnel could be hired and trained. For exanipielFrost has been with us from s
after our inception, and he possesses a substant@lint of knowledge about our development efféftse were to lose his services, we wc
experience delays in meeting our product developreenedules. In 2008, we adopted a severance pafiplicable to all employees an
change in control policy applicable to senior exa®s. We have not adopted any other policies dered into any other agreeme
specifically designed to motivate officers or otkemployees to remain with us.

We do not have key man life insurance policieshanlives of any of our employees, including Dr. $tro
Our operations might be interrupted by the occuri@of a natural disaster or other catastrophic eten

Our operations, including laboratories, offices afiter research facilities, are located in a thmgiéding campus in San Diego, Califorr
We depend on our facilities and on our partnerstregtors and vendors for the continued operatfoouo business. Natural disasters or ¢
catastrophic events, interruptions in the supplynafural resources, political and governmental gbanwildfires and other fires, floo
explosions, actions of animal rights activists tleguakes and civil unrest could disrupt our operegior those of our partners, contractors
vendors. Even though we believe we carry commdyciahsonable business interruption and liabilityurance, and our contractors may ¢
liability insurance that protect us in certain etgenve might suffer losses as a result of busiimssruptions that exceed the coverage avai
under our and our contractoigsurance policies or for which we or our contrastdo not have coverage. Any natural disaster @st@phi
event could have a significant negative impact onaperations and financial results. Moreover, angh event could delay our research
development programs.

If we or our partners do not achieve projected diyament goals in the timeframes we publicly annowner otherwise expect, the
commercialization of our products and the developmef our product candidates may be delayed andaassult, our stock price may
decline.

We publicly articulate the estimated timing for gkecomplishment of certain scientific, clinicalguatory and other product developrr
goals. The accomplishment of any goal is typichged on humerous assumptions and the achievefremasticular goal may be delayed
any number of reasons both within and outside afamtrol. If scientific, regulatory, strategic other factors cause us to not meet a
regardless of whether that goal has been publidigudated or not, the commercialization of our gwots and the development of
proprietary and partnered product candidates magidheyed. In addition, the consistent failure toempgublicly announced milestones r
erode the credibility of our management team weéfpect to future milestone estimates.

Future acquisitions could disrupt our business amarm our financial condition.

In order to augment our product pipeline or otheeastrengthen our business, we may decide to &cgddtitional businesses, prodi
and technologies. As we have limited experiencevaluating and completing acquisitions, our abibty an organization to make s
acquisitions is unproven. Acquisitions could reguignificant capital infusions and could involvamy risks, including, but not limited to, 1
following:
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we may have to issue convertible debt or equityisiges to complete an acquisition, which wouldutil our stockholders and co
adversely affect the market price of our commouglst

an acquisition may negatively impact our result®pérations because it may require us to amortizerite down amounts related
goodwill and other intangible assets, or incur ssueme substantial debt or liabilities, or it maysm adverse tax consequen
substantial depreciation or deferred compensatianges

we may encounter difficulties in assimilating antegrating the business, products, technologigsppeel or operations of compar
that we acquire

certain acquisitions may impact our relationshiphwexisting or potential partners who are compaitivith the acquired busine
products or technologie

acquisitions may require significant capital infuss and the acquired businesses, products or tlegfie® may not generate suffici
value to justify acquisition cost

an acquisition may disrupt our ongoing businesgrtliresources, increase our expenses and distrachanagemen
acquisitions may involve the entry into a geographibusiness market in which we have little opnior experience; an
key personnel of an acquired company may decidéonebrk for us

If any of these risks occurred, it could adversafgct our business, financial condition and opegatesults. We cannot assure you
we will be able to identify or consummate any fetacquisitions on acceptable terms, or at all.dfd@ pursue any acquisitions, it is pos:
that we may not realize the anticipated benefamfsuch acquisitions or that the market will n@wisuch acquisitions positively.

Risks Related To Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price is subject to significant volatiit

We participate in a highly dynamic industry whidtea results in significant volatility in the matierice of common stock irrespective
company performance. As a result, our high anddales prices of our common stock during the twetemths ended December 31, 2011\
$9.82 and $5.54, respectively. We expect our spoide to continue to be subject to significant wlitsg and, in addition to the other risks &
uncertainties described elsewhere in this annymidrteon Form 1K and all other risks and uncertainties that atieeeinot known to us at tt
time or which we deem to be immaterial, any offtllowing factors may lead to a significant dropaar stock price:

a dispute regarding our failure, or the failurené of our third party partners, to comply with teems of a collaboration agreeme
the termination, for any reason, of any of ouraodiration agreement

the sale of common stock by any significant stodl#tég including, but not limited to, direct or imdct sales by members
management or our Board of Directc

the resignation, or other departure, of memberariagement or our Board of Directc

general negative conditions in the healthcare itrgy

general negative conditions in the financial mask

the failure, for any reason, to obtain regulatgupraval for any of our proprietary or partnereddarct candidates
the failure, for any reason, to secure or deferdrdellectual property positiot
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» for those products that are waiting to be approvgedhe FDA, the failure of the FDA to approve symducts in a timely manr
consistent with the FD’s historical approval proces

» the suspension of any clinical trial due to safatpatient tolerability issue
 the suspension of any clinical trial due to magsd/or competitive condition

 our failure, or the failure of our third party paets, to successfully commercialize products apgutdsy applicable regulatory bod
such as the FDA

 our failure, or the failure of our third party paets, to generate product revenues anticipatedugsiors

» problems with an API contract manufacturer or legfild finish manufacturer for any product or pradeendidate
» the sale of additional debt and/or equity secwitig us;

« our failure to obtain financing on acceptable teron:

 arestructuring of our operatior

Future sales of shares of our common stock may niaggly affect our stock price.

We are currently a “Well-Known Seasoned Issuand may file automatic shelf registration staterseattany time with the SEC.
addition, we currently have the ability to offerdasell additional equity, debt securities and watsato purchase such securities, e
individually or in units, under an effective autdinashelf registration statement. Sales of sub&thamounts of shares of our common stoc
other securities under our shelf registration statets could lower the market price of our commamtlstand impair our ability to raise cap
through the sale of equity securities. In the fefuwe may issue additional options, warrants oemtterivative securities convertible into
common stock.

Trading in our stock has historically been limitedp investors may not be able to sell as much staskhey want to at prevailing market
prices.

Our stock has historically traded at a low daipding volume. If low trading volume continues, iayrbe difficult for stockholders to s
their shares in the public market at any given tanprevailing prices.

Risks Related To Our Industry

Compliance with the extensive government regulasdan which we are subject is expensive and timestoning and may result in the
delay or cancellation of product sales, introducti® or modifications.

Extensive industry regulation has had, and willtoare to have, a significant impact on our businédk pharmaceutical compani
including ours, are subject to extensive, comptestly and evolving regulation by the federal goweent, principally the FDA and, to a les
extent, the U.S. Drug Enforcement AdministrationD&EA, and foreign and state government agencibs. Hederal Food, Drug and Cosm
Act, the Controlled Substances Act and other doimestd foreign statutes and regulations governnfiuence the testing, manufacturi
packaging, labeling, storing, recordkeeping, safapproval, advertising, promotion, sale and distibn of our products. Under certain of tr
regulations, we and our contract suppliers and rfi@&twrers are subject to periodic inspection of autheir respective facilities, procedu
and operations and/or the testing of products byRDA, the DEA and other authorities, which condaetiodic inspections to confirm that
and our contract suppliers and manufacturers aoefmpliance with all applicable regulations. TheA-Biso conducts pre-approval and post-
approval reviews and plant inspections to determiether our systems, or our contract suppliersl aranufacturersprocesses, are
compliance with cGMP and other FDA regulationsw#, or our contract supplier, fail these inspedctjome may not be able to commercie
our product in a timely manner without incurringrsficant additional costs, or at all.

In addition, the FDA imposes a number of complegufatory requirements on entities that advertisd promote pharmaceutic
including, but not limited to, standards and retjatss for direct-to-consumer
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advertising, off-label promotion, industry-spongbeeientific and educational activities, and proiol activities involving the internet.

We are dependent on receiving FDA and other goventah approvals prior to manufacturing, marketimgl &hipping our produc
Consequently, there is always a risk that the FDAther applicable governmental authorities wilt approve our products, or will take post-
approval action limiting or revoking our ability sell our products, or that the rate, timing andtaf such approvals will adversely affect
product introduction plans or results of operations

We may be required to initiate or defend againgjdé proceedings related to intellectual propertghits, which may result in substantial
expense, delay and/or cessation of the developraedtcommercialization of our products.

We primarily rely on patents to protect our intetleal property rights. The strength of this pratetthowever, is uncertain. For exam
it is not certain that:

» our patents and pending patent applications conaetyets and/or technology that we invented fi

» we were the first to file patent applications foese inventions

» others will not independently develop similar aeatative technologies or duplicate our technolsg
» any of our pending patent applications will resnlissued patents; ar

» any of our issued patents, or patent pending agpics that result in issued patents, will be heltid and infringed in the event 1
patents are asserted against otr

We currently own or license several patents and hBve pending patent applications applicable taP#H20 and other propriete
materials. There can be no assurance that oulirexigatents, or any patents issued to us as at refsalr pending patent applications,
provide a basis for commercially viable productd| provide us with any competitive advantageswili not face third party challenges or
the subject of further proceedings limiting theiope or enforceability. A European patent, EP16Q36%&iming rHUPH20 was granted to us
November 11, 2009 with claims to the human PH2Q@apyotein, PEGylated variants, a method of prodydhe glycoprotein produced
recombinant methods, and pharmaceutical compositigth other agents, including antibodies, insylieygokines, a chemotherapeutic ag
and additional therapeutic classes. A third papgased this patent in the European Patent Offi@dik0, but withdrew the opposition in Ma
2012. We are currently attempting to resolve theosftion with the European Patent Office, and alfiowe expect to obtain European pe
protection that would be no less broad than clgimesiously issued in a counterpart United StateésrmgU.S. Patent No. 7,767,429), there
be no assurance that we will be able to do so. lknigations in our patent portfolio could have ateréal adverse effect on our business
financial condition. In addition, if any of our pding patent applications do not result in issuetg g, or result in issued patents with narro
limited claims, this could result in us having nolimited protection against generic or biosimi@mpetition against our product candid
which would have a material adverse effect on asirtess and financial condition.

We may become involved in interference proceedingke U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, or othiecg@edings in other jurisdictiol
to determine the priority, validity or enforceabyilbf our patents. In addition, costly litigationudd be necessary to protect our patent position.

We also rely on trademarks to protect the namesuofproducts. These trademarks may not be acceptablegulatory agencies.
addition, these trademarks may be challenged bgrethf we enforce our trademarks against thirdiggrsuch enforcement proceedings
be expensive. We also rely on trade secrets, umgatgroprietary knowow and continuing technological innovation that seek to prote
with confidentiality agreements with employees, sudtants and others with whom we discuss our bssingisputes may arise
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concerning the ownership of intellectual propentytree applicability or enforceability of these agmeents, and we might not be able to res
these disputes in our favor.

In addition to protecting our own intellectual pesty rights, third parties may assert patent, tnaal¥ or copyright infringement or ott
intellectual property claims against us based omatwhey believe are their own intellectual propeights. If we become involved in a
intellectual property litigation, we may be requir® pay substantial damages, including but natdidhto treble damages, for past infringen
if it is ultimately determined that our productdringe a third partys intellectual property rights. Even if infringemesiaims against us &
without merit, defending a lawsuit takes signifitdime, may be expensive and may divert managemattention from other busin
concerns. Further, we may be stopped from devejppiranufacturing or selling our products until waain a license from the owner of
relevant technology or other intellectual propeityhts. If such a license is available at all, eaynwequire us to pay substantial royalties or (
fees.

Patent protection for protein-based therapeutic pects and other biotechnology inventions is subjexia great deal of uncertainty, and
if patent laws or the interpretation of patent lavehiange, our competitors may be able to develop eohmercialize products based on
our discoveries.

Patent protection for proteimased therapeutic products is highly uncertain iamdlves complex legal and factual questions. lcer
years, there have been significant changes in ptenincluding the legal standards that govemgbope of protein and biotechnology pat
Standards for patentability of fukkngth and partial genes, and their correspondintgms, are changing. Recent court decisions hzage i
more difficult to obtain patents, by making it matificult to satisfy the requirement of nabviousness, have decreased the availabili
injunctions against infringers, and have increaedlikelihood of challenging the validity of a pat through a declaratory judgment aci
Taken together, these decisions could make it miffieult and costly for us to obtain, license agdforce our patents. In addition, the Leahy-
Smith America Invents Act (HR 1249) was signed ilaev in September 2011, which among other changeket U.S. patent laws, chan
patent priority from "first to invent" to “first téile,” implements a poggrant opposition system for patents and providesforior user defen
to infringement. These judicial and legislative mfpas have introduced significant uncertainty in paéent law landscape and may potent
negatively impact our ability to procure, maintaimd enforce patents to provide exclusivity for products.

There also have been, and continue to be, polisgudsions concerning the scope of patent proteaisarded to biotechnolo
inventions. Social and political opposition to leiciinology patents may lead to narrower patent gtiote within the biotechnology indust
Social and political opposition to patents on geaed proteins may lead to narrower patent protectio narrower claim interpretation,
genes, their corresponding proteins and inventieleged to their use, formulation and manufactBaent protection relating to biotechnol
products is also subject to a great deal of uniceytautside the United States, and patent lawsesodving and undergoing revision in mi
countries. Changes in, or different interpretatiofispatent laws worldwide may result in our in#pito obtain or enforce patents, and 1
allow others to use our discoveries to develop@rdmercialize competitive products, which would &rpur business.

If third party reimbursement and customer contracise not available, our products may not be accepite the market.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our prottuwill depend in part on the extent to which reimsement for our products and rel:
treatments will be available from government healiministration authorities, private health inssrenanaged care organizations and ¢
healthcare providers.

Third-party payors are increasingly attempting to lingttbthe coverage and the level of reimbursememieof drug products to conti
costs. Consequently, significant uncertainty exastso the reimbursement status of newly approeadtiicare products. Third party payors |
not establish adequate levels of reimbursement for
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the products that we commercialize, which couldtlimeir market acceptance and result in a matadakrse effect on our financial condition.

Customer contracts, such as with group purchasiggnizations and hospital formularies, will oftest offer contract or formulary stat
without either the lowest price or substantial gnoclinical differentiation. If our products arenspared to animadlerived hyaluronidases
these entities, it is possible that neither of ¢hesnditions will be met, which could limit markatceptance and result in a material ady
effect on our financial condition.

The rising cost of healthcare and related pharmadtieal product pricing has led to cost containmentgssures that could cause us to sell
our products at lower prices, resulting in less Bwe to us.

Any of the proprietary or partnered products thetehbeen, or in the future are, approved by the R4 be purchased or reimburse(
state and federal government authorities, privatdth insurers and other organizations, such ashhmaintenance organizations and man
care organizations. Such third party payors inéngds challenge pharmaceutical product pricing. Tiesd toward managed healthcare ir
United States, the growth of such organizationd,\arious legislative proposals and enactmentsftorm healthcare and government insur:
programs, including the Medicare Prescription DrMgdernization Act of 2003, could significantly ioBnce the manner in whi
pharmaceutical products are prescribed and purdhassulting in lower prices and/or a reductiordémand. Such cost containment meas
and healthcare reforms could adversely affect bilityato sell our products.

In March 2010, the United States adopted the RaBestection and Affordable Care Act, as amendedheyHealth Care and Educat
Affordability Reconciliation Act, or the Healthcaf®eform Act. This law substantially changes the wwealth care is financed by b
governmental and private insurers, and signifigaimtipacts the pharmaceutical industry. The Heatéhdgeform Act contains a number
provisions that are expected to impact our busiaesisoperations, in some cases in ways we canmrtly predict. Changes that may af
our business include those governing enrolimernfederal healthcare programs, reimbursement chariges] and abuse and enforcem
These changes will impact existing government heale programs and will result in the developmdntew programs, including Medic:
payment for performance initiatives and improveragatthe physician quality reporting system andilfieek program.

Additional provisions of the Healthcare Reform Asbme of which became effective in 2011, may neghtiaffect our revenues in t
future. For example, the Healthcare Reform Act ieg®a normeductible excise tax on pharmaceutical manufactuve importers that s
branded prescription drugs to U.S. government prnogrthat we believe will impact our revenues fram groducts. In addition, as part of
Healthcare Reform Act' provisions closing a funding gap that currentligts in the Medicare Part D prescription drug pamg, we will also b
required to provide a 50% discount on branded pirgsmn drugs dispensed to beneficiaries under pinéscription drug program. We exg
that the Healthcare Reform Act and other healthoafim measures that may be adopted in the futouéd have a material adverse effec
our industry generally and on our ability to maintar increase our product sales or successfulilgraercialize our product candidates or ci
limit or eliminate our future spending on developrnprojects.

Furthermore, individual states have become incnghsiaggressive in passing legislation and implamegnregulations designed
control pharmaceutical product pricing, includingcp or patient reimbursement constraints, discgurgstrictions on certain product acc
importation from other countries and bulk purchgsihegally mandated price controls on payment arteby third party payors or ott
restrictions could negatively and materially impaat revenues and financial condition. We anti@ghiat we will encounter similar regulat
and legislative issues in most other countriesidetthe United States.
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We face intense competition and rapid technologicabnge that could result in the development of guzts by others that are superior
our proprietary and partnered products under devefoent.

Our proprietary and partnered products have nunsecmmpetitors in the United States and abroad dirfly among others, ma
pharmaceutical and specialized biotechnology firamyersities and other research institutions tiate developed competing products.
competitors foHylenexrecombinant will include, but are not limited toTl® Pharmaceuticals, Inc. For our Anal&#20 product candidat
such competitors may include Biodel Inc., Eli Liganofi Aventis, Novo Nordisk Inc. and Mannkind @oration. These competitors n
develop technologies and products that are moectefe, safer, or less costly than our currentuture proprietary and partnered proc
candidates or that could render our technologied mmduct candidates obsolete or noncompetitivenyMaf these competitors he
substantially more resources and product developmeamufacturing and marketing experience and défyab than we do. In addition, ma
of our competitors have significantly greater exgece than we do in undertaking preclinical testamgl clinical trials of pharmaceuti
product candidates and obtaining FDA and otherleggry approvals of products and therapies foringeealthcare.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Iltem 2. Properties

Our administrative offices and research faciliges currently located in San Diego, California. \&ase an aggregate of approxime
58,000 square feet of office and research spaca meonthly rent expense of approximately $117,0@00f costs and property taxes assoc
with the operation and maintenance of the sublefsgiities. We believe the current space is adegjt@ our immediate needs.

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in dispuiasjuding litigation, relating to claims arising toof operations in the normal courst
our business. Any of these claims could subjedbusstly legal expenses and, while we generalliebe that we have adequate insuranc
cover many different types of liabilities, our imance carriers may deny coverage or our policytimay be inadequate to fully satisfy
damage awards or settlements. If this were to happe payment of any such awards could have ariabtelverse effect on our consolide
results of operations and financial position. Amtgtilly, any such claims, whether or not successflld damage our reputation and busit
We currently are not a party to any legal procegslithe adverse outcome of which, in managememntinion, individually or in the aggrege
would have a material adverse effect on our codat#d results of operations or financial position.

In May 2010, we delivered a notice of breach totBaxlue to Baxter’'s failure to providdylenexrecombinant in accordance with
terms of the Hylenex Partnership. Baxter had coetethe claims made in our initial notice of breastd asserted their own breach cl¢
against us. Pursuant to the terms of the TransKigneement, signed on July 18, 2011, Baxter’s bred@ims against us were discharged.

ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Market

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global karunder the symbol “HALO.The following table sets forth the high and

sales prices per share of our common stock duarh quarter of the two most recent fiscal years:

2011 2010

High Low High Low
First Quarter $8.0C $5.7¢ $8.67 $5.22
Second Quarte $7.21 $5.97 $9.11 $6.0¢
Third Quartel $7.3¢€ $5.54 $8.1( $6.41
Fourth Quarte $9.82 $5.6(C $8.31 $6.6¢

On March 1, 2012, the closing sales price of ounmmn stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market was $11.30 gfmare. As of March

2012, we had approximately 3,500 stockholders odne:

We have never declared or paid any dividends orcoomrmon stock. We currently intend to retain avdédacash for funding operatiol

therefore, we do not expect to pay any dividendeamcommon stock in the foreseeable future. Anyrieidetermination to pay dividends
our common stock will be at the discretion of owald of directors and will depend upon, among ofaetors, our results of operatic
financial condition, capital requirements, contnadtrictions, business prospects and other factordoard of directors may deem relevant.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table summarizes our compensatiomplander which our equity securities are authorfeedssuance as of December

2011:
Number of
Shares
Remaining
Available for
Future
Number of Issuance
Shares to Be under Equity
Issued upon Weighted-Average Compensatior
Exercise of Exercise Price Plans
Outstanding of Outstanding (Excluding
Options and Options and Shares
Restricted Stocl Restricted Stock Reflected in
Units Units Column (a))
Plan Category @ (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockhol@grs 6,017,78. $ 5.6¢ 4,882,01
(1) Represents stock options and restricted stock unider the 2011 Stock Plan, 2008 Stock Plan, 20@8i@e Director Stock Plan, 20(C

Stock Plan, 2005 Outside DirectorStock Plan, 2004 Stock Plan and the 2001 Stock. R)tions under the 2001 Stock Plan v
assumed by Halozyme as part of the March 2004 médrgteveen DeliaTroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or @elbph, and Global Yac
Services, Inc. The 2001 Stock Plan was approvethéyshareholders of DeliaTroph prior to the meiged the former shareholders
DeliaTroph held approximately 90% of the votingcst@f Halozyme immediately following the merger.eTB001 Stock Plan expired
January 2011
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary i @ahour previous or future filings with the SE@e tfollowing information relating -
the price performance of our common stock shallbgteemed to be “filed” with the SEC or to be fsiting material” under the Securitit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchaage®#d it shall not be deemed to be incorporatgddierence into any of our filings uni
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the &g Act, except to the extent we specificallyrpmate it by reference into such filing.

The graph below compares Halozyme Therapeutics;slmumulative fiveyear total shareholder return on common stock i
cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Compositddr and the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index. The gragicks the performance of a $:
investment in our common stock and in each of tidexes (with the reinvestment of all dividendsyhir®ecember 31, 2006 to Decembet

2011. The historical stock price performance inellith this graph is not necessarily indicativeutife stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®
Among Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDAQ Biotechnology Index
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Fiscal year ending December 31,

12411

12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. $100.0( $ 88.3- $69.51 $ 72.9: $ 98.3¢ $118.1¢
NASDAQ Composite $100.0( $108.5: $64.1: $ 92.6: $109.3¢ $108.4:
NASDAQ Biotechnology $100.0( $103.4: $96.6:2 $106.1¢ $122.3¢ $137.1:
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set foeflow as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and fofishal years ended December
2011, 2010 and 2009, are derived from our auditetsalidated financial statements included elsewhethis report. This information shot
be read in conjunction with those consolidatedrfaial statements, the notes thereto, and with “Mameents Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of OperatioriElie selected consolidated financial data set foelow as of December 31, 2009, 2008
2007, and for the fiscal years ended December 828 Zand 2007, are derived from our audited conatddl financial statements that
contained in reports previously filed with the SEGt included herein.

Summary Financial Information

Year Ended December 31

Statement of Operations Data 2011 (a) 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except for per share amoun
Total revenue $ 56,08t¢ $ 13,62« $ 13,67 $ 8,764 $ 3,80(
Net loss (19,770 (53,24 (58,367) (48,659 (23,89¢)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0.19 $ (0.5€6) $ (0.67) $ (0.6)) $ (0.39
Shares used in computing net loss per share, Aadidilutec 102,56¢ 94,35¢ 86,70( 79,84 74,31¢
As of December 31,
Balance Sheet Data: 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivale $52,82¢ $83,25¢ $67,46¢ $63,71¢ $ 97,67¢
Working capital 46,68¢ 74,15* 60,04¢ 59,79« 92,31
Total asset 65,75¢ 91,34¢ 77,15( 76,56: 103,46(
Deferred revenue 40,88¢ 58,09« 60,48: 49,44¢ 39,26¢
Total liabilities 54,85¢ 70,99 70,24¢ 61,18 45,69:
Stockholder’ equity 10,90( 20,35 6,90: 15,38( 57,76¢

(@) Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011diedlvevenues from collaborative agreements totait®y0 million related to tt
upfront payments received from the ViroPharma amtdekon Partnerships and $18.1 million related doognition of unamortize
deferred prepaid produbiased payments and unamortized deferred upfromhg@atyunder the Hylenex Partnership with Baxter essal
of the Transition Agreement signed in July 2011e Skete 3, Collaborative Agreements, and Note 7ebell Revenue, in the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements for detailedutision.

Iltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operation

In addition to historical information, the followgn discussion contains forwaldeking statements that are subject to risks
uncertainties. Actual results may differ substahtifom those referred to herein due to a numbfefagtors, including but not limited to ris
described in the Part I, Item 1A “Risks Factors”daalsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated teldewmg and commercializing innovative productst tadvance patient care. (
research targets the extracellular matrix, an argaide the cell that provides structural supporti$sues and orchestrates many impa
biological activities, including cell migration,gialing and survival. Over many years, we have ldpeel unique scientific expertise that allc
us to pursue this target-rich environment for theedopment of future therapies.
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Our research focuses primarily on human enzymest dhar the extracellular matrix. Our lead enzyntlee recombinant hum
hyaluronidase, or rHUPH20, temporarily degradeslumgaan, or HA, a matrix component in the skin, dadilitates the dispersion a
absorption of drugs and fluids. We are also devefpmovel enzymes that may target other matrixcstmes for therapeutic benefit. (
Enhanze™ technology is the platform for the delivery of prighary small and large molecules. We apply oueaesh to develop products
partnership with other companies as well as forawn proprietary pipeline in therapeutic areas wgigmificant unmet medical need, sucl
diabetes, oncology and dermatology.

Our operations to date have involved: (i) orgargzamd staffing our operating subsidiary, Halozyine,; (ii) acquiring, developing al
securing our technology; (iii) undertaking produwt#velopment for our existing products and a limitegmber of product candidat
(iv) supporting the development of partnered prodizdidates; and (v) sellindylenex® recombinant (hyaluronidase human injection).
continue to increase our focus on our proprietandpct pipeline and have expanded investments impoaprietary product candidates.
currently have multiple proprietary programs inivaes stages of research and development. In additi@ currently have collaborat
partnerships with F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd and fA@innia Roche, Inc., or Roche, Baxter Healthcare Cotpmoraor Baxter, ViroPharn
Incorporated, or ViroPharma, and Intrexon Corporatior Intrexon, to apply Enhanze technology to plaetners’biological therapeut
compounds. We also had another partnership withteBaxinder which Baxter had worldwide marketinghtgyfor our marketed produ
Hylenexrecombinant, or the Hylenex Partnership. We andt@amutually agreed to terminate the Hylenex Pastmp in January 201
Currently, we have received only limited revenumfrthe sales dflylenexrecombinant, in addition to other revenues frompantnerships.

We and our partners have product candidates inmgbearch, preclinical and clinical stages, butriitxevenues from the sales an
royalties of these product candidates will depemaor partnersabilities and ours to develop, manufacture, obtegulatory approvals for a
successfully commercialize product candidates.dy foe years, if ever, before we and our partnexsabte to obtain regulatory approvals
these product candidates. We have incurred neatipgriosses each year since inception, with anraotated deficit of approximately $24
million as of December 31, 2011.

We are currently a “Well-Known Seasoned Issuagmd may file automatic shelf registration staterseattany time with the SEC.
February 2011, we filed an automatic shelf regigtrastatement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 339444) with the SEC, which allows
from time to time, to offer and sell equity, deltarities and warrants to purchase any of suchrisiesy either individually or in units. C
February 15, 2012, we sold approximately 7.8 millghares of our common stock at a public offeringepof $10.61 per share, genera
approximately $81.8 million in proceeds after ddihgthe underwriting discounts and commissions lirfore any deductions for expen
We may utilize this universal shelf in the future taise capital to fund the continued developmehtowr product candidates, 1
commercialization of our products or for other gaheorporate purposes.

Revenues

We generate revenues from product sales and cofiib® agreements. Revenue from product sales dspem our ability to develc
manufacture, obtain regulatory approvals for anccessfully commercialize our products and prodactdidates. Payments received ui
collaborative agreements may include nonrefundablgments at the inception of the arrangement, dieciees, exclusivity fees, payme
based on achievement of specified milestones datsdrin the collaborative agreements, reimbursesrafmesearch and development serv
payments for the manufacture of bulk formulationridfiPH20 (active pharmaceutical ingredient, or Afel) the partner and/or royalties,
applicable, on sales of products resulting fromatmirative agreements. We analyze each elementrafadlaborative agreements and cons
a variety of factors in determining the appropriatethod of revenue recognition. Se€fritical Accounting Policies and Estimates Revenu
Recognition— Revenue Under Collaborative Agreemehtbelow for our revenue recognition policies for pants received und
collaborative agreements.

31



Table of Contents

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Sales. Cost of product sales consists primarily of raw eniats, thirdparty manufacturing costs, fill and finish costsigh
costs, internal costs and manufacturing overhesdcégted with the production of our products. Gifstales also consists of the wrdewn o
excess, dated and obsolete inventories.

Research and Development. Our research and development expenses inclaldeies and benefits, reseameated manufacturir
services, clinical trials, contract research sawjcsupplies and materials, facilities and othesrlowad costs and other outside expense:
charge all research and development expenses tatimpes as they are incurred. Our research andig@went activities are primarily focus
on the development of our various product cand&late

Since our inception in 1998 through December 31,120ve have incurred research and development sgpeasf $259.1 million. Fro
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2011, appeigign30% and 16% of our research and developme@nses were associated with
development of our AnaloBH20 and PEGPH20 product candidates, respectiRelgearch and development expenses incurred foreie
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were asvio(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Programs
Product Candidate
Analoc-PH20 $16,61¢ $15,35¢ $18,36:
PEGPH2(C 8,39¢ 7,17¢ 11,11:
HTI-501 3,91¢ 4,95¢ 3,35¢
Hylenexrecombinan 4,12¢ 1,43¢ 957
Enhanze partnershij 7,464 8,56¢ 5,50¢
rHUPH20 platform(1 14,10( 8,63¢ 11,57
Other 2,941 5,64: 5,74%
Total research and development expel $57,56: $51,77¢ $56,61¢

(1) Includes research, development and manufacturipgreses related to our proprietary recombinant hufid20 enzyme, rHUPHZ
These expenses were not designated to a speafjcgmn at the time the expenses were incu

Due to the uncertainty in obtaining the U.S Food Bmug Administration, or FDA, and other regulat@gyprovals, our reliance on th
parties and competitive pressures, we are unaldstimate with any certainty the additional coséswill incur in the continued developmen
our proprietary product candidates for commercaion. However, we expect our research and devedopraxpenses to increase as
product candidates advance into later stagesmitalidevelopment.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of susseand total costs vary widely. We anticipate thatwill make ongoing determinatic
as to which research and development projects tsupuand how much funding to direct to each projecan ongoing basis in respons
existing resource levels, the scientific and chhiprogress of each product candidate, and othekehand regulatory developments. We |
on focusing our resources on those proprietary erthered product candidates that represent the wadsable economic and strate
opportunities.

Product candidate completion dates and costs vignjfisantly for each product candidate and ardialift to estimate. The lengt
process of seeking regulatory approvals and theesplent compliance with applicable regulations ireqthe expenditure of substan
resources. Any failure by us to obtain, or any yétaobtaining, regulatory approvals could causeresearch and development expenditur
increase and, in turn,
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have a material adverse effect on our results efatpns. We cannot be certain when, or if, oudpod candidates will receive regulat
approval or whether any net cash inflow from odreotproduct candidates, or development projectscainmence.

Selling, General and Administrative, or SG&A.Through the second quarter of 2011, our sellingeagps, which include sales .
marketing costs, primarily consisted of compensgaticonsulting fees, costs of market research studitated to our product and proc
candidates. In the third and fourth quarters of 1204e expanded our commercial infrastructure, idiclg hiring of sales and market
management and sales representatives. In addit®ibegan incurring costs related to advertisingketing and logistics services felylene:
recombinant in connection with the reintroductidiHylenexrecombinant in December 2011.

Our general and administrative expenses consistgpily of compensation and other expenses relaiesut corporate operations
administrative employees, accounting and legal, fether professional services expenses, as wellhes expenses associated with operatil
a publicly traded company.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial positand results of operations are based on our tdasad financial statements, wh
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. gepesiatiepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. Pheparation of our consolidal
financial statements requires us to make estimatesjudgments that affect the reported amountsséts, liabilities, revenues and expe
and related disclosure of contingent assets atdifies. We review our estimates on an ongoingiha#/e base our estimates on histol
experience and on various other assumptions thdieleve to be reasonable under the circumstaticesesults of which form the basis
making judgments about the carrying values of assetl liabilities. Actual results may differ froimese estimates under different assump
or conditions. We believe the following accountipglicies to be critical to the judgments and estemaused in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues from product sales and cofiib® agreements. Payments received under coléiberagreements may incl
nonrefundable fees at the inception of the agreé&nboense fees, milestone payments for specifitewements designated in the collabor:
agreements, reimbursements of research and develdpeervices and/or royalties on sales of produewilting from collaborati
arrangements.

We recognize revenue in accordance with the au#tivé guidance on revenue recognition. Revenueedsgnized when all of tl
following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidemdean arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occuaeservices have been rendered; (3
seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determiralzind (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Product Sales

Hylenexrecombinant was approved for marketing by the FBADecember 2005. From 2005 through January 7, 2Bagter had tr
worldwide market rights foiHylenex recombinant under the terms of the Hylenex ParmgrsBaxter commercially launchedylene;
recombinant in October 2009. Howeveétylenex recombinant was voluntarily recalled in May 2010cdse a portion of the prod
manufactured by Baxter was not in compliance whid tequirements of the underlying partnership. &ife January 7, 2011, we and Ba
mutually agreed to terminate the Hylenex Partnprdburing the second quarter of 2011, we submitteddata that the FDA had requeste
support the reintroduction dflylenexrecombinant to the market. The FDA approved tharstied data and granted the reintroductio
Hylenexrecombinant.
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In December 2011, we reintroducklylenexrecombinant to the market, shipped initial stockarders to its wholesaler customers
began promotingdylenexrecombinant through our sales force. We Bigllenexrecombinant in the United States to wholesale phaeutice
distributors, who in-turn sell the product to haafsi and other endser customers. The wholesale distributors talettitthe product, bear t
risk of loss of ownership and have economic sultgtda the inventory. Further, we have no significaloligations for future performance
generate pulthrough sales; however, we do allow the wholesatildutors to return product that is damaged ceneed in error. In additio
we allow for product to be returned beginning signths prior to and ending twelve months followingguct expiration. Given our limiti
experience history of sellinglylenexrecombinant and the lengthy return period, we aulyecannot reliably estimate expected returns
chargebacks dflylenexrecombinant at the time of product received byvihelesale distributors. Therefore, we do not recgnevenue upc
delivery of Hylenexrecombinant to the wholesale distributor until @nt at which we can reliably estimate expecteadpct returns ar
chargebacks from the wholesale distributors. Shipmef Hylenexrecombinant are recorded as deferred revenue ewitllence exists
confirm that pull-through sales to the hospitalsotiter enddser customers have occurred. We recognize revehee the product is sc
through from the distributors to the distributocsistomers. In addition, the costs of manufactutitylenexrecombinant associated with
deferred revenue are recorded as deferred costshate included in inventory, until such time he telated deferred revenue is recogn
We estimate sell-through revenue and certain gms®t sales adjustments based on analysis ofplairty information including informatic
obtained from certain distributors with respectheir inventory levels and sell-through to the lsttors’ customers. At the time the Comp:
can reliably estimate product returns and chardeb&om the wholesalers, we will record a dimee increase in net product sales rew
related to the recognition of product sales reveimegiously deferred.

We recognize product sales allowances as a reductiproduct sales in the same period the relagdnue is recognized. Product s
allowances are based on amounts owed or to beediaim the related sales. These estimates takedn&ideration the terms of our agreem
with wholesaler customers, hospitals and the leg€isventory within the distribution channels thratly result in future discounts taken.
must make significant judgments in determining ¢haliowances. If actual results differ from ouriresttes, we will be required to me
adjustment to these allowances in the future, whalld have an effect on product sales revenukédrperiod of adjustment. Our product s
allowances include:

Distribution Fees  The distribution fees, based on contractuddliermined rates, arise from contractual agreenvemtsave with certa
wholesale distributors for distribution servicesytiprovide with respect tlylenexrecombinant. At the time the sale is made to tispeetiv
wholesale distributors, we record an allowancedistribution fees by reducing our accounts recdivamd deferred revenue associated
such product sales.

Prompt Payment Discounts We offer cash discounts to certain wholes@@idutors as an incentive to meet certain paynems. A
the time the sale is made to the respective whiglediatributors, we record an allowance for disttibn fees by reducing our accot
receivable and deferred revenue associated with gtaziuct sales.

Chargebacks. We provide discounts to certain hospitals. sEhdospitals purchase products from the wholeslgitditors at
discounted price, and the wholesale distributoes ttharge back to us the difference between thremuretail price and the price the hosp
paid for the product. Given our lack of historicales data, we recognize chargebacks in the sariwal fibe related product sales revent
recognized and reduce our accounts receivable @diocgy.

Product Returns The product return reserve is based on managgsrbest estimate of the product sales recognizedvasiue durin
the period that are anticipated to be returned. grbeuct returns reserve is recorded as a reduofipnoduct sales revenue in the same p
the related product sales revenue is recognizedsandluded in accrued expenses.
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Prior to the termination of the Hylenex Partnershifh Baxter in January 2011, we supplied BaxtethwAPI for Hylenexrecombinant :
our fully burdened cost plus a margin. Baxter fillend finishedHylenexrecombinant and held it for subsequent distribytetrwhich time w
ensured it met product specifications and reledasex available for sale. Because of our continimelvement in the development &
production process dflylenexrecombinant, the earnings process was not consideree complete. Accordingly, we deferred the nesean
related product costs on the API tdylenexrecombinant until the product was filled, finish@éckaged and released. Baxter could only r
the API forHylenexrecombinant to us if it did not conform to the dfied criteria set forth in the Hylenex Partnersbipupon termination
such agreement. In addition, we received produsethgpayments upon the saleyfienexrecombinant by Baxter, in accordance with the t
of the Hylenex Partnership. Product-based revemuere recognized as we earned such revenues basBaxber's shipments oflylene:
recombinant to its distributors when such amouatdda:be reasonably estimated.

Revenues under Collaborative Agreements

We entered into license and collaboration agreesnentier which the collaborative partners obtaineddwide exclusive rights for tl
use of our proprietary rHUPH20 enzyme in the dgwalent and commercialization of the partndsglogic compounds. The collaborat
agreements contain multiple elements including efumdable payments at the inception of the arraegeniicense fees, exclusivity fe
payments based on achievement of specified milestatesignated in the collaborative agreements, brgisements of research
development services, payments for supply of rHUPKPRI for the partner and/or royalties on salepmfducts resulting from collaborat
agreements. We analyze each element of the colliberagreements and consider a variety of fadgtodetermining the appropriate methou
revenue recognition of each element.

Prior to the adoption of ASU No. 2009-18ultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements January 1, 2011, in order for a delivered
to be accounted for separately from other deliesain a multipleelement arrangement, the following three critergal ho be met: (i) tf
delivered item had standalone value to the custpfiiethere was objective and reliable evidencdaif value of the undelivered items
(iii) if the arrangement included a general riglfitreturn relative to the delivered item, deliveny merformance of the undelivered items
considered probable arsdibstantially in the control of the vendor. For to#laborative agreements entered into prior tawdanl, 2011, the
was no objective and reliable evidence of fair eadfithe undelivered items. Thus, the delivereen#es did not meet all of the required cril
to be accounted for separately from undeliverechsteTherefore, we recognize revenue on nonrefuedapiront payments and license 1
from these collaborative agreements over the pexiaignificant involvement under the related agneats.

For new collaborative agreements or material madiions of existing collaborative agreements edtér after December 31, 2010,
follow the provisions of ASU No. 2009-13. In ordeer account for the multiplelement arrangements, we identify the deliverabiekidec
within the agreement and evaluate which delivesabdpresent units of accounting. Analyzing therayeanent to identify deliverables requ
the use of judgment, and each deliverable may bebéigation to deliver services, a right or licerteeuse an asset, or another perform
obligation. The deliverables under our collabomatagreements include (i) the license to rHuPH2bBrtelogy, (i) at the collaborats’reques
research and development services which are resabuat contractually determined rates, and (iihat collaboratos request, supply
rHUPH20 API which is reimbursed at our cost plunagin. A delivered item is considered a separateaf accounting when the delivel
item has value to the collaborator on a standal@sts based on the consideration of the relevaig fnd circumstances for each arranget
Factors considered in this determination includerssearch capabilities of the partner and thdahibify of research expertise in this field
the general marketplace.

Arrangement consideration is allocated at the itioef the agreement to all identified units o€aenting based on their relative sel
price. The relative selling price for each delildeais determined using vendor specific objectivielence, or VSOE, of selling price or third-
party evidence of selling price if VSOE does not
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exist. If neither VSOE nor thirgarty evidence of selling price exists, we use loest estimate of the selling price for the delibéza The
amount of allocable arrangement considerationnistdid to amounts that are fixed or determinablee Thnsideration received is alloce
among the separate units of accounting, and thkcapfe revenue recognition criteria are appliecdéch of the separate units. Changes i
allocation of the sales price between delivered amdelivered elements can impact revenue recogniiic do not change the total reve
recognized under any agreement.

Upfront license fee payments are recognized uptinede of the license if facts and circumstancesate that the license has standa
value from the undelivered items, which generallglude research and development services and thefaure of rHUPH20 API, the relat
selling price allocation of the license is equabtexceeds the upfront license fee, persuasivdeage of an arrangement exists, our price t
partner is fixed or determinable and collectabilgyreasonably assured. Upfront license fee paysnaret deferred if facts and circumstai
dictate that the license does not have standalaheevThe determination of the length of the pewdr which to defer revenue is subjec
judgment and estimation and can have an impadi@amount of revenue recognized in a given pe

The terms of our collaborative agreements providerfilestone payments upon achievement of certaueldpment and regulatory eve
and/or specified sales volumes of commercializespets by the collaborator. Prior to our adoptidnti® milestone method of rever
recognition, or the Milestone Method, we recogningitbstone payments upon the achievement of spédaifilestones if: (1) the milestone \
substantive in nature and the achievement of tHestone was not reasonably assured at the incepfidthe agreement, (2) the fees v
nonrefundable and (3) our performance obligatidter ahe milestone achievement would continue tdumeled by our collaborator at a le
comparable to the level before the milestone aement.

Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted on a prospgediasis the Milestone Method. Under the Milestaviethod, we recogni:
consideration that is contingent upon the achieveroéa milestone in its entirety as revenue ingleod in which the milestone is achie
only if the milestone is substantive in its entireh milestone is considered substantive when itsall of the following criteria:

1. The consideration is commensurate with eitherethtity’s performance to achieve the milestone or the ex@ment of the value
the delivered item(s) as a result of a specificonte resulting from the ent’s performance to achieve the milestc

2.  The consideration relates solely to past perforreaacc
3. The consideration is reasonable relative to athefdeliverables and payment terms within the gearent

A milestone is defined as an event (i) that cary drd achieved based in whole or in part on eitherdntitys performance or on t
occurrence of a specific outcome resulting from #eadors performance, (ii) for which there is substantivgcertainty at the date 1
arrangement is entered into that the event wikhdét@eved and (iii) that would result in additiopalyments being due to the vendor.

Reimbursements of research and development semieagcognized as revenue during the period ichvtiie services are performec
long as there is persuasive evidence of an arraagerthe fee is fixed or determinable and collettid the related receivable is proba
Revenue from the manufacture of rHUPH20 API is gecxed when the APl has met all specifications ieglufor the collaborator accepta
and title and risk of loss have transferred to to#aborator. We do not directly control when argllaborator will request research
development services or supply of rHUPH20 API; e¢fene, we cannot predict when we will recognizeerases in connection with research
development services and supply of rHUPH20 API. dk@®s to be received based on sales of licensedupts by our collaboratc
incorporating rHUPH20 will be recognized as earned.

The collaborative agreements typically provide paetners the right to terminate such agreementhialevor on a product-bgroduct o
target-by-target basis at any time upon 90 dayw priitten notice to us. There are
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no performance, cancellation, termination or refymvisions in any of our collaborative agreemetitat contain material financ
consequences to us.

Roche Partnership

In December 2006, we and Roche entered into areagnet under which Roche obtained a worldwide, eskedulicense to develop a
commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 wifhto thirteen Roche target compounds, or the R&eership. Under the terms of
Roche Partnership, Roche paid $20.0 million aséial upfront license fee for the application 6fuPH20 to three prdefined Roche biolog
targets. Due to our continuing involvement obliga (for example, support activities associatedh wituPH20 enzyme), revenues from
upfront payment, exclusive designation fees anduanlicense maintenance fees were deferred anteang recognized over the term of
Roche Partnership. As of December 31, 2011, we tesgved $33 million from Roche, including the $20lion upfront license fee payme
and $13 million in clinical development milestoreyments. If Roche successfully develops all oftkinee pre-defined targets and achieves pre
agreed sales targets, we could receive additioilastone payments of up to $98 million, including 10 $5 million for the achievement
clinical development milestones, up to $12 millfon the achievement of regulatory milestones andou$81 million for the achievement
salesbased milestones. We will earn the next milestagment of $4 million when Roche submits a biold@giense application of one of 1
three predefined targets. Under the terms of the Roche Pesttip, Roche will also pay us royalties on prodiates for these first three targ
For each of the additional targets, Roche may mayutther upfront and milestone payments of up 43.8 million per target, as well
royalties on product sales, for each of the additidgargets. Additionally, Roche will obtain accéssour expertise in developing and appl
rHUPH20 to Roche targets.

Through December 31, 2011, Roche has paid an aggred $20.0 million in connection with its electiof two additional exclusiy
targets and annual license maintenance fees faigheto designate the remaining targets as ex@usrgets. In 2010, Roche paid the an
license maintenance fees on only three of the n@n@eight target slots. In 2011, Roche did not fieeyannual exclusivity maintenance fee
any of the remaining additional target slots. Aesult, Roche currently retains the option to depednd commercialize rHUPH20 with o
three additional targets under the Roche partnesiieement, provided that it continues to pay ahmaintenance fees to us.

We have determined that the clinical and regulatmilestones are substantive; therefore, we expeceectognize such clinical a
regulatory milestone payments as revenue upon \aamient. In addition, we have determined that tHesdzmsed milestone payments
similar to royalty payments and are not considendéstone payments under the Milestone Method wémee recognition; therefore, we \
recognize such saldmsed milestone payments as revenue upon achieverhéime milestone. For the year ended DecembefB11, wi
recognized $5.0 million as revenue under collalgahgreements in accordance with the Milestonehbldtrelated to the achievemen
certain clinical milestones pursuant to the ternfisthe Roche Partnership. We recognized zero an@ #fillion for the years end
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, as revender collaborative agreements upon achievenfergrtain clinical milestones pursu
to the terms of the Roche Partnership.

In early March 2012, we announced that Roche hasited a Line Extension Application to the Europddedicines Agency fi
Herceptin® formulated with rHUPH20 (subcutaneous Herceptirpotd achievement of this milestone, we are entittedeceive a milestol
payment of $4.0 million in the first half of 2012.

Gammagard Partnership

In September 2007, we entered into an agreemehtBeikter, under which Baxter obtained a worldwiebs;lusive license to develop ¢
commercialize product combinations of rHuUPH20, watlturrent Baxter product, GAMMAGARD LIQUID, or tt8ammagard Partnerst
Under the terms of the Gammagard Partnership, Bazid us a nonrefundable upfront payment of $idillon. Due to our continuing
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involvement obligation (for example, support adies associated with rHUPH20 enzyme), the $10.0anibipfront payment was deferred
is being recognized over the term of the Gammadadnership. As of December 31, 2011, we have vede$13 million under tt
Gammagard Partnership, including the $10 millioframt license fee payment and $3 million in regoigt milestone payment. If Bax
successfully receives marketing approval for therlsed product candidate and achievesagreed sales targets, we could receive addi
milestone payments of up to $34 million for theiagbment of salebased milestones. In addition, Baxter will pay toga on the sales, if ar
of the products that result from the collaboratibhe Gammagard Partnership is applicable to bdtlarkd formulation combinations. Bax
assumes all development, manufacturing, clinicagutatory, sales and marketing costs under the Gayard Partnership, while we
responsible for the supply of the rHUPH20 enzyme pérform research and development activities atréguest of Baxter, which
reimbursed by Baxter under the terms of the Gammdad2artnership. In addition, Baxter has certaindpot development al
commercialization obligations in major markets itifged in the Gammagard Partnership.

We have determined that the regulatory milestomesabstantive; therefore, we expect to recognizé segulatory milestone payme
as revenue upon achievement. In addition, we hatermiined that saldsased milestone payments are similar to royaltyrgayts and are n
considered milestone payments under the Milestoathédl of revenue recognition; therefore, will beagnized as revenue upon achievetr
of the milestone. For the year ended December @11,2the Company recognized $3.0 million as revamader collaborative agreement:
accordance with the Milestone Method related todatigievement of regulatory milestones pursuanhéaérms of the Gammagard Partner:
There were no milestone payments recognized asuevender the terms of the Gammagard Partnershipdoyears ended December 31, -
and 2009.

ViroPharma and Intrexon Partnerships

Effective May 10, 2011, we and ViroPharma entergd & collaboration and agreement, under which Rfierma obtained a worldwi
exclusive license for the use of rHUPH20 enzymihéndevelopment of a subcutaneous injectable fatioun of ViroPharma commercialize
product, Cinryze® €1 esterase inhibitor [human]), or the ViroPharragtership. In addition, the license provides ViiaAna with exclusivit
to C1 esterase inhibitor and to the hereditary @dgma indication, along with three additional arplindications. As of December 31, 2(
we have received $12 million from ViroPharma, imithg the $9 million nonrefundable upfront license fpayment and $3 million in clinit
development milestone payment. If ViroPharma swsfodyg develops the licensed product candidate,cagld receive additional milestc
payments of up to $41 million for the achievementievelopment and regulatory milestones. In addjtsp long as the agreement is in ef
we are entitled to receive an annual exclusivigy & $1.0 million commencing on May 10, 2012 andeach anniversary of the effective ¢
of the agreement thereafter until a certain devakt event occurs. ViroPharma is solely respondiri¢he development, manufacturing
marketing of any products resulting from this parthip. We are entitled to receive payments foegaesh and development services and st
of rHUPH20 API if requested by ViroPharma. In aidit we are entitled to receive additional cashnparyts potentially totaling $10.0 milli
for each product for treatment of each of the thaéditional orphan indications upon achievementd@felopment and regulatory milestol
We are also entitled to receive royalties on prodates by ViroPharma. ViroPharma may terminateatp@ement prior to expiration for &
reason on a product-by-product basis upon 90 days written notice to us. Upon any such termioatithe license granted to ViroPharme
total or with respect to the terminated productapglicable) will terminate.

Effective June 6, 2011, we and Intrexon entereal intollaboration and agreement, under which loinesbtained a worldwide exclus
license for the use of rHUPH20 enzyme in the dgaraknt of a subcutaneous injectable formulatiomtfekon’s recombinant human alpha 1-
antitrypsin (rHUA1AT), or the Intrexon Partnershiim addition, the license provides Intrexon withckesivity for a defined indicatic
(Exclusive Field). As of December 31, 2011, we haseeived $9 million in nonrefundable upfront lisenfee payment from Intrexon.
Intrexon successfully develops the licensed prodacididate and achieves the pgreed sales target, we could receive additionkdshoin:
payments of up to $54 million, including $44 mitiiéor the
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achievement of development and regulatory milestarel $10 million for the achievement of a sdlased milestone. In addition, so lon
the agreement is in effect, we are entitled to ivec@n annual exclusivity fee of $1.0 million commsgng on June 6, 2012 and on ¢
anniversary of the effective date of the agreentkeeteafter until a certain development event occimsexon is solely responsible for
development, manufacturing and marketing of anglpets resulting from this partnership. We are kdito receive payments for research
development services and supply of rHUPH20 APEeduested by Intrexon. In addition, we are entitiedeceive additional cash payme
potentially totaling $10.0 million for each produfdr use outside the Exclusive Field upon achievemsd development and regulat
milestones. We are also entitled to receive rogmltn product sales at a royalty rate which ina®agth net sales of product. Intrexon t
terminate the agreement prior to expiration for eegson on a product-by-product basis upon 90 gai® written notice to us. Upon any si
termination, the license granted to Intrexon (italt@r with respect to the terminated product, pgliaable) will terminate. Intrexor’ chie
executive officer and chairman of its board of dioes is also a member of the Company’s boardrefcthrs.

We identified the deliverables at the inceptiontbé ViroPharma and Intrexon Partnerships which thee license, research ¢
development services and API supply. We have détexdnthat the license, research and developmenicesrand API supply individual
represent separate units of accounting, becausedediverable has standalone value. The estimaiidg prices for these units of accoun:
was determined based on market conditions, thestefncomparable collaborative arrangements forlamtéchnology in the pharmaceuti
and biotech industry and entigpecific factors such as the terms of our previcolaborative agreements, our pricing practices ncing
objectives and the nature of the research and dewednt services to be performed for the partneh® arrangement consideration
allocated to the deliverables based on the rela@ling price method. Based on the results of analysis, we determined that the upf
payment was earned upon the granting of the wodeéwixclusive right to our technology to the collator in both the ViroPharma Partners
and Intrexon Partnership. However, the amount loicable arrangement consideration is limited to ant® that are fixed or determinal
therefore, the amount allocated to the license amdg to the extent of cash received. As a resutrecognized the $9.0 million upfront lice
fee received under the ViroPharma Partnership &@ &illion upfront license fee received under thigexon Partnership as revenues u
collaborative agreements upon the receipt of spétont license fees for the year ended Decembe2@11.

We will recognize the exclusivity fees as revenuodar collaborative agreements when they are eaWedwill recognize reimburseme
for research and development services as revender wollaborative agreements as the related senace delivered. We will recogn
payments from sales of API as revenue under caltdlve agreements when such APl has met all redgipecifications by the partners and
related title and risk of loss and damages haveegoh# the partners. We cannot predict the timihdetdivery of research and developir
services and API as they are at the partners’ stgue

We are eligible to receive additional cash paymeptsn the achievement by the partners of specif@ctlopment, regulatory and sales-
based milestones. We have determined that eadteafdvelopment and regulatory milestones is sutretantherefore, we expect to recogr
such development and regulatory milestone paymasiteevenue under collaborative agreements uporeaahient in accordance with
Milestone Method. In addition, we have determineat the salebased milestone payment is similar to a royaltynpexyt and is not considel
milestone payment under the Milestone Method oknewe recognition; therefore, we will recognize Hadesbased milestone payment
revenue upon achievement of the milestone becaesbawe no future performance obligations associaféil the milestone. For the ye
ended December 31, 2011, we recognized the $3l@mgayment from ViroPharma as revenue under bolative agreements in accords
with the Milestone Method related to the achievenoéra regulatory milestone pursuant to the terfrth® ViroPharma Partnership.
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Hylenex Partnership

Under the terms of the Hylenex Partnership, Bapt@d us a nonrefundable upfront payment of $10.0iamiin 2007. Due to ot
continuing involvement obligations (for exampleppart activities associated with rHuPh20 enzymieg, $10.0 million upfront payment w
deferred and was being recognized over the tertheoHylenex Partnership.

Effective January 7, 2011, we and Baxter mutualiyead to terminate the Hylenex Partnership andassociated agreements.
termination of these agreements does not affecbttter relationships between the parties, includiregapplication of our Enhanze technol
to Baxters GAMMAGARD LIQUID. On July 18, 2011, we and Baxtentered into an agreement, or the Transition Ages#, setting fort
certain rights, data and assets to be transfeyd@blster to us during a transition period. Effeetiuly 18, 2011, we had no future performi
obligations to Baxter in connection with the Hylgrfeartnership. Therefore, we recognized the unareattdeferred revenue of approxima
$9.3 million relating to the prepaid produmised payments and the unamortized deferred revaapproximately $7.8 million relating
deferred upfront payment from the Hylenex Partriprak revenues under collaborative agreement$iéoye¢ar ended December 31, 2011.

As a result of the termination of the Hylenex Parship, at December 31, 2010 we had recharactediefdred revenue of approximai
$991,000 as a reserve for product returnsHglenexrecombinant API previously delivered to Baxter thatuld be returned, or Deliver
Products. Pursuant to the terms of the TransitigreAment, Baxter no longer had the right to rethenDelivered Products. Accordingly,
recharacterized the reserve for product returnghi®Delivered Products of approximately $991,a90urrent deferred revenue and recogr
such deferred revenue as product sales reventleefgiear ended December 31, 2011.

Share-Based Payments

We use the fair value method to account for shameth payments in accordance with the authoritagividance for sharbase:
compensation. The fair value of each option awardstimated on the date of grant using a Black-I8sierton option pricing model,
Black-Scholes model, that uses assumptions regardingrdoeruof complex and subjective variables. Theséakibrs include, but are r
limited to, our expected stock price volatility taal and projected employee stock option exercidebiors, riskiree interest rate and expec
dividends. Expected volatilities are based on tiséotical volatility of our common stock. The exped term of options granted is basec
analyses of historical employee termination rates @ption exercises. The risfee interest rates are based on the U.S. Tregseid/in effec
at the time of the grant. Since we do not expegiaty dividends on our common stock in the foreskeefalure, we estimated the dividend y
to be 0%. Forfeitures are estimated at the timgraht and revised, if necessary, in subsequenbgeif actual forfeitures differ from thc
estimates. We estimate pre-vesting forfeituresdaseour historical experience.

If factors change and we employ different assummgtifor determination of fair value in future pespdhe shardased compensati
expense that we record may differ significantlyrfravhat we have recorded in the current period. &leer high degree of subjectivity invol
when using option pricing models to estimate she®ed compensation. Certain shbased payments, such as employee stock options
expire worthless or otherwise result in zero irgignvalue as compared to the fair values originafifimated on the grant date and report:
our consolidated financial statements. Alternativeblues may be realized from these instrumerds dhe significantly in excess of the
values originally estimated on the grant date amported in our consolidated financial statementser& is currently no markéiase
mechanism or other practical application to vettig reliability and accuracy of the estimates stémgnfrom these valuation models, no
there a means to compare and adjust the estinmtestual values. Although the fair value of empkgharebased awards is determinec
accordance with authoritative guidance on stockpmmmsation using an optigricing model, that value may not be indicativetted fair valu
observed in a willing buyer/willing seller markeansaction.
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The above listing is not intended to be a comprsivenlist of all of our accounting policies. In nyacases, the accounting treatment
particular transaction is specifically dictatedUys. GAAP. There are also areas in which our mamagés judgment in selecting any avails
alternative would not produce a materially diffaregsult. Please see our audited consolidated dinbstatements and notes thereto includ
Part II, Item 8 of this report, which contain acoting policies and other disclosures required b§..GAAP.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include sataribbenefits, facilities and other overhead expgndical trials, researctelatec
manufacturing services, contract services and athtside expenses. Research and development espamseharged to operations as the'
incurred. Advance payments, including nonrefundabteunts, for goods or services that will be usedeadered for future research .
development activities are deferred and capitalif&dch amounts will be recognized as an expenskearelated goods are delivered or
related services are performed or such time tleaCibmpany does not expect the goods to be deliversdrvices to be rendered.

Milestone payments that we make in connection itlicensed technology or product candidates are esqekns incurred when ther:
uncertainty in receiving future economic benefits the licensed technology or product candidas.consider the future economic bent
from the licensed technology or product candidate®e uncertain until such licensed technology mrdpct candidates are approved
marketing by regulatory bodies such as the FDA benvother significant risk factors are abated. M@naent has viewed future econo
benefits for all of our licensed technology or proticandidates to be uncertain and has expensse #éimounts for accounting purposes.

Payments in connection with our clinical trials afeen made under contracts with multiple contrasiearch organizations that conc
and manage clinical trials on our behalf. The firiahterms of these agreements are subject to iaigot and vary from contract to contr
and may result in uneven payment flows. Genertlligse agreements set forth the scope of work feefermed at a fixed fee, unit price or
a time-andmaterial basis. Payments under these contractsndepe factors such as the successful enrollmemteatment of patients or t
completion of other clinical trial milestones. Exges related to clinical trials are accrued basedw estimates and/or representations
service providers regarding work performed, inahgdactual level of patient enroliment, completidipatient studies and clinical trial progre
Other incidental costs related to patient enrolltggrtreatment are accrued when reasonably celfaime contracted amounts are modified
instance, as a result of changes in the clinidal protocol or scope of work to be performed), medify our accruals accordingly or
prospective basis. Revisions in scope of contreetcharged to expense in the period in which tlegsfehat give rise to the revision becc
reasonably certain. Because of the uncertaintyoskible future changes to the scope of work iniadintrials contracts, we are unable
guantify an estimate of the reasonably likely effe€ any such changes on our consolidated resiltsperations or financial positic
Historically, we have had no material changes indunical trial expense accruals that would haeg la material impact on our consolid:
results of operations or financial position.

Inventories, Net

Inventories, net are stated at lower of cost orketarCost, which includes amounts related to malterand costs incurred by
Company’s contract manufacturers, is determined first-in, firstout basis. Inventories are reviewed periodicallyfotential excess, dated
obsolete status. Management evaluates the carmgilug of inventories on a regular basis, taking iatcount such factors as historical
anticipated future sales compared to quantitiehiamd, the price it expects to obtain for produntshieir respective markets compared
historical cost and the remaining shelf life of demn hand.
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Raw materials inventories consist of raw matenigisd in the manufacture of the Company’s bulk dnagerial forHylenexrecombinar
product. Work-in-process inventories consist ofpineessHylenex recombinant. Finished goods inventories consisfiithed Hylene;
recombinant product.

As a result of the termination of the Hylenex Parship in January 2011, we recorded a reserve rfeenitory obsolescence
approximately $166,000 and $875,000 fylenexrecombinant API for the years ended December 311 2thd 2010, respectively. As
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the reserve for inmgatosolescence was approximately zero and $875r86pectively.

We expense costs relating to the purchase and gtiodwf pre-approval inventories for which theesalse is prepproval products
research and development expense in the periodréttuntil such time as we believe future commdizzgon is probable and future econo
benefit is expected to be realized. For produds hlave been approved by the FDA, inventories usetinical trials are expensed at the t
the inventories are packaged for the clinical trRior to receiving approval from the FDA or comgdde regulatory agencies in fore
countries, costs related to purchases of the ABIthe manufacturing of the product candidate aoerted as research and developr
expense. All direct manufacturing costs incurragdradipproval are capitalized into inventories.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsiverlist of all of our accounting policies. In nyacases, the accounting treatment
particular transaction is specifically dictatedys. GAAP. There are also areas in which our mamagé’s judgment in selecting any avails
alternative would not produce a materially diffeéregsult. Please see our audited consolidated diabstatements and notes thereto includ
Part I, Item 8 of this report, which contain aconting policies and other disclosures required bg..GAAP.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2011 andd201

Product Sales, Net— Product sales, net were $1.8 million for the yeatezl December 31, 2011 compared to $896,000 foraheende
December 31, 2010. Product sales for 2011 inclibdedecognition of approximately $991,000 of deddrrevenue related to API fetylene;
recombinant previously delivered to Baxter, becahgeearnings process related to these product sale completed in 2011. Excluding
recognition of the $991,000 of deferred revenue, pmaduct sales, net in 2011 would have been $885,Based on our reintroduction
Hylenexrecombinant in December 2011, we expect produetdalincrease in the future.
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Revenues Under Collaborative Agreements Revenues under collaborative agreements for thesyeaded December 31, 2011
2010 were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31 Increase (Decrease
2011 2010 Amount Perceni
Upfront payments and amortization of deferred upfrbcense fee
and produc-based payment
Baxter $ 17,62: $ 1,02¢ $16,59¢ 1621%
ViroPharma 9,00( — 9,00( N/A
Intrexon 9,00( — 9,00 N/A
Roche 1,96¢ 1,98t (16) (1%)
Other 71 71 N/A
37,66 3,00¢ 34,65: 1152%
Milestone payment:
Roche 5,00(C — 5,00(C N/A
Baxter 3,00 — 3,00 N/A
ViroPharma 3,00( — 3,00( N/A
11,00( — 11,00( N/A
Reimbursements for research and development ser
Baxter 1,681 4,24¢ (2,564 (60%)
Roche 3,41¢ 5,16t (1,749 (34%)
ViroPharma 432 — 432 N/A
Others 59 31C (259 (81%)
5,58¢ 9,72( (4,137) (43%)
Total revenues under collaborative agreem $ 54,25( $ 12,72¢ $41,52! 32€%

Pursuant to the terms of the Transition Agreemesttveen us and Baxter, signed on July 18, 2011, awe mo future performan
obligations to Baxter in connection with the HylgrRgartnership. Accordingly, we recognized approxeha$9.3 million related to the deferi
prepaid producbased payments and approximately $7.8 million eelab the deferred upfront payment under the Hydpartnership for t
year ended December 31, 2011. For the year endeeénil®er 31, 2011, we received a total of $18.0 omllin license fees under -
partnerships with ViroPharma and Intrexon. The Camypalso received $11.0 million in milestone paytaefiom the partners up
achievement of certain clinical and regulatory stibmes. The decrease in reimbursements for resaatcbevelopment services was due t
decrease in services requested by the partnersaRdsand development services rendered by uslaifted our partners are at the reque:

the partners; therefore, the amount of future reesmelated to reimbursable research and develdmseerices is uncertain. We expect the non-

reimbursement revenues under our collaborativeeageats to continue to fluctuate in future periodsda on our partnersbilities to mee
various clinical and regulatory milestones settfant such agreements and our abilities to obtaim ealaborative agreements.

Cost of Product Sales— Cost of product sales were $258,000 for the yede@mecember 31, 2011 compared to $985,000 foyeh
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease of $727¢00D4%, was primarily due to a reserve for inveptobsolescence of $875,000
Hylenexrecombinant APl in 2010 in connection with the teration of the Hylenex Partnership in January 2@4dsed on the reintroduction
Hylenexrecombinant in December 2011, we expect cost afymbsales to increase in future periods.
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Research and Developmenrt Research and development expenses were $57.6mfiliche year ended December 31, 2011 com|
to $51.8 million for the year ended December 31,20rhe increase of $5.8 million, or 11%, was pritgadue to a $4.7 million increase
manufacturing activities and a $6.8 million increas clinical trial activities mainly supporting oultrafast insulin and PEGPH20 progra
These increases were partially offset by a $4.8anibdecrease in compensation costs mainly dukeaeduction in force in October 2010.
expect research and development costs to incrdigétlysin future periods as we continue with odincal trial programs and continue
develop and manufacture our product candidates.

Selling, General and Administrative— SG&A expenses were $18.1 million for the year enBedember 31, 2011 compared to $
million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Tteeaase of $3.0 million, or 20%, was primarily dodncreases of $893,000 in marke
expenses, $704,000 in market research activitieb $815,000 in professional fees. In connection wilie reintroduction ofHylene:
recombinant in December 2011, we expect SG&A exgtsincrease in future periods as we plan teas® sales and marketing activities.

Share-Based Compensation- Total compensation cost for our sham@sed payments was $5.6 million for the year ergecember 3.
2011 compared to $4.9 million for the year endedddeber 31, 2010. Research and development expercseded shardased compensati
of approximately $2.8 million and $2.5 million in021 and 2010, respectively. SG&A expenses incluslearebased compensation
approximately $2.8 million and $2.3 million in 20Bhd 2010, respectively. As of December 31, 20816 #illion of total unrecogniz:
compensation costs related to non-vested sharetaassrds is expected to be recognized over a wedighterage period of 2.8 years.

Other Income, net— Other income, net for the year ended December @10 2onsisted of ontme grants of approximately $978,(
received in 2010 under the Qualifying TherapeutiscDvery Project program administered under secRi of the Internal Revenue Code
QTDP. Other income, net also included interest imef $64,000 for the year ended December 31, 20tipared to $49,000 for the y
ended December 31, 2010. The increase in intemestrie was primarily due to higher average cashcasti equivalent balances and hi
interest rates in 2011 as compared to the samedoieri2010.

Net Loss— Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2011 @wa83%nillion, or $0.19 per common share, compaoe$53.2 million, @
$0.56 per common share for the year ended DeceBihe?010. The decrease in net loss was primarig/ tduan increase in revenues ul
collaborative agreements resulting from $18.0 onillin upfront license fees we received from theoRimarma and Intrexon Partnerships
$11.0 million in milestone payments from Roche, Baxand ViroPharma which were earned in 2011. Twease was also due to
recognition of deferred upfront license fees, def@mproducthased payments and deferred product sales in coomedth the termination «
the Hylenex Partnership totaling $18.1 million i@12. The decrease in net loss was offset in padrbincrease in operating expenses ¢
decrease in other income in 2011 as compared teatme period in 2010.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2010 and200

Product Sales— Product sales were $896,000 for the year ended rbeme31, 2010 compared to $971,000 for the yeaea
December 31, 2009. The decrease of $75,000, om@& primarily due to the decreases in sales of CasetandHylenexrecombinant.
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Revenues Under Collaborative Agreements Revenues under collaborative agreements for thesyeaded December 31, 2010
2009 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Increase (Decrease
2010 2009 Amount Perceni
Upfront payments and amortization of deferred upmifro
license fees and prod-based payment
Baxter $ 1,02 $ 1,19 $ (169 (14%)
Roche 1,98¢ 1,94¢ 40 2%
3,00¢ 3,13¢ (129 (4%)
Milestone payments
Roche — 7,00C (7,000 N/A
— 7,00( (7,000 N/A
Reimbursements for research and development ser
Baxter 4,24¢ 1,14C 3,104 272%
Roche 5,16¢ 1,422 3,74: 262%
Others 31C — 31C N/A
9,71¢ 2,56z 7,157 27<%
Total revenues under collaborative agreem $ 12,72¢ $ 12,70( $ 28 0%

Cost of Product Sales— Cost of product sales were $985,000 for the yedeérDecember 31, 2010 compared to $312,000 foyeh
ended December 31, 2009. The increase was prindhréyto a reserve for inventory obsolescence o5 8D forHylenexrecombinant API i
2010 in connection with the termination of the Hyd& Partnership in January 2011. The increase fiseatan part by the decrease in the
of product sales due to a decrebis#enexrecombinant API sales in 2010.

Research and Development Research and development expenses were $51.8mfiliche year ended December 31, 2010 com|
to $56.6 million for the year ended December 3)20rhe decrease of $4.8 million, or 8%, was prilpatue to a $3.4 million decrease
activities supporting our PEGPH20 program mainlhnofacturing for clinical trial material and a $2illion decrease in activities support
the ultrafast insulin program mainly due to the ptetion of several clinical trials in early 2010hd decrease was partially offset by a
million increase in activities supporting the HI®L program. In connection with the reduction ie ttorkforce in October 2010, we incurre
onetime charge for separation costs in the fourth gmaof 2010 which was mostly offset by reduced cengation expenses during
quarter.

Selling, General and Administrative— SG&A expenses were $15.1 million for the year enBedember 31, 2010 compared to $
million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Share-Based Compensation- Total compensation cost for our sham@sed payments was $4.9 million for the year ergecember 3.
2010 compared to $4.5 million for the year endedddeber 31, 2009. Research and development expercseded shardased compensati
of approximately $2.5 million and $2.4 million in020 and 2009, respectively. SG&A expenses incluslearebased compensation
approximately $2.3 million and $2.1 million in 20Hhd 2009, respectively. As of December 31, 20808 illion of total unrecogniz:
compensation costs related to nasted stock options and restricted stock awardgpected to be recognized over a weighted avgragec
of 2.5 years.

Other Income, net— Other income consisted of otiee grants of approximately $978,000 received @@ under the Qualifyir
Therapeutic Discovery Project program administemeder section 48D of the Internal Revenue CodeQ®bP. Other income, net a
included interest income of $49,000 for the yeatesh
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December 31, 2010 compared to $101,000 for the ¢reded December 31, 2009. The decrease in infexEsne was primarily due to low
interest rates and lower average cash and cashagenii balances in 2010 as compared to the sanwdper2009.

Net Loss— Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2010 waL3$nillion, or $0.56 per common share, compaoe$58.4 million, o
$0.67 per common share for the year ended Dece®ih@009. The decrease in net loss was primarié/tdia decrease wperating expens
and receipt of QTDP grants in 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existiogsh and cash equivalents. As of December 31,,204 had cash and cash equival
of approximately $52.8 million. On February 15, 20tve sold approximately 7.8 million shares of oammon stock at a public offering pr
of $10.61 per share, generating approximately $81lBn in proceeds after deducting the undenwmgtdiscounts and commissions but be
any deductions for expenses. We will continue teehgignificant cash requirements to support prodeselopment activities. The amount
timing of cash requirements will depend on the sascof our clinical development programs, regujaimmd market acceptance, and
resources we devote to research and other comriieatian activities.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsaleill be sufficient to fund our operatiorier at least the next twelve mont
Currently, we anticipate total net cash burn ofragpnately $50.0 to $55.0 million for the year emgliDecember 31, 2012, depending or
progress of various preclinical and clinical pragsa the timing of our manufacturing scale up arabhievement of various milestones u
our existing collaborative agreements. We do npeekour revenues to be sufficient to fund openatimr several years. We expect to fund
operations going forward with existing cash resesr@nticipated revenues from our existing collatbons and cash that we may raise thrt
future transactions. We may finance future cashisi¢glerough any one of the following financing védsc (i) the public offering of securitie
(i) new collaborative agreements; (iii) expansiarsrevisions to existing collaborative relationshi (iv) private financings; and/or (v) otl
equity or debt financings.

We are currently a “Well-Known Seasoned Issuand may file automatic shelf registration staterseattany time with the SEC.
February 2011, we filed an automatic shelf regigtnastatement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 339444) with the SEC, which allows
from time to time, to offer and sell equity, debtarities and warrants to purchase any of suchrisiesy either individually or in units. We m
utilize this universal shelf in the future to rais&pital to fund the continued development of owrdpct candidates, the commercializatio
our products or for other general corporate purpose

Our existing cash and cash equivalents may notbguate to fund our operations until we become flashpositive, if ever. We cann
be certain that additional financing will be avhlwhen needed or, if available, financing willdd#ained on favorable terms. If we are un
to raise sufficient funds, we may need to delaglesback or eliminate some or all of our researath development programs, delay the lat
of our product candidates, if approved, and/orroestire our operations. If we raise additional feify issuing equity securities, substa
dilution to existing stockholders could result.we raise additional funds by incurring debt finamgi the terms of the debt may invc
significant cash payment obligations, the issuarfagarrants that may ultimately dilute existingatbolders when exercised and covenants
may restrict our ability to operate our business.
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Cash Flows
Operating Activities

Net cash used in operations was $34.4 million dutire year ended December 31, 2011 compared td $diflion of net cash used
operations during the year ended December 31, ZI}i8.change was primarily due to the decreaseetriass of $33.5 million adjusted
non-cash items including stoddased compensation and depreciation and amortizatiaddition to changes in working capital. Therdase i
net loss after adjustments for noash items was mainly due to the receipts of $tdlllon in upfront license fees from the ViroPharmaac
Intrexon Partnerships and milestone payments tgtaiil1.0 million received under the collaboratiegtpership; offset in part by an increas
R&D and SG&A expenses.

Net cash used in operations was $45.4 million dutire year ended December 31, 2010 compared td $dillion of net cash used
operations during the year ended December 31, 2IiS.change was primarily due to a reduction irtrgaships payments of approxima
$13.5 million and an increase of approximately $8iflion cash payments for prepaid expenses andrathsets in 2010; partially offset k
decrease in operating expenses of approximate®¥ fdllion and a decrease of approximately $5.4iamllin cash payments for accot
payable and accrued expenses. In addition, wevext&978,000 in QTDP grants offsetting cash usespirating activities for the year en
December 31, 2010.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $829M@ing the year ended December 31, 2011 compar$648,000 during the year ent
December 31, 2010. This was primarily due to aneiase in purchases of property and equipment d@0ig .

Net cash used in investing activities was $647,800ng the year ended December 31, 2010 compar&d.® million during the ye
ended December 31, 2009. This was primarily duedecrease in purchases of property and equipnueimgc2010.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $#illion during the year ended December 31, 2011 pamed to $61.8 million during t
year ended December 31, 2010. Net cash providdishdnycing activities during 2011 consisted of pmde from stock option exercist

Net cash provided by financing activities was $6mi8ion during the year ended December 31, 2010 mared to $45.4 million durii
the year ended December 31, 2009. Net cash prowgdithancing activities during 2010 primarily cested of net proceeds of $60.0 mill
from the sale of our common stock in September 20 $1.8 million from stock option exercises. Mash provided by financing activit
during 2009 primarily consisted of net proceed$2#.2 million from the sale of our common stockKlime 2009 and $7.2 million from warr
and stock option exercises.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2011, we did not have any w@tatiips with unconsolidated entities or financialtperships, such as entities o
referred to as structured finance or special puematities, which would have been establishedHerpurpose of facilitating otfalance she
arrangements or other contractually narrow or Behipurposes. In addition, we did not engage inirigadctivities involving norexchang
traded contracts. As such, we are not materialhos&d to any financing, liquidity, market or credk that could arise if we had engage
these relationships.
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Contractual Obligations
As of December 31, 2011, future minimum payments ulwder our contractual obligations are as follGwshousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations(1) Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Operating leases(2) $10,14¢ $ 1,47( $ 3,331 $ 3,47 $ 1,87(C
License payment 1,20 30C 60C 30C —
Purchase obligations(s
Research and development activities, excluding
manufacturing activitie 5,48t 5,48t — — —
Manufacturing activitie! 10,21+« 10,21 — — —
Selling, general and administrative activit 1,822 1,822 — — —
Total purchase obligatior 17,52 17,52: — — —
Total $28,86¢ $19,29: $ 3,931 $3,77¢ $ 1,87(C

(1) Does not include milestone or contractual payméligations if the amount and timing of such obligas are unknown or uncerta
(2) Includes operating expenses of lease offices asghreh facilities
(3) Includes no-cancelable and cancelable contracts made in theat@ourse of our busines
As of December 31, 2011, we had no long-term debapital lease obligations.
Our future capital uses and requirements depentuarerous forwardeoking factors. These factors may include, butraselimited to
the following:
« the rate of progress and cost of research and @j@veint activities
» the number and scope of our research activi
« the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending ancbecihg any patent claims and other intellectuaperty rights;

» our ability to establish and maintain product dissny and development collaborations, including ecgl manufacturing costs for ¢
partner’ product candidate:

» the amount of product sales Hylenexrecombinant

« the costs of obtaining and validating additionahofacturers of Hylenex recombina

 the effect of competing technological and marketettgpments

 the terms and timing of any collaborative, licegsamd other arrangements that we may establish
» the extent to which we acquire o-license new products, technologies or busine:

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Aduptdf Recent Accounting Pronouncemeansd Pending Adoption
Recent Accounting Pronounceme, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateménts discussion of recent accounting pronounces
and their effect, if any, on the Company.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our primary exposure to market risk is interesbime sensitivity, which is affected by changes i general level of U.S. interest ra
particularly because the majority of our investrnsearte in shorterm marketable securities. The primary objectiewr investment activities
to preserve principal while at the same time mazing the income we receive from our investmentseit significantly increasing risk. So
of the securities may be subject to market risks Theans that a change in prevailing interest natag cause the value of the investmel
fluctuate. For example, if we purchase a secuhifif tvas issued with a fixed interest rate and tieealing interest rate later rises, the valu
our investment will probably decline. To minimizad risk, we typically invest all, or substantialit, of our cash in money market funds
invest primarily in government securities. Our igtreent policy also permits investments in a varatgecurities including commercial pa
and government and ngovernment debt securities. In general, money ndudkels are not subject to market risk becausentieeest paid ¢
such funds fluctuates with the prevailing intenegé. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, we dichage any holdings of derivative financ
or commodity instruments, or any foreign currenepaminated transactions, and all of our cash ast eguivalents were in money ma
mutual funds and other investments that we belieuse highly liquid. If a 10% change in interesesawere to have occurred on Decembe
2011 and 2010, this change would not have had arrabeffect on the fair value of our investmenttfiio as of that date nor our net loss
the years then ended. Due to the short holdinggerf our investments, we have concluded that wealdave a material financial market
exposure.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Our financial statements are annexed to this regeginning on page F-1.

ltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtemtesigned to ensure that information requioddet disclosed in our Exchange
reports is recorded, processed, summarized andteepwithin the timelines specified in the Secestiand Exchange Commissisiules an
forms, and that such information is accumulated eahmunicated to our management, including our Chiecutive Officer and Chi
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timekgcision regarding required disclosure. In desigrEind evaluating the disclosure controls
procedures, management recognized that any comnolgprocedures, no matter how well designed aedatgd, can only provide reason:
assurance of achieving the desired control objestiand in reaching a reasonable level of assurameagement necessarily was require
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefiationship of possible controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participationoaf management, including our principal executfficer and principal financi
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such term is definddr Rule 134:5(e) promulgated unc
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendesedan this evaluation, our principal executivaceif and our principal financial offic
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective as of the end of the period @véry this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In connection with the reintroduction éfylenexrecombinant to the market in December 2011, we himxeloped additional interr
controls over our processes for recognition of pobdsales revenue and cost of product sales arehiomy related tdHylenexrecombinan
Except for the additional internal controls relatedHylenexrecombinant activities, there have been no sigmificchanges in our inter
control over financial reporting that occurred digrthe quarter ended December 31, 2011 that haterially affected, or are reasonably lik
to materially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraanhtaining adequate internal control over finahoggorting. Internal control ov
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)daRule 15d15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange #&ci934 as a proce
designed by, or under the supervision of, our @pacexecutive and principal financial officers amffected by our board of directc
management and other personnel, to provide reakoaasurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and oheduthose policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtde detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@actions and dispositions of our as

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactionseemeded as necessary to permit preparation ohéiah statements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, tnrad receipts and expenditures are being madeiom@lgcordance with authorizatic
of our management and directors; i

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, asedisposition of our assets t
could have a material effect on our financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détemisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of tunah control over financial reporting as of Detem31, 2011. In making tt
assessment, our management used the criteriardebfothe Committee of Sponsoring Organizationthef Treadway Commission (COSO
Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management concludeagshaft December 31, 2011, our internal control diemcial reporting is effecti
based on those criteria.

The independent registered public accounting finat taudited the consolidated financial statememas are included in this Annt
Report on Form 16 has issued an audit report on the effectivenéssininternal control over financial reporting asDecember 31, 201
The report appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited Halozyme Therapeutics, manternal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2011, based on crit
established in Internal Control 4ategrated Framework issued by the Committee offSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commis
(the COSO criteria). Halozyme Therapeutics, kananagement is responsible for maintaining effecinternal control over financ
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectgsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management’
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@yr responsibility is to express an opinion om ¢bmpanys internal control over financ
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetaadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethettigleinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etéstting and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedwasge considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is apess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregshe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantie generally accepted accounting princig
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsddose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and dispositions of the assettseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assul
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgr@paration of financial statements in accor@gamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dcompany are being made only in accordance withogéizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanasisurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtsver financial reporting may not prevent or deteisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdéqaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. maiméad, in all material respects, effective internahtcol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2011, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Halozyme Therapeudtic. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, anddlaed consolidated statement:
operations, cash flows and stockholdexguity for each of the three years in the periodeenDecember 31, 2011 of Halozyme Therape!
Inc. and our report dated March 9, 2012 expreseathgualified opinion thereon.

/s Ernst & Young LLF

San Diego, California
March 9, 2012
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Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverrce

The information required by this item regardingedtors is incorporated by reference to our DefiritProxy Statement (thePfoxy
Statement”}to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiaisin connection with our 2011 Annual MeetingStbckholders under t
heading “Election of Directors.The information required by this item regarding @hiance with Section 16(a) of the Securities ExgeAc
of 1934, as amended, is incorporated by referemdieet information under the caption “Compliancehwitection 16(a) of the Exchange Atb”
be contained in the Proxy Statement. The informmatexquired by this item regarding our code of ethigincorporated by reference to
information under the caption “Code of Conduct &tHics” to be contained in our Proxy Statement. The infdionarequired by this ite
regarding our audit committee is incorporated bignence to the information under the caption “Bodtdetings and CommitteesAddit
Committee”to be contained in our Proxy Statement. The infeionarequired by this item regarding material chesgf any, to the process
which stockholders may recommend nominees to oardoof directors is incorporated by reference wittffiormation under the captioBbarc
Meetings and Committees—Nominating and GovernaraarGittee” to be contained in our Proxy Statement.

Executive Officers

Gregory |. Frost, Ph.D. (40)President, Chief Executive Officer and Director.. Brost was named HalozynsePresident and Ch
Executive Officer in December 2010. Dr. Frost wase\WPresident and Chief Scientific Officer from 83&rough December 2010. He brot
the founding enzyme technologies to Halozyme in9188d has spent more than fifteen years conductisgarch on the extracellular mat
Over his eleven years at Halozyme, Dr. Frost hdshe R&D efforts from discovery through FDA appab¥or a number of biotechnolo
products. Prior to Halozyme, he was a ScientighatSidney Kimmel Cancer Center. In the DepartnuériPathology at the University
California, San Francisco, his work led directlytbe@ purification, cloning, and characterizationtteé human hyaluronidase gene family,
the discovery of several metabolic disorders. Hedwthored multiple scientific pesgviewed and invited articles in the hyaluronidfiskel anc
is an inventor on several key patents. Dr. Frost imember of the American Association for CanceseRech and the American Society
Clinical Oncology and he is registered to pracbegore the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. DostFearned his B.A. in biochemistry
molecular biology from the University of Californi&anta Cruz, and his Ph.D. in the Department tidkegy at the University of Californi
San Francisco.

Kurt A. Gustafson (44, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Gafson joined Halozyme in 2009 with extensive operatl ant
managerial experience in financial planning andyaig accounting, treasury and international resfality gained during his 18 years w
Amgen Inc. In his most recent position, as ViceskRient, Manufacturing Finance, Mr. Gustafson hamhrcial responsibility for each
Amgen’s worldwide manufacturing sites and the Cost ActiognGroup. He was responsible for the financialnpling, cost accounting, cap
planning and procurement activities at each ofdhgtes from 2006 to 2009. From 2004 to 2006, Mrst@fson was Vice President, Fina
and CFO of Amgen International, responsible foraficial planning and accounting for EM operations. Stationed in Switzerle
Mr. Gustafson was responsible for Amgeiriternational Operations, which spanned EurdpeMiddle East, Eastern Europe, North Africa
Australia. From 2000 to 2004, Mr. Gustafson heagiedCorporate Financial Planning and Analysis, mesently as Vice President, Corpo
Financial Planning & Analysis. In this role, he wesponsible for worldwide consolidation of the gany’'s forecasts. He also led
Corporate Business Analysis group, which providetarfcial and decision support to the Product Sgsat€eams. From 1991 to 20
Mr. Gustafson held multiple positions in Amgen’sasury group with increasing levels of respongihilnost recently serving as
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Treasurer, where he oversaw the tax departmentl@dustomer finance group. Prior to joining Amgsfr, Gustafson worked in pub
accounting as Staff Auditor at Laventhol & HorwathChicago. He earned a B.A. in accounting fromtNdtark University in Chicago and
M.B.A from University of California, Los Angeles.

James P. Shaffer (45)Vice President, Chief Commercial Officer. Mr. J@rShaffer joined Halozyme in 2011 with over 23rgea
Commercial Operations experience. From 2007 to 2B&iwvas at Clinical Data, Inc. where he was resjbbe for Marketing, Sales, Busin
Development and Manufacturing with his most reqemdition as Executive Vice President and Chief Cemuial Officer. Prior to Clinici
Data, he worked at New River Pharmaceuticals, RielstPharmaceuticals, InterMune and GSK. He hasegapce in both large and sn
pharmaceutical companies in the areas of NeurolBgychiatry, Oncology, Gl and Pulmonary Care wjhcsalized experience in develop
and marketing genetic tests in Oncology and Cawdiol Mr. Shaffer received his M.B.A. in MarketingdaB.S. in Economics from Ohio St
University.

H. Michael Shepard, Ph.D. (62)ice President, Chief Scientific Officer. Dr. Shegpgoined Halozyme in 2009 as Vice Presid
Discovery Research with extensive experience inbib&echnology industry. He was promoted to ChieieStific Officer in December 201
Dr. Shepard has been a founder ofaander of several biotechnology companies andaliek has included protein therapeutics (Rece
BioLogix, Inc., 2003-2008), small molecules (Newfis, Inc., 1997-2002), gene therapy (Canji, Ind#Sing-Plough Corporation, 1992-
1997), and monoclonal antibody therapeutics (Geandmtinc. 198@992). While at Genentech, Dr. Shepard participatemhany of the ear
programs that transformed Genentech into a comalesaiccess. Among his most important accomplishsnests the description of a
mechanism by which tumor cells can escape the ihostune system. This work led to the discovery &f Hreast cancer drug Herceptin
(trastuzumab). In 2007, Dr. Shepard shared the \Wa#ipert Prize from Harvard Medical School in rendgpn of this achievemet
Dr. Shepard received his bachetodegree in Zoology from the University of Calif@nDavis and his Ph.D. in Molecular, Cellular
Developmental Biology from Indiana University. @hepard was also a postdoctoral fellow at Indianévélsity, supported by the Danr
Runyon Cancer Research Foundation.

Jean |. Liu (43)Vice President, General Counsel and SecretarylLMgoined Halozyme in 2011. Prior to Halozyme, Seeved as tt
Chief Legal Officer and Secretary of Durect Corpiora (“Durect”) from 1998 to 2011. She has 20 years of professiexgérience advisit
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. Msslaarly career included work at Pillsbury, MadigoButro (now Pillsbury Winthrop) at
the Venture Law Group where she focused on broeaseaof legal advisory for early stage companieduding technology transfer, licensi
patents, and copyright and trademark litigationriby her tenure at Durect, she held a number l&fdtitoles as the senior most legal off
where her experience expanded to include secuatidsegulatory law, M & A and financing, corporgi@vernance and board matters. Ms.
obtained her B.S. in Biology with highest distilcti from the University of Michigan at Ann Arbor, h#&1.S.in Biology from Stanfor
University, and her J.D. from Columbia Universitheve she was a Harlan Fiske Scholar.

William J. Fallon (55), Vice President, Manufacturing & Operations. Mr.l&al joined Halozyme in 2006 as Vice Presid
Manufacturing & Operations. His responsibilitieslude oversight of all aspects of internal and mxkemanufacturing and facilities operatic
as well as bioprocess development. Prior to Hal@zyime served as President and Chief Executive éfti€ Cytovance Biologics, a contr
manufacturing organization that provides manufactuand development services to the biotechnologlstry. From 2001 to 2003, he \
Vice President of Technical Operations at GenzyragQration, having held the same position at Nowezyharmaceuticals, Inc. prior to
acquisition by Genzyme in 2001. Mr. Fallon joinedvdzyme from Transkaryotic Therapies, where he Mias President of Manufacturi
from 1998 to 2001. From 1993 to 1998, he was engulag several management positions for the Aemno Group, including Vice Presid
U.S. Manufacturing Operations. In this role, hevedras general manager, overseeing the productidndatribution of all of Serone’
approved biotechnology products in the United StakEgom 1990 to 1992, he was Director of Manufactufor Centocor, Inc. His pri
experience also includes various management andtigeal roles at Invitron Corporation and Trave@@nentech Diagnostics. Mr. Fal
earned a B.S. in marine science and a B.A. in biofoom Long Island University, and an M.S. in loigl from Northeastern University.

53



Table of Contents

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpedtby reference to the information under the captiExecutive Compensatiortd be
contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12.  Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managenteand Related Stockholder Matte
Security

Information relating to securities authorized fssiance under our equity compensation plans ifodatin Part I, Item 5, Market fol
Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholdertbtatand Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitidsve in this Annual Report. The ot
information required by this item is incorporateg reference to the information under the capti®ecurity Ownership of Certain Benefic
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder igattebe contained in the Proxy Statement.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abtector Independence

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to the information under the capt©ertain Relationships and Rels
Transactions” to be contained in the Proxy Statémen

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorp@cty reference to the information under the captierincipal Accounting Fees a
Services” contained in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@) Documents filed as part of this report.

1. Financial Statements:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2@l 2Gk0 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Eacheftears Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and F-3
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Eacheivears Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for Each of the Years Ended December 31120010 and 200 F-5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-6

2. List of all Financial Statement schedules.
All other schedules are omitted because they arepuicable or the required information is showrthie Financial Statements or ne

thereto.
3. List of Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regtibn S-K. See part (b) below.
(b) Exhibits:
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 1d7 20y and between the Registrant and the Regi’s predecessor Neva
corporation(1
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatianfiled with the Delaware Secretary of State otoer 7, 2007(2
3.2 Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Righithe terms of the Series A Preferred Stoc
3.3 Bylaws, as amended(
4.1 Amended Rights Agreement between Corporate StoaksTer, as rights agent, and Registrant, dated ibge12, 2007(1€
10.1 License Agreement between University of Connectimd Registrant, dated November 15, 200
10.2 First Amendment to the License Agreement betweerddsity of Connecticut and Registrant, dated Jan8a2006(8’
10.3* Commercial Supply Agreement with Avid Bioservicks;. and Registrant, dated February 16, 200!
10.4* ?irsit Amendment to the Commercial Supply Agreenbativeen Avid Bioservices, Inc. and Registrant, d&ecember 15, 20!
13
10.5* Clinical Supply Agreement between Cook PharmiceCldand Registrant, dated August 15, 2008
10.64 DeliaTroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2001 Amended agst&Red Stock Plan and form of Stock Option Agregmor options
assumed thereunder(
10.74 2004 Stock Plan and Form of Option Agreement theater(4)
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10.8#

10.9#

10.104
10.114
10.124
10.134
10.144
10.154
10.164
10.174
10.184
10.194
10.204
10.214
10.224
10.234
10.244
10.254
10.264
10.274
10.284
10.294
10.304
10.31*

10.32*

10.33*

10.34

10.35*

10.36*

10.37

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside Dire’ Stock Plan(7

Form of Stock Option Agreement (2005 Outside Dives’ Stock Plan)(11
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2005 Outside®or’ Stock Plan)(11
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2006 Stock Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement (2006 Stock Plan)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2006 Stock P14

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Stock Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement (2008 Stock Plan)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2008 Stock JP2i)

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2008 Outside Dire’ Stock Plan(19

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2008 Outside®or’ Stock Plan)(25
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2011 Stock Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement (2011 Stock Plan)

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Executive Offe€2011 Stock Plan)(2¢
Form of Restricted Stock Units Agreement (2011 B#®lan)(29)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (2011 Bt®lan)(29)

Form of Indemnity Agreement for Directors and ExeaiOfficers(17)
Outside Director Compensation Plan(.

2008 Senior Executive Incentive Structure(

2009 Senior Executive Incentive Plan(:

2010 Senior Executive Incentive Plan(:

Change in Control Policy(2(

Severance Policy(2:

Amended and Restated Exclusive Distribution Agregnbetween Baxter Healthcare Corporation, Baxtaaltdeare S.A. and
Registrant, dated February 14, 2007(

Amended and Restated Development and Supply Agredmeéween Baxter Healthcare Corporation, Baxtaaltdeare S.A. and
Registrant, dated February 14, 2007(

License and Collaboration Agreement between Batéaithcare Corporation, Baxter Healthcare S.A.Redistrant, date
February 14, 2007(1«

Termination Agreement between Halozyme Inc., Bakdeslthcare Corporation and Baxter Healthcare &figctive January 7,
2011(28)

Enhanze Technology License and Collaboration Agergrhetween Baxter Healthcare Corporation, Baxtalticare S.A. and
Registrant, dated September 7, 2007

License and Collaboration Agreement between F.Haffr-La Roche Ltd, Hoffmar-La Roche Inc. and Registrant da
December 5, 2006(1:

Sublease Agreement (11404 Sorrento Valley RoafBctidfe as of July 2, 2007(1
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10.3¢€ Standard Industrial Net Lease (11388 Sorrento YdRead), effective as of July 26, 2007(:

10.3¢ Amended and Restated Lease (11388 Sorrento VatlegReffective as of June 10, 2011(

10.4C Lease (11404 and 11408 Sorrento Valley Road), &fteas of June 10, 2011(3

10.41 Underwriting Agreement between Halozyme Therapsuytiw. and Jefferies & Company, Inc., dated Ju)e2009(27

10.4z Underwriting Agreement between Halozyme Therapsutitc. and Barclays Capital Inc., dated SepterBb2010(25

10.4¢ Underwriting Agreement between Halozyme Therapsytitc. and Barclays Capital Inc., dated Febru@r2012(31

211 Subsidiaries of Registrant(

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as
amendec

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as
amendec

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, aspaeld pursuant to Section ¢
of the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from the Halozyme Therajesjtinc. Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2
formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Langu@RL): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets,ttip Consolidated
Statements of Operations, (iii) the Consolidateate®hents of Cash Flows and (iv) related notes etég@g block of text**

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K, filed November 20, 2007 (File No. 0-32335).

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 12, 2011 (File No. (-32335).

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’'s Registration Statement on Form-2 filed with the Commission on April 23, 2004 (F

(4)
()

(6)
()
(8)
(9)
(10)

No. 33:-114776).

Incorporated by reference to the Registranti'eadment number two to the Registration Statemenform SB2 filed with the
Commission on July 23, 2004 (File No. -114776).

Incorporated by reference to the RegistranggiRration Statement on Form8Sfiled with the Commission on October 26, 2004¢
No. 33:-119969).

Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 22, 2005 (File No. C-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed July 6, 2005 (File No. 0(-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed January 12, 2006 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Annual Report on Form -KSB/A, filed March 29, 2005 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 24, 2006 (File No. 0-32335).
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(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)

Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form -Q, filed August 8, 2006 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K/A, filed December 15, 2006 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 21, 2006 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K/A, filed February 20, 2007 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed July 31, 2007 (File No. 0(-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed September 12, 2007 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 20, 2007 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Annual Report on Form -K, filed March 14, 2008 (File No. 0+~32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 19, 2008 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed April 21, 2008 (File No. 0C-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form -Q, filed May 9, 2008 (File No. 0(-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form -Q, filed November 7, 2008 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 9, 2009 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 23, 2009 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form -Q, filed August 7, 2009 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 8, 2010 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed September 9, 2010 (File No. (-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed January 10, 2011 (File No. C-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed May 6, 2011 (File No. 0(-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 16, 2011 (File No. 0-32335).
Incorporated by reference to the Regis's Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 10, 2012 (File No. C-32335).
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*  Confidential treatment has been requested for ioep@artions of this exhibit. These portions havememitted from this agreement
have been filed separately with the SecuritiesiExchange Commissiol

**  Pursuant to Rule 406T of RegulationTSthe Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 herate deemed not filed or part of a registre
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectiorw 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendesldaemed not filed for purpose:
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 8418s amended, and otherwise are not subjecthitity under those section

# Indicates management contract or compensatorygslarrangemen
(c) Financial Statement Schedules. See Item 15(a) 2 abov
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisdrétport to be signed on its bel
by the undersigned in the City of San Diego, ondWad, 2012.

Halozyme Therapeutics, In
a Delaware corporatic

Date: March 9, 2012 By: /s/ Gregory l. Frost, Ph.l
Gregory |. Frost, Ph.LC
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these presents, that each pevhose signature appears below constitutes anoirgppsregory I. Frost and Kurt
Gustafson, and each of them, as his true and lattfoineys-infact and agents, with full power of substitutiordaesubstitution, for him and
his name, place, and stead, in any and all capagit sign any and all amendments to this AnnegloR, and to file the same, with all exhi
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewitth the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrg unto said attorneys-ii&ct anc
agents, and each of them, full power and authdatylo and perform each and every act and thingisgguand necessary to be don
connection therewith, as fully to all intents angrgoses as he might or could do in person, herabifying and confirming that all se
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them ar threhis substitute or substituted, may lawfully dr cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&933, as amended, this Annual Report has beggediby the following persons in-
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Gregory |. Frost, Ph.D. President and Chief Executive Officer March 9, 2012
Gregory I. Frost, Ph.C (Principal Executive Officer), Director
/s/ Kurt A. Gustafson Vice President, Chief Financial Officer March 9, 2012
Kurt A. Gustafsor (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Kenneth J. Kelley Chairman of the Board of Directors March 9, 2012
Kenneth J. Kelle
/s/ Robert L. Engler, M.D. Director March 9, 2012
Robert L. Engler, M.D
/s/ Kathryn E. Falberg Director March 9, 201z
Kathryn E. Falbert
/s Randal J. Kirk Director March 9, 201
Randal J. Kirk
/s/ Connie L. Matsui Director March 9, 201

Connie L. Matsu

/s/ John S. Patton, Ph.D. Director March 9, 201:
John S. Patton, Ph.l
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of mbee 31, 2011 and 2010, ¢
the related consolidated statements of operatioash flows and stockholdergquity for each of the three years in the periodee
December 31, 2011. These financial statementshareesponsibility of the Comparsyinanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspamian
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8io(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet aodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimtigcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedi® tonsolidated financial position
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. at December 31, 20112810, and the consolidated results of its opamatiand its cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20tbnformity with U.S. generally accepted accongtprinciples.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrstatements, the Company changed its method afuating for revenue recognition
a result of the adoption of the amendments to th&B- Accounting Standards Codification resultingnfrAccounting Standards Upd
No. 200¢-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-DelivdeaBevenue Arrangementsffective January 1, 2011.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Halozyr
Therapeutics, Inc.’s internal control over finahaieporting as of December 31, 2011, based onrizitestablished in Internal Contre-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissicth @ur report dated March 9, 2(
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 9, 2012
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Current assett

HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2011

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel $ 52,825,52
Accounts receivable, n 2,262,46!
Inventories, ne 567,26:
Prepaid expenses and other as 8,332,24.
Total current asse 63,987,49
Property and equipment, r 1,771,04i
Total Asset: $ 65,758,54
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 7,556,85
Accrued expense 5,615,57.
Deferred revenue, current porti 4,129,40
Total current liabilities 17,301,84
Deferred revenue, net of current port 36,754,58
Deferred rent, net of current porti 802,00¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred stoc— $0.001 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorizedhares issued ar
outstanding —
Common stocl— $0.001 par value; 150,000,000 shares authorized989272 and 100,580,8
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,£@12010, respective 103,99(
Additional paic-in capital 255,817,77
Accumulated defici (245,021,64)
Total stockholder equity 10,900,11
Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $ 65,758,54

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigsents.

F-2

December 31,
2010

$ 83,255,384
2,328,26!
193,42:
3,720,89!
89,498,43
1,846,89!

$ 91,34533

$ 3,820,36:
8,605,56!
2,917,12!

15,343,06
55,176,42
474,38¢

100,58:
245,502,67

(225,251,79)
20,351,45

$ 9134533
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REVENUES:

Product sales, ni
Revenues under collaborative agreem

Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of product sale

Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Total operating expens:
OPERATING LOSS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest income, ne

Other income (expens

Total other income, n¢

NET LOSS

Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Shares used in computing basic and diluted netdesshart

HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2011

2010

2009

$ 1,83610. $ 89551t $ 970,84
54,250,33 12,728,59 12,700,45
56,086,43 13,624,11 13,671,30

257,83 985,28: 311,89
57,563,47 51,773,50 56,614,26
18,104,07 15,122,96 15,203,40
75,925 37 67,881,74 72,129,56

(19,838,94) (54,257,63) (58,458,26)
63,53( 49,01 100,74

5,56( 966,96 (3,010

69,09( 1,015,98; 97,73
$(19,769,85)  $(53,241,65)  $(58,360,52)

$ 019 $ (056 % (0.67)

102,566,08 94,357,69 86,700,09

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Shar+based compensatic
Depreciation and amortizatic
(Gain) loss on disposal of equipm
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Deferred ren
Deferred revenu
Net cash used in operating activit
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash used in investing activiti
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options,
Proceeds from exercise of warrants,
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of r-cash investing and financing activitit
Accounts payable for purchases of property andpegeint

Year Ended December 31,

2011

2010

2009

$(19,769,85)

$(53,241,65)

$(58,360,52)

5,569,89! 4,866,32! 4,526,03
1,095,82; 1,507,92! 1,443,73
(1,566) 13,54: 2,68¢
65,80: 1,915,64 3,020,50.
(373,84) 966,12 (718,22
(4,611,34) (2,147,11) 1,017,37;
711,77 3,437,08 (2,000,23)
172,43 (314,74) (113,34
(17,209,56) (2,388,64) 11,033,73
(34,350,42) (45,385,50) (40,148,26)
(828,50¢) (646,54) (1,461,02)
(828,50¢) (646,54/) (1,461,02)

— 59,965,05 38,174,37
4,748,61; 1,858,33; 1,018,35
— — 6,165,15:
4,748,61 61,823,39 45,357,88
(30,430,32) 15,791,34 3,748,60!
83,255,84 67,464,50 63,715,90
$52,82552  $83,25584  $67,464,50
$ 189,89 $ 13,80t $ 14349

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Year Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Common Stock A(Ii(zilittli(-)lr:\al Accumulated Stoc-:;ck)]toallders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2009 81,553,656 $ 81,55« $128,948,06  $(113,649,62) $15,379,99
Shar-based compensation expel — — 4,526,03! — 4,526,03I
Issuance of common stock for cash, 6,150,00! 6,15(C 38,168,22 — 38,174,37
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exercis

warrants, ne 3,140,78! 3,141 6,162,01 — 6,165,15!
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exerciseookst

options 717,32. 717 1,017,44 — 1,018,16.
Issuance of restricted stock awa 120,00( 12C 73 — 19z
Net loss — — — (58,360,52) (58,360,52)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 200¢ 91,681,75 91,68: 178,821,85 (172,010,14) 6,903,38
Shar-based compensation expel — — 4,866,32! — 4,866,32!
Issuance of common stock for cash, 8,300,00! 8,30( 59,956,75 — 59,965,05
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exerciseook:

options 479,09: 47¢ 1,857,73. — 1,858,21.
Issuance of restricted stock awa 120,00( 12C — — 12C
Net loss — — — (53,241,65) (53,241,65)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 201( 100,580,84 100,58: 245,502,67 (225,251,79) 20,351,45
Shar-based compensation expel — — 5,569,89! — 5,569,89!
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exerciseookst

options 3,045,541 3,04t 4,745,44 — 4,748,49:
Issuance of restricted stock awa 347,88: 34¢ (229) — 12C
Issuance of common stock pursuant to exercise of

restricted stock unit 15,00( 15 (15) — —
Net loss — — — (19,769,85) (19,769,85)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 201: 103,989,27  $103,99(  $255,817,77  $(245,021,64) $ 10,900,11

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Business

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. (“Halozyme” or the “Cuany”) is a biopharmaceutical company dedicated to deirdomnc
commercializing innovative products that advanceepacare. The Comparg/research targets the extracellular matrix, aa atgside the ce
that provides structural support in tissues anthe@strates many important biological activities luding cell migration, signaling and surviv
Over many years, the Company has developed unijeetsic expertise that allows the Company to perthis targetich environment for tt
development of future therapies.

The Company’s research focuses primarily on humazyrees that alter the extracellular matrix. The @any’s lead enzym
recombinant human hyaluronidase (“rHUPH2®mporarily degrades hyaluronan, a matrix compoiretite skin, and facilitates the disper:
and absorption of drugs and fluids. The Compangls® developing novel enzymes that may target othetrix structures for therapet
benefit. The Company’s Enhan2dechnology is the platform for the delivery of prigpary small and large molecules. The Companyies
its research products in partnership with other ganes as well as for its own proprietary pipelim¢herapeutic areas with significant un
medical need, such as diabetes, oncology and dellogst

The Companys operations to date have involved: (i) organizéngl staffing its operating subsidiary, Halozymes.;Ir(ii) acquiring
developing and securing its technology; (iii) urtedking product development for the Compangxisting product and a limited numbe
product candidates; (iv) supporting the developnahnpartnered product candidates and (v) sellihdenex® recombinant (hyaluronida
human injection). The Company continues to increiégsfocus on its proprietary product pipeline amals expanded investments in
proprietary product candidates. The Company cugrdrds multiple proprietary programs in variousgsts of research and developmen
addition, the Company currently has collaboratiegtperships with F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd and kathn-La Roche, Inc. (“Rochg”
Baxter Healthcare Corporation (“Baxter”), ViroPharimcorporated (“ViroPharma”), and Intrexon Corgama (“Intrexon”), to apply Enhan:
technology to these partnetsiblogical therapeutic compounds. The Company hisbanother partnership with Baxter, under whickt&ahat
worldwide marketing rights for the Company’s maddtproduct Hylenexrecombinant (“Hylenex Partnership”yhe Company and Bax
mutually agreed to terminate the Hylenex PartneréhiJanuary 2011. In December 2011, the CompaingroducedHylenexrecombinant t
the market. Currently, the Company has receivey limited revenue from the salesldf/lenexrecombinant, in addition to other revenues 1
its partnerships.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include teoants of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and its Wholned subsidiary, Halozyn
Inc. All intercompany accounts and transactionsehasen eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtconformity with U.S. generally accepted acdmg principles (“U.S. GAAPY
requires management to make estimates and assmspiiat affect the amounts reported in the Compgaoghsolidated financial stateme
and accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, thgp@ay evaluates its estimates and judgments, varebased on historical and anticipi
results and trends and on various other assumptlatsmanagement believes to be reasonable undecittumstances. By their natt
estimates are subject to an inherent degree oftamtty and, as such, actual results may diffemfroanagement’s estimates.

F-6
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly ligoiestments with original maturities of three mantr less from the original purchi
date.

Concentrations of Credit Risk, Sources of Supplydagignificant Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to a significant concentration of credikrtonsist of cash and cash equival
and accounts receivable. The Company maintairca#tk and cash equivalent balances with one majomeascial bank and a major investrr
firm. Deposits held with the bank and investmemhfexceed the amount of insurance provided on daplsits.

The Company has collaborative partnerships wittrrphaeutical companies under which the Company vesgdayments for license fe
milestone payments for specific achievements daséghin the collaborative agreements and reimbugatsnof research and developn
services. In addition, the Company séliglenexrecombinant in the United States to a limited nurrdfeestablished wholesale distributor:
the pharmaceutical industry. Credit is extendecethasn an evaluation of the custonsefinancial condition, and collateral is not reggi
Management monitors the Compasgxposure to accounts receivable by periodicalbiuating the collectibility of the accounts recaile
based on a variety of factors including the lengthitime the receivables are past due, the finanuélth of the customer and histor
experience. Based upon the review of these fadioesCompany did not record an allowance for daudtzt€counts at December 31, 2011
2010. Approximately 82% of accounts receivable hedaas of December 31, 2011 represents amountsfrdoe Roche, Baxter ai
Viropharma. Approximately 100% of the accounts remigle balance as of December 31, 2010 represemtsifsts due from Roche and Bax
For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ar@ 2006, 52% and 76% of total revenues were fromhRa@nd 42%, 42% and 20% of t
revenues were from Baxter, respectively. In addjtifor the year ended December 31, 2011, 22% afd @btotal revenues were frc
Viropharma and Intrexon, respectively.

Worldwide revenues from external customers forytbars ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 temhsiEdomestic revenues
approximately $44.9 million, $6.0 million and $2@llion, respectively, and foreign revenues of apfimately $11.2 million, $7.6 million ai
$10.8 million, respectively. Of the Compasytotal foreign revenues for the years ended Deeer@b, 2011, 2010 and 2009, approxime
$10.4 million, $7.2 million, $10.4 million, respéctly, were attributable to Switzerland. The Comparttributes revenues under collabore
agreement to the individual countries where théngaris headquartered. The Company attributes t@sefrom product sales to the indivic
countries to which the product is shipped. For ylears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, ¢nep&hy had no foreign bas
operations and the Company did not have any loreglassets located in foreign countries.

The Company relies on two thimhrty manufacturers for the supply of the bulk folation of rHuPH20 which is the acti
pharmaceutical ingredient (“API”) ifylenexrecombinant and each of its partnepsbduct candidates. Payments due to these sug
represent 59% and 32% of the accounts payable dmktrDecember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively Cidmpany also relies on a thiparty
manufacturer for the fill and finish ¢dylenexrecombinant product under a contract the Compatsret into June 2011. Payments due tc
supplier represent 3.7% of the accounts payabnbalat December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoicedwarhand is nornterest bearing. Accounts receivable is recordetdof allowances fc
doubtful accounts, cash discounts for prompt payrard distribution fees.
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Currently, the allowance for doubtful accounts ésazas the collectibility of accounts receivablegasonably assured. Allowances for prc
payment discounts and distribution fees were apprately $15,000 as of December 31, 2011.

Inventories, Net

Inventories, net are stated at lower of cost orketarCost, which includes amounts related to malerand costs incurred by
Company’s contract manufacturers, is determined first-in, firstout basis. Inventories are reviewed periodicallyfotential excess, dated
obsolete status. Management evaluates the carwgilug of inventories on a regular basis, taking iatcount such factors as historical
anticipated future sales compared to quantitiehamd, the price it expects to obtain for produntshieir respective markets compared
historical cost and the remaining shelf life of demn hand.

Raw materials inventories at December 31, 20112811d consists of raw materials used in the manufaatf the Companyg’ bulk drut
material forHylenexrecombinant product. Work-in-process inventoriessist of in-processlylenexrecombinant. Finished goods invento
consist of finishedHylenexrecombinant product.

As a result of the termination of the HYLENEX Pantship in January 2011, the Company recorded wloign for inventor
obsolescence of approximately $166,000 and $875{00Mylenex recombinant API for the years ended December 31,1 28nd 201(
respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010rdkerve for inventory obsolescence was approxignaézo and $875,000, respectively.

The Company expenses costs relating to the purdraderoduction of pre-approval inventories for evhthe sole use is papprova
products as research and development expense ipetied incurred until such time as the Companyelbek future commercialization
probable and future economic benefit is expectduetoealized. For products that have been apprbydtie FDA, inventories used in clini
trials are expensed at the time the inventoriespackaged for the clinical trial. Prior to receiyimpproval from the FDA or compara
regulatory agencies in foreign countries, costateel to purchases of the APl and the manufactwfnipe product candidate is recordet
research and development expense. All direct maturfag costs incurred after approval are capigalimto inventories.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, ssraulated depreciation and amortization. Equipneedepreciated using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives okthyears and leasehold improvements are amontigied the straighline method over tf
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease,tarichever is shorter.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in alzmare with authoritative guidance for impairmentd@posal of londived asset:
Long-ived assets are reviewed for events or changeBdomstances, which indicate that their carryiague may not be recoverable. For
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, hhereeen no impairment of the value of such as

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company follows the authoritative guidance fair value measurements and disclosures, which gnutiner things, defines fi
value, establishes a consistent framework for nréastair value and expands
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disclosure for each major asset and liability catggneasured at fair value on either a recurringanrecurring basis. Fair value is define
an exit price that would be received to sell aretiss paid to transfer a liability in an orderlamisaction between market participants. As ¢
fair value is a markdbased measurement that should be determined baseskomptions that market participants would uggising an ass
or liability.

The framework for measuring fair value providedexdrchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuatieghiniques used in measuring fair vi
as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fenital assets or liabilitie
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within élelvthat are either directly or indirectly obsdrlea and

Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketivty exists, therefore requiring an entity to ééap its own assumptions
about the assumptions that market participants dvosé in pricing

The Companys financial instruments include cash and cash edgms, accounts receivable, prepaid expensesuaiscpayable at
accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of finaimsluments approximate their fair value due tirtlshort maturities. Cash equivalent
approximately $51.8 million and $79.8 million atdenber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are caatiddir value and are classified wit
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they alued based on quoted market prices for iddnsieeurities. The Company has
instruments that are classified within Level 2 dedel 3.

Deferred Rent

Rent expense is recorded on a stralgig-basis over the initial term of any lease. Tifference between rent expense accruec
amounts paid under any lease agreement is recaglddferred rent in the accompanying consolidaséghioe sheets.

Comprehensive Income/Loss

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the @hangquity during a period from transactions atienevents and circumstances f
non-owner sources. Comprehensive loss was the aatie Company’s net loss for all periods presented

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenues from product satts@laborative agreements. Payments receivedrwualaborative agreemel
may include nonrefundable fees at the inceptiothefagreements, license fees, milestone paymengpéeific achievements designated ir
collaborative agreements, reimbursements of rekearal development services and/or royalties onssale products resulting frc
collaborative agreements.

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance thithauthoritative guidance for revenue recognitibhe Company recogniz
revenue when all of the following criteria are m@f) persuasive evidence of an arrangement eX®yslelivery has occurred or services t
been rendered; (3) the seller’s price to the big/éred or determinable; and (4) collectibilityrsasonably assured.

Product Sales, Net — Hyleneecombinant was approved for marketing by the Bddd and Drug Administration (“FDA')h Decembe
2005. From 2005 through January 7, 2011, the Cogngead a partnership with Baxter for the worldwiderket rights forHylene:
recombinant. Baxter commercially launchégenex
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recombinant in October 2009. Howeveétylenex recombinant was voluntarily recalled in May 2010cdse a portion of the prod
manufactured by Baxter was not in compliance withrequirements of the underlying partnership. &iffe January 7, 2011, the Company
Baxter mutually agreed to terminate the partnersbigring the second quarter of 2011, the Comparynétted the data that the FDA t
requested to support the reintroduction Hyflenex recombinant to the market. The FDA approved themstiéd data and granted -
reintroduction oHylenexrecombinant.

In December 2011, the Company reintrodu¢tdenexrecombinant to the market, shipped initial stockorglers to its wholesal
customers and began promotiHglenexrecombinant through its sales force. The Compally Blylenexrecombinant in the United States
wholesale pharmaceutical distributors, who in-taefl the product to hospitals and other eisér customers. The wholesale distributors
title to the product, bear the risk of loss of owagp and have economic substance to the invenkamther, the Company has no signific
obligations for future performance to generate -flulbbugh sales; however, it does allow the wholesi#géibutors to return product that
damaged or received in error. In addition, the Canypallows for product to be returned beginning mi@nths prior to and ending twe
months following product expiration. Given the Canp’s limited experience history of sellidylenexrecombinant and the lengthy ret
period, the Company currently cannot reliably eatgnexpected returns and chargebackdydénexrecombinant at the time of product rec
by the wholesale distributors. Therefore, the Camypdoes not recognize revenue upon deliverHglenexrecombinant to the wholes
distributor until the point at which the Companygaliably estimate expected product returns aratggbacks from the wholesale distribut
Shipments oHylenexrecombinant are recorded as deferred revenue autience exists to confirm that ptitirough sales to the hospitals
other enduser customers have occurred. The Company recagn@enue when the product is sold through from dis¢ributors to th
distributors’ customers. In addition, the costsnedéinufacturingHylenexrecombinant associated with the deferred reveneeregorded ¢
deferred costs, which are included in inventorytilisuch time as the related deferred revenue éegmized. The Company estimates sell-
through revenue and certain gross to net salestatfmts based on analyses of thpedty information including information obtainecbin
certain distributors with respect to their invegttgvels and sell-through amounts to the distrimgitoustomers.

The Company recognizes product sales allowancesraduction of product sales in the same periodédleted revenue is recogniz
Product sales allowances are based on amounts awedoe claimed on the related sales. These agtintake into consideration the term
the Companys agreements with wholesaler customers, hospitalstee levels of inventory within the distributichannels that may result
future discounts taken. The Company must make fgggnt judgments in determining these allowancésactual results differ from ti
Companys estimates, the Company will be required to malestment to these allowances in the future, wikimhld have an effect on prod
sales revenue in the period of adjustment. The @arylp product sales allowances include:

Distribution Fees. The distribution fees, based on contractud#termined rates, arise from contractual agreentet€ompany hi
with certain wholesale distributors for distributiservices they provide with respectHglenexrecombinant. At the time the sale is made t
respective wholesale distributors, the Company rec@n allowance for distribution fees by reducitsgaccounts receivable and defe
revenue associated with such product sales.

Prompt Payment Discounts The Company offers cash discounts to certdiol@sale distributors as an incentive to meet it
payment terms. At the time the sale is made tadbpective wholesale distributors, the Companyrascan allowance for distribution fees
reducing its accounts receivable and deferred ieveassociated with such product sales.
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Chargebacks The Company provides discounts to certain it@isp These hospitals purchase products from thelegale distributo
at a discounted price, and the wholesale distrilsutioen charge back to the Company the differemterd®en the current retail price and
price the hospitals paid for the product. Given @mmpanys lack of historical sales data, the Company rezegnchargebacks in the se
period the related product sales revenue is rezedrand reduces its accounts receivable accordingly

Product Returns The product return reserve is based on managgsrbest estimate of the product sales recognizedvanue durin
the period that are anticipated to be returned. @roeuct return reserve is recorded as a redudifigroduct sales revenue in the same pi
the related product sales revenue is recognizedsandluded in accrued expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compaegrded product sales revenue of approximatelyOf85related toHylene:
recombinant, net of estimated distribution feespmot payment discounts and product returns totalpgroximately $8,000. The Company
a deferred revenue balance of approximately $187d810December 31, 2011 fétylenexrecombinant shipments, which is net of estim
distribution fees, prompt pay discounts and prodetirns. In addition, inventory at December 311 2(ncluded a deferred cost of proc
sales of approximately $31,000 associated Wigtenexrecombinant shipments to wholesalers. At the tineeGompany can reliably estim
product returns and chargebacks from the wholesallee Company will record a otieae increase in net product sales revenue relateie
recognition of product sales revenue previouslyrdefl.

Prior to the termination of the Hylenex Partnershigh Baxter in January 2011, the Company suppBecter with APl forHylene;
recombinant at its fully burdened cost plus a mar8iaxter filled and finishetlylenexrecombinant and held it for subsequent distribyten
which time the Company ensured it met product spations and released it as available for salecaBee of the Compars/’continue
involvement in the development and production psscefHylenexrecombinant, the earnings process was not considerde complet
Accordingly, the Company deferred the revenue aidted product costs on the API fdylenexrecombinant until the product was filli
finished, packaged and released. Baxter could mtlyn the API foHylenexrecombinant to the Company if it did not confornthie specifie
criteria set forth in the Hylenex Partnership oompgermination of such agreement. In addition,@leenpany received produbised paymer
upon the sale oHylenexrecombinant by Baxter, in accordance with the teohshe Hylenex Partnership. Produmsed revenues wi
recognized as the Company earned such revenues badgaxter’s shipments ¢lylenexrecombinant to its distributors when such amc
could be reasonably estimated. See NoteDeferred Revenug for further discussion.

Revenues under Collaborative AgreementsThe Company entered into license and collaboratigreements under which
collaborative partners obtained worldwide exclusiwghts for the use of rHuPH20 in the developmentl &ommercialization of tl
collaborators’biologic compounds. The collaborative agreemenigain multiple elements including nonrefundable mpants at the incepti
of the arrangement, license fees, exclusivity feeg/ments based on achievement of specific milestatesignated in the collabora
agreements, reimbursements of research and devetts@rvices, payments for supply of rHUPH20 APl collaborator and/or royalties
sales of products resulting from collaborative agrents. The Company analyzes each element oflitoative agreements and conside
variety of factors in determining the appropriatethod of revenue recognition of each element.

Prior to the adoption of ASU No. 20a% on January 1, 2011, in order for a deliverethite be accounted for separately from c
deliverables in a multiplelement arrangement, the following three criter@a o be met: (i) the delivered item had standalmae to th
customer, (ii) there was objective and reliabledenice of
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fair value of the undelivered items and (iii) ifettarrangement included a general right of retutative to the delivered item, delivery
performance of the undelivered items was considpretiable and substantially in the control of te@dor. For the collaborative agreem:
entered into prior to January 1, 2011, there wasljective and reliable evidence of fair value loé undelivered items. Thus, the delive
licenses did not meet all of the required critédabe accounted for separately from undelivereghsteTherefore, the Company recogn
revenue on nonrefundable upfront payments and dedaes from these collaborative agreements oeepdhiod of significant involveme
under the related agreements.

For new collaborative agreements or material modifons of existing collaborative agreements entért® after December 31, 2010,
Company follows the provisions of ASU No. 2009-113.order to account for the multipElement arrangements, the Company identifie
deliverables included within the agreement and w&atak which deliverables represent units of ac@ogntAnalyzing the arrangement
identify deliverables requires the use of judgmant each deliverable may be an obligation to dekervices, a right or license to use an ¢
or another performance obligation. The deliverabieder the Company’s collaborative agreements decl(i) the license to the Company’
rHUPH20 technology, (ii) at the collaborat®request, research and development services venecheimbursed at contractually determ
rates, and (iii) at the collaborator’'s request,@ypf rHuPH20 API which is reimbursed at the Comga cost plus a margin. A delivered it
is considered a separate unit of accounting whemnléfivered item has value to the collaborator staadalone basis based on the conside:
of the relevant facts and circumstances for eadngement. Factors considered in this determinaticlude the research capabilities of
collaborator and the availability of research efiperin this field in the general marketplace.

Arrangement consideration is allocated at the itioef the agreement to all identified units o€aenting based on their relative sel
price. The relative selling price for each deliv#eais determined using vendor specific objectivielence (“VSOE"), of selling price or third-
party evidence of selling price if VSOE does noisexf neither VSOE nor thirgharty evidence of selling price exists, the Compasgs it
best estimate of the selling price for the delibdaThe amount of allocable arrangement consiaeras limited to amounts that are fixec
determinable. The consideration received is alext@mong the separate units of accounting, andghkcable revenue recognition criteria
applied to each of the separate units. Changdeeialtocation of the sales price between delivarediundelivered elements can impact rev
recognition but do not change the total revenuegeized under any agreement.

Upfront license fee payments are recognized uptinede of the license if facts and circumstancesate that the license has standa
value from the undelivered items, which generallglude research and development services and thefaure of rHUPH20 API, the relat
selling price allocation of the license is equabtexceeds the upfront license fee, persuasivdeace of an arrangement exists, the Comgany’
price to the collaborator is fixed or determinahtel collectability is reasonably assured. Upfracerise fee payments are deferred if facts
circumstances dictate that the license does na btandalone value. The determination of the len§the period over which to defer reve
is subject to judgment and estimation and can havienpact on the amount of revenue recognizedjinen period.

The terms of the Comparg/’collaborative agreements provide for milestongments upon achievement of certain developmen
regulatory events and/or specified sales volumesoofimercialized products by the collaborator. Ptmrthe Companyg adoption of th
Milestone Method, the Company recognized milestpagments upon the achievement of specified milestaft (1) the milestone w
substantive in nature and the achievement of tHestone was not reasonably assured at the incepfidthe agreement, (2) the fees v
nonrefundable and (3) the Company’'s performancigatibns after the milestone achievement would icoiet to be funded by the Compasy’
collaborator at a level comparable to the levebbethe milestone achievement.
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Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted prospective basis the Milestone Method. UndeiMilestone Method, the Compa
recognizes consideration that is contingent uperetthievement of a milestone in its entirety agmee in the period in which the mileston
achieved only if the milestone is substantive sreittirety. A milestone is considered substantitiemit meets all of the following criteria:

1. The consideration is commensurate with eitherethtity’'s performance to achieve the milestone or the ex@mant of the value
the delivered item(s) as a result of a specificonte resulting from the ent’s performance to achieve the milestc

2. The consideration relates solely to past perforraaanc
3. The consideration is reasonable relative to athefdeliverables and payment terms within the gearent

A milestone is defined as an event (i) that cary & achieved based in whole or in part on eitheréntitys performance or on t
occurrence of a specific outcome resulting from émgity’s performance, (ii) for which there is substantivecertainty at the date |
arrangement is entered into that the event withdldeved and (iii) that would result in additiopalyments being due to the Company.

Reimbursementef research and development services are recogazeevenue during the period in which the servacesperformed i
long as there is persuasive evidence of an arraagerthe fee is fixed or determinable and collectid the related receivable is proba
Revenue from the manufacture of rHUPH20 API is gatxed when the API has met all specifications megufor the collaborator acceptal
and title and risk of loss have transferred todbkaborator. The Company does not directly contrbén any collaborator will request rese:
and development services or supply of rHuUPH20 ARdrefore, the Company cannot predict when it kgilognize revenues in connection \
research and development services and supply d?H20 API. Royalties to be received based on sdlésemsed products by the Compasiy
collaborators incorporating the Company’s rHUPHZ® wvill be recognized as earned.

The collaborative agreements typically provide ¢bltaborators the right to terminate such agreenmewhole or on a product-bgroduc
or target-bytarget basis at any time upon 90 days prior writtetice to the Company. There are no performareecedlation, termination
refund provisions in any of the Company’s collabiveagreements that contain material financialseguences to the Company.

See Note 3;Collaborative Agreements,and Note 7,'Deferred Revenuég, for further discussion.

Cost of Product Sales

Cost of product sales consists primarily of rawemnats, thirdparty manufacturing costs, fill and finish costgidht costs, internal co:
and manufacturing overhead associated with theygtaxh of Hylenexrecombinant. Cost of product sales also consisthefaritedown o
excess, dated and obsolete inventories. As a rektlie termination of the Hylenex Partnershipamuary 2011, the Company recorded write-
down of inventory obsolescence of $166,000 and $®ibfor Hylenexrecombinant API for the years ended December 311 2(hd 201(
respectively. There was no write-down of inventeffier the year ended December 31, 2009.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include sadatiesenefits, facilities and other overhead experesdernal clinical trials, research-
related manufacturing services, contract servicesather outside expenses. Research and develomxeanses are charged to operatiot
incurred when these expenditures relate to the @owip research and development efforts and haatemative future uses.
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Advance payments, including nonrefundable amoufats,goods or services that will be used or rendef@dfuture research a
development activities are deferred and capitalif&edh amounts will be recognized as an expenskearelated goods are delivered or
related services are performed or such time wherCtdmpany does not expect the goods to be deliverservices to be performed.

Milestone payments that the Company makes in cdimmewith indicensed technology or product candidates are esqek@as incurre
when there is uncertainty in receiving future ecoimbenefits from the licensed technology or pradiandidates. The Company consider:
future economic benefits from the licensed techgwlor product candidates to be uncertain until diegmsed technology or product candid
are approved for marketing by the U.S. Food andyBYdministration or when other significant risk facs are abated. Management has vie
future economic benefits for all of the Compaiitensed technology or product candidates torfeentain and has expensed these amour
accounting purposes.

Clinical Trial Expenses

Expenses related to clinical trials are accrueckdbam the Compang’estimates and/or representations from serviceiqers regardin
work performed, including actual level of patiemralment, completion of patient studies and clitrials progress. Other incidental ct
related to patient enroliment or treatment arewatwhen reasonably certain. If the contracted amscare modified (for instance, as a rest
changes in the clinical trial protocol or scopenairk to be performed), the Company modifies itsraats accordingly on a prospective be
Revisions in the scope of a contract are chargeskpense in the period in which the facts that gise to the revision become reason
certain. Historically, the Company has had no ni@tehanges in its clinical trial expense accrubi would have had a material impact o
consolidated results of operations or financialiims

Restructuring Expense

In accordance with authoritative guidance for exidisposal cost obligations, the Company recoaddscand liabilities associated v
restructuring activities, mainly employee separatiosts based on actual and estimates of fair valtiee period the liabilities are incurred
periods subsequent to initial measurement, liéddlitare evaluated and adjusted as appropriatehi@mnges in circumstances at least 1
quarterly basis. See Note IBestructuring Expensg for further discussion.

Share-Based Payments

The Company records compensation expense assoaiatiedstock options and other shdrased awards in accordance with
authoritative guidance for stoddased compensation. The cost of employee senécesved in exchange for an award of an equity umsént i
measured at the grant date, based on the estirfztedlue of the award, and is recognized as espe&m a straightne basis, net of estimat
forfeitures, over the requisite service periodhaf aiward. Sharbased compensation expense recognized during ttogl pe based on the val
of the portion of share-based payment awards thattimately expected to vest during the periodar8bhased compensation expense fc
award with a performance condition is recognizecmvkhe achievement of such performance conditicstetermined to be probable. If
outcome of such performance condition is not deiteeth to be probable or is not met, no compensagigmense is recognized and
recognized compensation expense is reversed. As-8hsed compensation expense recognized is basesandsaultimately expected to ve
it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. giidance requires forfeitures to be estimated atithe of grant and revised, if necessar
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differnirdhose estimates. Pwesting forfeitures were estimated to be approxétyal0% fo
employees in the years ended December 31, 20110 aad 2009 based on the Companyiistorical experience for the years er
December 31, 2011 and 2010 and those of its peepdbor the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Total share-based compensation expense relatedaretsased awards for the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009 w
comprised of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Research and development $2,815,36: $2,517,17. $2,441,90
Selling, general and administrati 2,754,53 2,349,15. 2,084,12.
Shar-based compensation expel $5,569,89! $4,866,32! $4,526,03!
Net shar-based compensation expense, per basic and dillkee $ 0.0t $ 0.0t $ 0.0t
Shar-based compensation expense fri

Stock option: $3,230,82 $4,022,79 $3,648,17

Restricted stock awards and restricted stock 1 2,339,07 843,53! 877,85t

$5,569,89! $4,866,32! $4,526,03!

Cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excekshe cumulative compensation cost recognizedofations exercised (excess
benefits) are classified as cash inflows provideditancing activities and cash outflows used iemping activities. Due to the Compasyie
loss position, no tax benefits have been recogriizéte consolidated statements of cash flows.

The cost of noremployee services received in exchange for an awsfaeduity instrument is measured based on eitiefair value of th
consideration received or the fair value of theiggmstruments issued, whichever is more relialgasurable. There were no nemploye:
stock options outstanding at December 31, 20110 201 2009.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded in accordance with aitdtive guidance for accounting for income taxegjol requires the recognition
deferred tax assets and liabilities to reflect fileire tax consequences of events that have bemgmized in the Company’consolidate
financial statements or tax returns. Measuremerthefdeferred items is based on enacted tax lawthd event the future consequence
differences between financial reporting bases ardases of the Compasyassets and liabilities result in a deferred &psef an evaluation
the probability of being able to realize the futlnenefits indicated by such assets is required. Jdmpany records a valuation allowanc
reduce the deferred tax assets to the amountghabie likely than not to be realized. Effectivedary 1, 2007, the Company adopted
authoritative guidance on accounting for unceraintincome taxes, which prescribes a comprehensigdel for how the Company sho
recognize, measure, present and disclose in itsotioated financial statements for uncertain tagifmns that the Company has takel
expects to take on a tax return.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2@iGisted of ondime grants of approximately $978,000 received unithe
Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Project progranmamistered under section 48D of the Internal Reee@Guade.

F-15



Table of Contents

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed bylidiyinet loss for the period by the weighted averagmber of common sha
outstanding during the period, without consideratior common stock equivalents. Stock options, stee stock awards and restricted s
units are considered to be common equivalents endrdy included in the calculation of diluted eags per common share when their effe
dilutive. Because of the Compagynet loss, outstanding stock options, outstandastricted stock units and unvested stock awartding
6,513,667, 8,095,365 and 7,924,266 were excluded the calculation of diluted net loss per commioars for the years ended Decembe
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, because theicte anti-dilutive.

Segment Information

The Company operates its business in one segmemthwincludes all activities related to the resbhardevelopment at
commercialization of human enzymes that eithersigartly modify tissue under the skin to facilitatgection of other therapies or corr
diseased tissue structures for clinical benefitisTdegment also includes revenues and expensdeddla (1) research and developn
activities conducted under our collaborative agreets with third parties and (ii) product salestyflenexrecombinant. The chief operat
decision-makers review the operating results oaggregate basis and manage the operations asl@ gp@yating segment.

Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted proapective basis Financial Accounting Standardar@s (“FASB”) Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2010-17, Revenue Reitimgn (Topic 605): Milestone Method of Revenue Recognitipime “Milestone
Method”). ASU No. 201Qt7 states that the Milestone Method is a valid iapfibn of the proportional performance model wizgplied tc
research or development arrangements. Accordiaglyentity can make an accounting policy electioretignize a payment that is conting
upon the achievement of a substantive milestoritsiantirety in the period in which the milestorseaichieved. The Milestone Method is
required and is not the only acceptable methoéwémue recognition for milestone payments. The tolopf ASU No. 2010t7 did not have
material impact on the Company’s consolidated faf@rposition or results of operations.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted proapective basis FASB’s ASU No. 2009; Revenue Recognition (Topic 6(
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangement&SU No. 200913 requires an entity to allocate arrangement denation at the inception of
arrangement to all of its deliverables based orr thdative selling prices. ASU No. 2008 eliminates the use of the residual methc
allocation and requires the relative-sellipgee method in all circumstances in which an gntécognizes revenue for an arrangement
multiple deliverables subject to Accounting StawmldaiCode 60%5. The Company accounted for the collaborativarggements wi
ViroPharma and Intrexon under the provisions of AS&l 200913, which resulted in revenue recognition pattéhas are materially differe
from those recognized for the Company’s existindtiple-element arrangements. As a result, the Companyneoed the $9 million upfro
license fee received under the ViroPharma Partieesid the $9 million upfront license fee receiwetler the Intrexon Partnership as reve
under collaborative agreements upon receipt ofughfeont license fees in the year ended Decembe2@1]1. See Note 3, Collaborative
Agreement— ViroPharma and Intrexon Partnershig<elow for further discussion.

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2011 and December 2011, the FASB issued ABU2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 22Bjesentation
Comprehensive Inconand ASU No. 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Top®)2Referral of
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the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presematif Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumula€@tther Comprehensive Income in A
No. 201-5. In these updates, an entity has the option ésgmt the total of comprehensive income, the coenusnof net income, and 1
components of other comprehensive income eithardimgle continuous statement of comprehensivamecor in two separate but consect
statements. In both choices, an entity is requioggaresent each component of net income along twiti net income, each component of o
comprehensive income along with a total for oth@mprehensive income, and a total amount for congmrgikie income. ASU No. 20105
eliminates the option to present the componentsttr comprehensive income as part of the stateoferitanges in stockholdersguity. The
amendments in ASU No. 20105 do not change the items that must be reportesthiar comprehensive income or when an item ofr
comprehensive income must be reclassified to regtnie. The amendments in these updates are effdotifiscal years, and interim peric
within those years, beginning after December 18120he Company does not expect the adoption skthpdates to have a material impac
its consolidated financial position or results peeations.

3. Collaborative Agreements
Roche Partnership

In December 2006, the Company and Roche enteredhifitense and collaborative agreement under wRimthe obtained a worldwic
exclusive license to develop and commercialize pcoddombinations of rHUPH20 and up to thirteen Rotdrget compounds (thdrdche
Partnership”).Under the terms of the Roche Partnership, Roché $20.0 million as an initial upfront license fear fthe application ¢
rHUPH20 to three pre-defined Roche biologic targetse to the Compang’continuing involvement obligations (for examapport activitie
associated with rHUPH20 enzyme), revenues fromufifeont payment, exclusive designation fees andiahlicense maintenance fees v
deferred and are being recognized over the terthefRoche Partnership. As of December 31, 2011Ctmapany has received $33 mill
from Roche, including the $20 million upfront licen fee payment and $13 million in clinical develgminmilestone payments. If Rot
successfully develops all of the three pre-defiteedets and achieves pagreed sales targets, the Company could receividcadd mileston
payments of up to $98 million, including up to $8lion for the achievement of clinical developmentlestones, up to $12 million for t
achievement of regulatory milestones and up tordBlion for the achievement of salémsed milestones. The Company will earn the
milestone payment of $4 million when Roche subraitsiologic license application of one of the thpze-defined targets. Under the term:
the Roche Partnership, Roche will also pay the Gompoyalties on product sales for the first thiagets. For each of the additional tar¢
Roche may pay the Company further upfront and rtaifes payments of up to $47.0 million per targetwadi as royalties on product sales,
each of the additional targets. Additionally, Rogtil obtain access to the Compasyexpertise in developing and applying rHUPH20 ¢ati
targets. Under the terms of the Roche PartnersigpCompany was obligated to scale up the produafaHuPH20 and to identify a secc
source manufacturer that would help meet anticipg@duction obligations arising from the RochetRenship. As of December 31, 2(
Roche has elected a total of five exclusive targets$ retains the option to develop and commerealituPH20 with three additional targ:
provided that Roche continues to pay annual maames fees to the Company.

The Company has determined that the clinical agdlaetory milestones are substantive; thereforeQtbmpany expects to recognize <
clinical and regulatory milestone payments as raeempon achievement of the milestones. In additio®,Company has determined that
salesbased milestone payments are similar to royaltyrpayts and are not considered milestone paymentsruhd Milestone Method
revenue recognition; therefore, the Company willognize such saldsased milestone payments as revenue upon achieverhehe
milestones. For the year ended December 31, 20ELCompany recognized $5.0 million as revenue umddaborative agreements
accordance with the Milestone Method related toatttidevement of
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certain clinical milestones pursuant to the termthe Roche Partnership. The Company recognized aed $7.0 million for the years en
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, as revender collaborative agreements upon achievenfardrtain clinical milestones pursu
to the terms of the Roche partnership.

Gammagard Partnership

In September 2007, the Company entered into a deeand collaborative agreement with Baxter, undeichv Baxter obtained
worldwide, exclusive license to develop and comriaéime product combinations of rHUPH20, with a emtr Baxter product, GAMMAGAR
LIQUID (the “Gammagard Partnership’QJnder the terms of the Gammagard Partnership, Baeiel the Company a nonrefundable upf
payment of $10.0 million. Due to the Compasigontinuing involvement obligations (for examapport activities associated with rHuP}
enzyme), the $10.0 million upfront payment was defit and is being recognized over the term of ttenfagard Partnership. As
December 31, 2011, the Company has received $I®minder the Gammagard Partnership, including&h@ million upfront license f
payment and $3 million in regulatory milestone paym If Baxter successfully receives marketing apal for the licensed product candic
and achieves pragreed sales targets, the Company could receiviicadd milestone payments of up to $34 million e achievement
salesbased milestones. In addition, Baxter will pay ltga on the sales, if any, of the products thauitefrom the collaboration. T
Gammagard Partnership is applicable to both kit forchulation combinations. Baxter assumes all dgwelent, manufacturing, clinic
regulatory, sales and marketing costs under ther@sgard Partnership, while the Company is respaasdsithe supply of rHUPH20 enzyr
The Company performs research and developmentitegiat the request of Baxter, which are reimbdiisg Baxter under the terms of
Gammagard Partnership. In addition, Baxter haseproduct development and commercialization @blans in major markets identified
the Gammagard Partnership.

The Company has determined that the regulatorystoiles are substantive; therefore, the Companycexpe recognize such regulat
milestone payments as revenue upon achievementobf silestones. In addition, the Company has deternthat salebased milestor
payments are similar to royalty payments and arteconasidered milestone payments under the Milestdeéhod of revenue recognitic
therefore, will be recognized as revenue upon aehient of the milestones. For the year ended Deee3sth 2011, the Company recogni
$3.0 million as revenue under collaborative agregmén accordance with the Milestone Method relatedhe achievement of regulat
milestones pursuant to the terms of the Gammagantétrship. There were no milestone payments rézedras revenue under the terms o
Gammagard Partnership for the years ended Dece3ib@010 and 2009.

ViroPharma and Intrexon Partnerships

Effective May 10, 2011, the Company and ViroPhamméered into a collaboration and license agreememder which ViroPharn
obtained a worldwide exclusive license for the o$erHUPH20 enzyme in the development of a subcutasénjectable formulation
ViroPharma’s commercialized product, Cinryze (Cleesse inhibitor [human]) (the “ViroPharma Partigp¥). In addition, the licen:
provides ViroPharma with exclusivity to C1 esteraggbitor and to the hereditary angioedema indacgtalong with three additional orpt
indications. As of December 31, 2011, the Compaasy/rieceived $12 million from ViroPharma, includithg $9 million nonrefundable upfrc
license fee payment and $3 million in clinical deyenent milestone payment. If ViroPharma succebsfdévelops the licensed prod
candidate, the Company could receive additionagstine payments of up to $41 million for the achieent of development and regula
milestones. In addition, so long as the agreememn ieffect, the Company is entitled to receiveammual exclusivity fee of $1.0 millic
commencing on May 10, 2012 and on each anniverdfahe effective date of the agreement thereaftéit a certain development event occ
ViroPharma is solely responsible for the developtmemanufacturing and marketing of any products ltegy from this partnership. Tl
Company is
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entitled to receive payments for research and deweént services and supply of rHUPH20 API if re¢eedy ViroPharma. In addition, 1
Company is entitled to receive additional cash payts potentially totaling $10.0 million for eachoduct for treatment of each of th
additional orphan indications upon achievementesfetopment and regulatory milestones. The Compamyso entitled to receive royalties
future product sales by ViroPharma. ViroPharma tesgninate the agreement prior to expiration for egson on a product-lproduct bas
upon 90 daysprior written notice to the Company. Upon any sterimination, the license granted to ViroPharmadtal or with respect to tl
terminated product, as applicable) will terminate.

Effective June 6, 2011, the Company and Intrexaered into a collaboration and license agreemamguwhich Intrexon obtainec
worldwide exclusive license for the use of rHuPH2@zyme in the development of a subcutaneous ifjkctirmulation of Intrexorg
recombinant human alpha 1-antitrypsin (rHUALAT e(tintrexon Partnership”)in addition, the license provides Intrexon with lestvity for ¢
defined indication (“Exclusive Field")As of December 31, 2011, the Company has recei@enhilion in nonrefundable upfront license
payment from Intrexon. If Intrexon successfully dmps the licensed product candidate and achidéwepreagreed sales target, the Comyg.
could receive additional milestone payments of a$%4 million, including $44 million for the achiement of development and regula
milestones and $10 million for the achievement sfkesbased milestone. In addition, so long as the ageeérs in effect, the Company
entitled to receive an annual exclusivity fee of0million commencing on June 6, 2012 and on eawtivarsary of the effective date of
agreement thereafter until a certain developmeeantwccurs. Intrexon is solely responsible fordegelopment, manufacturing and marke
of any products resulting from this partnershipe T@ompany is entitled to receive payments for mefeand development services and su
of rHUPH20 API if requested by Intrexon. In additidhe Company is entitled to receive additionalhcpayments potentially totaling §
million for each product for use outside the Exnlasrield upon achievement of development and eeguy milestones. The Company is i
entitled to receive royalties on product sales edyalty rate which increases with net sales ofdpat. Intrexon may terminate the agreer
prior to expiration for any reason on a productgogeuct basis upon 90 daywior written notice to the Company. Upon any sterimination
the license granted to Intrexon (in total or wiglspect to the terminated product, as applicablk}eviminate. Intrexors chief executive offici
and chairman of its board of directors is also animer of the Company’s board of directors.

The Company identified the deliverables at the ptioe of the ViroPharma and Intrexon agreementsciviaire the license, research
development services and API supply. The Comparsy determined that the license, research and dawelopservices and API sup
individually represent separate units of accountegause each deliverable has standalone valeeeStimated selling prices for these unii
accounting was determined based on market condijtithe terms of comparable collaborative arrangésntar similar technology in tl
pharmaceutical and biotech industry and entity-$igefactors such as the terms of the Compangtevious collaborative agreements,
Companys pricing practices and pricing objectives andnhgure of the research and development servicee foerformed for the partne
The arrangement consideration was allocated tod#iwerables based on the relative selling pricehod: Based on the results of
Companys analysis, the Company determined that the upfsegient was earned upon the granting of the wadlelwexclusive right to tt
Companys technology to the collaborator in both the ViraRha Partnership and Intrexon Partnership. Howether,amount of allocak
arrangement consideration is limited to amounts #ina fixed or determinable; therefore, the amalldcated to the license was only to
extent of cash received. As a result, the Compaoggnized the $9.0 million upfront license fee rese under the ViroPharma Partnership
the $9.0 million upfront license fee received untlex Intrexon Partnership as revenues under coliéibe agreements upon receipt of
upfront license fees in the year ended Decembe2(®l1.

The Company will recognize the exclusivity feesragenues under collaborative agreements when tregarned. The Company v
recognize reimbursements for research and develapseevices as revenues under
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collaborative agreements as the related servicedelivered. The Company will recognize revenuenfreales of APl as revenues ur
collaborative agreements when such APl has meegliired specifications by the partners and thatedl titte and risk of loss and dame
have passed to the partners. The Company canrditptiee timing of delivery of research and devetgmt services and API as they are a
partners’ requests.

The Company is eligible to receive additional cpalyments upon the achievement by the partnersedfifigd development, regulatc
and saledased milestones. The Company has determined abhtd the development and regulatory milestonesifisstantive; therefore, 1
Company expects to recognize such development agdlatory milestone payments as revenues undeaboshitive agreements ug
achievement in accordance with the Milestone Methndaddition, the Company has determined thatsthlesbased milestone paymen
similar to a royalty payment and is not consideaethilestone payment under the Milestone MethodesEnue recognition; therefore,
Company will recognize the salbased milestone payment as revenue upon achieverhtrg milestone because the Company has no
performance obligations associated with the milestdn September 2011, ViroPharma announced thiation of a Phase 2 clinical study
evaluate the safety, pharmacokinetics and pharnyaemdics of subcutaneous administration of Cinryzecombination with rHUPH20
subjects with hereditary angioedema. As a resaittlie year ended December 31, 2011 the Compamgmeed a $3.0 million milesto
payment from ViroPharma as revenue under collabh@agreements in accordance with the Milestonehbtrelated to the achievemen
this development milestone pursuant to the termhe¥iroPharma Partnership.

4. Inventories, Net
Inventories, net consists of the following:

December 31 December 31

2011 2010
Raw materials $ 201,82: $ 193,42:
Work-in-process 290,64 —
Finished good 74,79 —
$ 567,26: $ 193,42:

5.  Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,

December 31,

2011 2010

Research equipment $ 5,231,76: $ 4,308,65:
Computer and office equipme 1,266,04. 1,215,89.
Leasehold improvemen 1,019,14 998,36¢
7,516,95. 6,522,911

Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (5,745,90) (4,676,01)
$1,771,04 $ 1,846,89

Depreciation and amortization expense was apprdein&1.1 million, $1.5 million and $1.4 millionof the years ended December

2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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6. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31

December 31

2011 2010
Accrued outsourced research and development exp $1,910,27: $3,647,76:
Accrued compensation and payroll ta 3,223,933l 3,045,95!
Other accrued expens 481,36! 1,911,85

$5,615,57 $8,605,56!

7. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue consists of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2011 2010

Collaborative agreements $40,716,80 $58,093,55
Product sale 167,18 —

Total deferred revent 40,883,99 58,093,55

Less current portio 4,129,40 2,917,12!

Deferred revenue, net of current port $36,754,58 $55,176,42

Roche Partnership. In December 2006, the Company and Roche enteredthiet Roche Partnership under which Roche obtaa
worldwide, exclusive license to develop and comiiadime product combinations of rHuUPH20 and up toddditional Roche target compour
Under the terms of the Roche Partnership, Rocha $20.0 million to the Company in December 200@msnitial upfront payment for tl
application of rHUPH20 to three pdefined Roche biologic targets. Through Decembe2811, Roche has paid an aggregate of $20.0 n
in connection with Roche’ election of two additional exclusive targets amhual license maintenance fees for the right sigdate th
remaining targets as exclusive targets. In 201@hB@aid the annual license maintenance fees gntlorde of the remaining eight target sl
In 2011, Roche did not pay the annual exclusivigintenance fee for any of the remaining additidaedet slots. As a result, Roche curre
retains the option to develop and commercializeRHR0 with three additional targets, provided thatlRe continues to pay annual lice
maintenance fees to the Company.

Due to the Compang’ continuing involvement obligations (for exampepport activities associated with rHUPH20 enzymejenue
from the upfront payment, exclusive designatiorsfard annual license maintenance fees were defenckdre being recognized over the
of the Roche Partnership. The Company recognizeentee from the upfront payment, exclusive desigmatiees and annual licet
maintenance fees under the Roche Partnership iarttweints of approximately $2.0 million, $2.0 miliand $1.9 million for the years ent
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyeret revenue relating to the upfront payment, iesteé designation fees and ant
license maintenance fees under the Roche Partpessisi $31.7 million and $32.9 million as of Decem®g, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Gammagard Partnership. In September 2007, the Company and Baxter exhtieto the Gammagard Partnership, under which e
obtained a worldwide, exclusive license to develod commercialize product combinations of rHUPH20 @WAMMAGARD LIQUID. Undet
the terms of the Gammagard Partnership, Baxter th@idCompany a nonrefundable upfront payment of(hdllion. Due to the Company’
continuing involvement obligations (for exampleppart activities associated with rHUPH20 enzymieg, $10.0 million upfront payment w
deferred and is being recognized over the termhefGammagard Partnership. The Company recognizeshue from the upfront paym
under the Gammagard Partnership in the amountpprbaimately $483,000, $521,000 and $606,000 ferythars ended December 31, 2
2010 and 2009,
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respectively. Deferred revenue relating to the aifrpayment under the Gammagard Partnership was illion and $8.1 million as
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Hylenex Partnership. In February 2007, the Company and Baxter anttmaetain existing agreements fidylenexrecombinant ar
entered into the Hylenex Partnership for kits aodnulations with rHUPH20. Under the terms of theldigx Partnership, Baxter paid
Company a nonrefundable upfront payment of $10J0ami In addition, Baxter would make payments e tCompany based on sales of
products covered under the Hylenex PartnershiptéBdpad prepaid nonrefundable prodbesed payments totaling $10.0 million in connec
with the execution of the Hylenex Partnership. Daethe Company continuing involvement obligations (for exampdeipport activitie
associated with rHUPH20 enzyme), the $10.0 millipfront payment was initially deferred and was beiacognized over the term of
Hylenex Partnership. The prepaid prodbhased payments were also deferred and were betugnmized as product sales revenues a
Company earned such revenues from the salelylehexrecombinant by Baxter.

Effective January 7, 2011, the Company and Baxiguaily agreed to terminate the Hylenex Partnersimigh the associated agreeme
The termination of these agreements does not aftfecbther relationships between the parties, dioty the application of the Compary’
Enhanze technology to Baxter's GAMMAGARD LIQUID.

On July 18, 2011, the Company and Baxter enterexdan agreement (the “Transition Agreemersgjting forth certain rights, data ¢
assets to be transferred by Baxter to the Comparipgia transition period. Effective July 18, 20tie Company had no future performe
obligations to Baxter in connection with the Hylgneartnership. Therefore, the Company recognizedutiamortized deferred revenue
approximately $9.3 million relating to the prepaidductbased payments and the unamortized deferred revd#rapproximately $7.8 millic
relating to deferred upfront payment from the HgberPartnership as revenues under collaborativeeawgnts for the year ended Decembe
2011. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and, 20® Company recognized revenues under the HylPagtnership from the upfrc
payment in the amounts of approximately $503,000 $686,000, respectively, and from the produem$ed payments in the amount:
approximately $332,000 and $204,000, respectiv@ferred revenues relating to the upfront paymeut productbased payments under
Hylenex Partnership were $7.8 million and $9.3 inil] respectively, at December 31, 2010. There wereleferred revenues relating to
Hylenex Partnership at December 31, 2011.

As a result of the termination of the Hylenex Parship, at December 31, 2010 the Company had ractesized deferred revenue
approximately $991,000 as a reserve for producrmstfor HYLENEX API previously delivered to Baxtirat could be returned @eliverec
Products”). Pursuant to the terms of the Transifigneement, Baxter no longer had the right to retheHylenexrecombinant API previous
delivered to Baxter. Accordingly, the Company reelterized the reserve for product returns for Bedivered Products of approximat
$991,000 to current deferred revenue and recogrsided deferred revenue as product sales reventlefgrear ended December 31, 2011.

8.  Stockholders Equity

During 2011, the Company issued an aggregate db3%a0 shares of common stock in connection wighetkercises of 3,137,056 sh:
of stock options at a weighted average exercissepf $1.71 per share for cash in the aggregateuaimad approximately $4.7 million.
addition, the Company issued 347,883 shares of eaomstock in connection with the grants of restdcstock awards at zero purchase
and 15,000 shares of common stock in connectiom thé exercise of restricted stock units at zerclhmse price.
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In September 2010, the Company issued 8.3 milllmares of common stock in a public offering at aljgubffering price of $7.50 p
share, generating approximately $60.0 million it peceeds. In connection with this financing, ®empany granted to an underwritel
option to purchase 1,245,000 shares of common stbakprice of $7.25 per share. The option wascesadle in the event that the underw
sold more than 8.3 million shares of common stdtle option expired unexercised on October 8, 2010.

During 2010, the Company issued an aggregate o0f09399%hares of common stock in connection withekercises of stock optio
(479,093 shares at a weighted average exercise pfi$3.88 per share) and restricted stock awak@8,000 shares at an exercise pric
$0.001 per share) for cash in the aggregate anodagproximately $1.9 million.

In June 2009, the Company issued 6,150,000 shdresnomon stock in a public offering at a price .50 per share, generat
approximately $38.2 million in net proceeds.

During 2009, the Company issued an aggregate @B3192 shares of common stock in connection withetkercises of stock purch
warrants (3,140,780 shares at a weighted averageisa price of $2.05 per share), stock option3 322 shares at a weighted average ex¢
price of $1.42 per share) and restricted stock dsvék20,000 shares at an exercise price of $0.80%hare) for cash in the aggregate amot
approximately $7.2 million.

9. Equity Incentive Plans

The Company has two equity incentive plans (therféut Plans”)under which the Company currently grants stockao®j restricte
stock awards and restricted stock units: the 20titkSPlan and the 2008 Outside Directors’ StocknPla May 2011, the Compary’
stockholders approved the Compan011 Stock Plan, which provides for the grantihgip to a total of 6,000,000 shares of commonk
(subject to certain limitations as described in #8841 Stock Plan) to selected employees, consaltand noremployee members of t
Companys Board of Directors ("Outside Directors") as stagkions, stock appreciation rights, restrictectlstawards, restricted stock
awards and performance awards. The 2011 StockrBfdaced the Company’s prior stock plans, congjstithe Company 2008 Stock Pla
2006 Stock Plan and 2004 Stock Plan (“Prior Placgllectively with the Current Plans, the “PlansThe Prior Plans were terminated such
no additional awards could be granted under ther Pians, but the terms of the Prior Plans renraieffiect with respect to outstanding awi
until they are exercised, settled or canceled. Plans were approved by the stockholders. Awardssatgect to terms and conditic
established by the Compensation Committee of thepg@amy’s Board of Directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyngeamted sharbased awards under the 2011 Stock Plan, the 2@a& 8tan an
the 2008 Outside DirectorStock Plan. At December 31, 2011, the Company haalygregate of approximately 21,457,644 sharesmihtor
stock reserved for issuance. Of those shares, §84 Bhares were subject to outstanding awards4 &82,017 shares were available for fu
grants of sharbased awards. At the present time, managementdstenssue new common shares upon the exercisteak options, issuan
of restricted stock awards and settlement of iestlistock units.

Stock Options. Options granted under each of the Plans mug ha exercise price equal to at least 100% ofdinenarket value of tt
Companys common stock on the date of grant. The optiofisgenerally have a maximum contractual term of years and vest at the rate
onefourth of the shares on the first anniversary efdate of grant and 1/48 of the shares monthlyetfer. Certain option awards provide
accelerated vesting if there is a change in coi@®defined in the Plans).
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A summary of the Company’s stock option award agti@s of and for the years ended December 31,,28010 and 2009 is as follows:

Weighted
Shares Average Exercist Weighted Aggregate
Underlying Average Remaining Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share Contractual Term (yrs) Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2009 7,254,78! $ 3.0z
Granted 1,519,40! $ 6.41
Exercisec (717,32) $ 1.4z
Cancelled/forfeitec (252,60 $ 6.11
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,804,261 $ 3.7¢
Granted 1,332,71. $ 5.94
Exercisec (479,09) $ 3.8¢
Cancelled/forfeitec (682,52) $ 6.2¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,975,36! $ 3.87
Granted 1,624,76! $ 7.7¢
Exercisec (3,137,05) $ 1.71
Cancelled/forfeitec (593,29) $ 6.72
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,869,78 $ 5.82 6.5 $21.7 millior
Vested and expected to vest at December 31,

2011 5,538,47. $ 5.72 6.4 $21.1 millior
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 3,372,55; $ 4.7¢ 5.1 $16.1 millior

The weighted average graghéte fair values of options granted during the yearded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $éi
share, $3.69 per share and $3.72 per share, reghectAs of December 31, 2011, approximately $8ilion of total unrecognize
compensation costs related to n@sted stock option awards was expected to be néedjover a weighted average period of approxiiy
2.8 years. The intrinsic value of options exercidadng the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012@d@ was approximately $16.6 milli
$1.8 million and $3.9 million, respectively. Cagiteived from stock option exercises for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and :
was approximately $4.7 million, $1.9 million and.@illion, respectively.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertormooppricing model (“BlackSchole
model”) that uses the assumptions noted in thevatig table. Expected volatility is based on histalr volatility of the Company commo
stock. However, due to insufficient data of the @amy’s common stock prior to 2010, expected volatildy the year ended December
2009 was based on the Compangbmmon stock and its peer group. The expectad eéroptions granted is based on analyses of lisi
employee termination rates and option exercises.ridkfree interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasutg yor a period consistent with 1
expected term of the option in effect at the tiniehe grant. The dividend yield assumption is basedhe expectation of no future divide
payments by the Company. Assumptions used in thekBbcholes model were as follows:
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Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
64.(-65.1% 65.6-70.€% 65.(%
5.8 5.7 5.5
1.14-2.55% 1.3¢-2.8(% 1.65-2.72%
0% 0% 0%

Restricted Stock Awards Restricted stock awards are grants that entitldtheer to acquire shares of the Compargommon stock
zero or a fixed price, which is typically nomin@he shares covered by a restricted stock awardotdrensold, pledged, or otherwise dispc
of until the award vests and any unvested shargsheaeacquired by the Company for the originalchase price following the awardee’
termination of service. Annual grants of restricitdck awards under the Outside Direct@®ck Plans typically vest in full the first daye
awardee may trade the Company’s stock in compliarittethe Companys insider trading policy following the date immeteig preceding tr
first annual meeting of stockholders following tirant date.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyngeanted certain employees 233,508 restrictecksto@rds at no purchase pr
with a grantdate fair value of $6.67 per share, under the Ztbtk Plan. These restricted stock awards are cuigigoercentage vesting ba
upon achievement of certain corporate goals anénf@oyee’s continuing services through May 2012.

The following table summarizes the Companséstricted stock award activity during the yesarded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Unvested at January 1, 2009
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at December 31, 2C
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at December 31, 2C
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at December 31, 2C

Weighted Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
192,50( $ 4.94
120,00( $ 5.81
(192,500 $ 4.92
— $ —
120,00( $ 5.81
120,00( $ 7.67
(120,000 $ 5.81
— $ —
120,00( $ 7.67
353,50t $ 6.51
(120,000 $ 7.67
(5,62%) $ 6.67
347,88 $ 6.51

The fair value of the restricted stock awards isellbon the market value of the Compangdmmon stock on the date of grant. The
grantdate fair value of restricted stock awards vesiatihg the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 @d@ ®as approximately $920,0
$697,000 and $951,000, respectively. The Compampgrazed approximately $1.7 million, $844,000 an87&000 of sharbase
compensation expense related to the restricted stwards for the years ended December 31, 2011 20d 2009. As of December 31, 2(
total unrecognized compensation cost related tcested shares was approximately $777,000, whichkpeated to be recognized ove
weighted-average period of approximately 4 months.
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Restricted Stock Units A restricted stock unit is a promise by the @amy to issue a share of Company common stock upsting o
the unit. During the year ended December 31, 2@d,Company granted 163,000 shares of restrictmtk sinits, at no purchase price
certain employees under the 2011 Stock Plan. 188sb@res of these restricted stock units are sulbgepercentage vesting based u
achievement of certain corporate goals and the @mapk’continuing services through May 2012. No restrictxtk units were granted dur
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

The following table summarizes the Company'’s rettd stock unit activity during the year ended Delger 31, 2011

Number of Weighted Weighted Aggregate
Average Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Purchase Price Contractual Term (yrs) Value
Unvested at January 1, 2011 — $ —
Granted 163,00( $ —
Exercisec (15,000 $ —
Forfeited —
Unvested at December 31, 2C 148,00( $ — 0.37 $1.4 million
Vested and expected to vest at
December 31, 201 142,34¢ $ — 0.37 $1.4 million
Exercisable at December 31, 2( — $ — = $ =

The estimated fair value of the restricted stocksuwas based on the market value of the Compaoginmon stock on the date of gr
The weighted average graaéte fair value of restricted stock units grantedrdy the year ended December 31, 2011 was $6.7%haee. Th
total grantdate fair value of restricted stock units vestedrduthe year ended December 31, 2011 was approeiyn®107,000. The Compa
recognized approximately $663,000 of shaased compensation expense related to the redtstiek units for the year ended Decembe
2011. As of December 31, 2011, total unrecognizstimated unamortized compensation cost relatedotovasted restricted stock ur
outstanding as of that date was approximately $8&5, with a weighted average amortization periodpgroximately 4 months.

10. Commitments and Contingencie
Operating Leases

The Companys administrative offices and research facilities lxcated in San Diego, California. The Companygdsaan aggregate
approximately 58,000 square feet of office andassespace.

In July 2007, the Company entered into a leaseeageat (the “Original Lease”) with BC Sorrento, LIBC Sorrento”)for the facilitie:
located at 11388 Sorrento Valley Road, San Diegdif@@nia (11388 Property”jor office and research space commencing in Sepee2@0!
through January 2013. Under the terms of the Calgirease, the initial monthly rent payment was agpnately $37,000 net of costs ¢
property taxes associated with the operation anthter@ance of the leased facilities, commencing @pt&mber 2008 and increasec
approximately $73,000 starting in March 2009. Théer, the annual base rent was subject to apprirign 4% annual increases each
throughout the term of the Original Lease. In ddditthe Company received a certain tenant imprerenallowance and free rent under
terms of the Original Lease.
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Effective September 2010, BMR-11388 Sorrento Vakead LP (“BMR-11388"gcquired the 11388 Property and became the nevolahal
the 11388 Property.

In June 2011, the Company entered into an amendeédestated lease (the “11388 Lease”) with BME388 for the 11388 Prope
commencing from June 2011 through January 2018.1TB88 Lease superseded the Original Lease. Uhdetetms of the 11388 Lease,
initial monthly rent payment is approximately $38)0net of costs and property taxes associated thé&hoperation and maintenance of
leased facilities, commencing in December 2011inorkasing to approximately $65,000 starting inudam 2013. Thereafter, the annual t
rent is subject to approximately 2.5% annual insesaeach year throughout the term of the 11388eléasaddition, the Company receive
cash incentive of approximately $98,000, a tenamprovement allowance of $300,000 and free and estluent totaling approximate
$744,000. Combined with the unamortized deferredtl vader the Original Lease, unamortized defereed associated with the 11388 Leas
$854,000 and $545,000 was included in deferredasmf December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In July 2007, the Company entered into a sublegseement (the “11404 Sublease”) with Avanir Phamuagicals, Inc. (“Avanir”)for
Avanir's excess leased facilities located at 11804rento Valley Road, San Diego, California foric#fand research space (“11404 Propérty”
for a monthly rent payment of approximately $54,006t of costs and property taxes associated wihoperation and maintenance of
subleased facilities. The 11404 Sublease expiremfuary 2013. The annual base rent is subjegbpcogimately 4% annual increases ¢
year throughout the terms of the 11404 Subleasedttition, the Company received free rent totalapproximately $492,000, of whi
approximately $149,000 and $266,000 was includetkferred rent as of December 31, 2011 and 20&peotively.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a sublesgeement (the “11408 Sublease/i}h Avanir for office and research space locatt
11408 Sorrento Valley Road, San Diego, Califorritel408 Property”)which expires in January 2013. The monthly rentnpayts, whic
commenced in January 2010, were approximately $21abd are subject to an annual increase of appedgly 3%. Under terms of the 11«
Sublease, the Company received a tenant improveailentance of $75,000, of which approximately $2®,Gnd $49,000 was includec
deferred rent at December 31, 2011 and 2010, régpkyc

In June 2011, the Company entered into a leaseagnat (the “11404/11408 Lease”) with BMR-SorrentazB LLC (“BMR-Sorrentoy
for the 11404 Property and 11408 Property commenicidanuary 2013 through January 2018. Pursughetterms of the 11404/11408 Lei
the initial monthly rent payment is approximatef1$00 net of costs and property taxes associattidtie operation and maintenance of
leased facilities, commencing in January 2013 andubject to approximately 2.5% annual increaseb gaar throughout the term of
11404/11408 Lease.

The Company pays a pro rata share of operating,ciosturance costs, utilities and real propertysaixcurred by the landlords for
subleased facilities.

Additionally, the Company leases certain office ipqment under operating leases. Total rent experese approximately $1.5 millio
$1.5 million and $1.4 million for the years endedd@ember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Approximate annual future minimum operating leaagnpents as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Operating

Year: Leases
2012 $ 1,470,001
2013 1,654,001
2014 1,677,001
2015 1,715,001
2016 1,758,001
Thereaftel 1,870,001
Total minimum lease paymer $10,144,00

Other Commitments

Under the terms of the Roche Partnership, the Cognpaas obligated to scale up the production of rHR® and to identify a seco
source manufacturer that would help meet anticipateduction obligations arising from the partngsiTo that end, during 2008,
Company entered into a Technology Transfer Agre¢maed a Clinical Supply Agreement with a second PHR0 manufacturer, Co
Pharmica LLC (“Cook”).Cook manufactures certain batches of the API thitow used in clinical trials of certain produardidates. Coc
has the capacity to produce the quantities the @Gompvas required to deliver under the terms of Rleehe Partnership. The technol
transfer was completed in 2008. In 2009, multipdééches of rHuUPH20 were produced to support plafiaede clinical studies. In 2010, {
Company initiated process validation activitiesupport of potential future commercialization. Tgrecess validation was completed in 2011.

In March 2010, the Company entered into a CommieRigply Agreement with Cook (the “Cook Commerc&lpply Agreemeny’
Under the terms of the Cook Commercial Supply Agreet, Cook will manufacture certain batches of At that will be used for potent
commercial supply of certain product candidatesdésrthe terms of the Cook Commercial Supply Agregmine Company is committed
certain minimum annual purchases of API equal to fyuarters of forecasted supply. At December 81,12the Company has no minim
purchase obligation in connection with the Cook @Guercial Supply Agreement.

In March 2010, the Company amended its Commercipp® Agreement (the “March 2010 Avid Amendment/ith Avid Bioservices
Inc. ("Avid") which was originally entered into iRebruary 2005 and amended in December 2006. Uhdetetms of the March 2010 A
Amendment, the Company is committed to certain mimh annual purchases of API equal to three quaotefsrecasted supply. In additic
Avid has the right to manufacture and supply aaterpercentage of the API that will be usedHiylenexrecombinant. At December 31, 20
the Company has a minimum purchase obligation pfagmately $2.7 million.

In March 2010, the Company entered into a secondrercial Supply Agreement with Avid (theAvid Commercial Suppl
Agreement”).Under the terms of the Avid Commercial Supply Agneat, the Company is committed to certain minimumuel purchases
API equal to three quarters of forecasted supplyaddition, Avid has the right to manufacture angpdy a certain percentage of the API
will be used in certain product candidates. At Deloer 31, 2011, the Company has no minimum purchbigation in connection with tr
agreement.

In June 2011, the Company entered into a commeraalufacturing and supply agreement with Baxtedenrwhich Baxter will fill an
finish Hylenexrecombinant for the Company. The initial term of tigreement with Baxter extends until December 201Ris renewable f
one additional year upon mutual agreement. At Déegr81, 2011, the Company has a minimum purchabgation of approximately $1
million.
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In June 2011, we entered into a services agreewiémtanother third party manufacturer for the tealogy transfer and manufacture
Hylenexrecombinant. At December 31, 2011, the Companyibasinimum purchase obligation in connection witls agreement.

Legal Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may be involvedigpdtes, including litigation, relating to claimgsang out of operations in the norr
course of its business. Any of these claims coulgjext the Company to costly legal expenses andewhie Company generally believes
the Company has adequate insurance to cover méeyedit types of liabilities, its insurance carsenay deny coverage or its policy lin
may be inadequate to fully satisfy any damage asvardsettlements. If this were to happen, the payroéany such awards could hav
material adverse effect on the Compangonsolidated results of operations and finamaition. Additionally, any such claims, whethema
successful, could damage the Compamngputation and business. The Company currentiyptisa party to any legal proceedings, the ad'

outcome of which, in managementpinion, individually or in the aggregate, woblave a material adverse effect on its consolidedsdlts ¢
operations or financial position.

In May 2010, the Company delivered a notice of bhetm Baxter due to Baxter’s failure to providglenexrecombinant in accordar
with the terms of the Hylenex Partnership. Baxtad lgontested the claims made in our initial notitéreach and asserted their own brt

claims against the Company. Pursuant to the terffniseoTransition Agreement, signed on July 18, 2(A4xters breach claims against
Company were discharged.

11. Income Taxes

Significant components of the Compasiylet deferred tax assets at December 31, 2012GI@are shown below. A valuation allowa
of $107.5 million and $97.6 million has been estied to offset the net deferred tax assets assoél@ber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivel
realization of such assets is uncertain.

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 69,912,00 $ 57,035,00
Deferred revenu 15,338,00 22,248,00
Research and development cre 19,270,00 15,540,00
Share-based compensatic 2,122,00! 1,449,001
Depreciatior 76,00( 533,00(
Other, ne 771,00( 749,00(
Total deferred tax asse 107,489,00 97,554,00
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (107,489,00) (97,554,00)
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —
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The provision for income taxes on earnings sukbedhcome taxes differs from the statutory fedenabme tax rate at December
2011, 2010 and 2009, due to the following:

2011 2010 2009
Federal income tax rate of 34 $(6,722,00) $(18,102,00) $(19,843,00)
State income tax, net of federal ben (1,153,001 (3,106,001) (3,405,00i)
Research and development cre: (3,731,001 (3,379,000 (4,464,000
Tax effect on no-deductible expenses and ot 1,671,001 2,118,001 2,186,001
Increase in valuation allowan 9,935,00! 22,469,00 25,526,00
Benefit due to refundable R&D cre« — — —

$ = $ = $ =

At December 31, 2011, the Company had federal alifiothia tax net operating loss carryforwards ppaximately $200.3 million at
$207.1 million, respectively. Included in these amis are federal and California net operating lesst approximately $25.8 millic
attributable to stock option deductions of whiclke tiax benefit will be credited to equity when reatl. The federal and California tax |
carryforwards will begin to expire in 2018 and 20d&spectively, unless previously utilized.

At December 31, 2011, the Company also had federdlICalifornia research and development tax craityforwards of approximate
$14.3 million and $7.5 million, respectively. Thederal research and development tax credits wiirb& expire in 2024 unless previoL
utilized. The California research and developmantdredits will carryforward indefinitely until dized.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382anheal use of the net operating loss carryforwartsresearch and development
credits could be limited by any greater than 50%nexship change during any thrgear testing period. As a result of any such owhip
change, portions of the Compasayiet operating loss carryforwards and researchdamdlopment tax credits are subject to annuatditioins
The Company recently completed an updated Sec8@nghalysis regarding the limitation of the net rapiag losses and research
development credits as of December 31, 2011. Baped the analysis, the Company determined that mkige changes occurred in pi
years. However, the annual limitations on net ojiggaloss and research and development tax crediyforwards will not have a mater
impact on the future utilization of such carryfords.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Compsnyirecognized income tax benefits and uncertairptesitions were not material ¢
would not, if recognized, affect the effective tate. Interest and/or penalties related to unaeitaiome tax positions are recognized by
Company as a component of income tax expensehEordars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the &gnaid not recognize any inter
or penalties.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S. emdarious state jurisdictions. The Companyax years for 1998 and forward
subject to examination by the U.S. and Califormia &uthorities due to the carryforward of unutitizeet operating losses and researct
development credits.

12. Employee Savings Plai

The Company has an employee savings plan pursaa8edttion 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. pla allows participatir
employees to deposit into tax deferred investmendants up to 90% of their salary,
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subject to annual limits. The Company is not regglito make matching contributions under the plaowéler, the Company voluntar
contributed to the plan approximately $355,000,3%@80 and $374,000 in the years ended Decemb&031, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

13. Restructuring Expense

In October 2010, the Company completed a corpaoeaigganization to focus its resources on advanitsngore proprietary programs ¢
supporting strategic alliances with Roche and Baxthis reorganization resulted in a reductionhia workforce of approximately 25 perc
primarily in the discovery research and preclinaagdas.

The Company recorded approximately $1.3 millios@ferance pay and benefits expenses in conneciilorihe reorganization, of whi
$1.2 million and $76,000 was included in researuth development expense and selling, general anéthadrative expense, respectively, in
consolidated statement of operations for the yedee December 31, 2010. No other restructuringgesawere incurred. The restructu
liability was approximately $117,000 and includedcurrent accrued expenses as of December 31, ZBE0balance was paid in full as
December 31, 2011. The following table summarihesréstructuring accrual activities:

Employee
severance
and benefits

Balance, January 1, 2010 $ —
Accruals during the ye: 1,321,57
Cash payment (1,204,90)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 116,67
Accruals during the ye —
Cash payment (116,67)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ —

14. Related Party Transactions

Effective June 6, 2011, the Company and Intrexorered into the Intrexon Partnership, under whictielkon obtained a worldwit
exclusive license for the use of rHUPH20 enzymiéndevelopment of a subcutaneous injectable fatioul of Intrexons recombinant humi
alpha 1-antitrypsin (rHUAL1AT). In addition, the digse provides Intrexon with exclusivity for ExchesiField. Intrexors chief executive offic
and chairman of its board of directors, Randalitk,Ks also a member of the Compasiyoard of directors. The collaborative arrangemetti
Intrexon was negotiated at arm-length and revieaed approved by the Company’s Board of Directoradgnordance with the Compasy’
related party transaction policy. Under the terinthe Intrexon Partnership, Intrexon paid a normeable upfront license fee of $9.0 million
addition, so long as the agreement is in effea, @ompany is entitled to receive an annual excitysiee of $1.0 million commencing
June 6, 2012 and on each anniversary of the efeedtite of the agreement thereafter until a cedairelopment event occurs. Intrexon is st
responsible for the development, manufacturing evadketing of any products resulting from this parthip. The Company is entitled
receive payments for research and developmentcesnand supply of rHUPH20 API if requested by kdre In addition, the Company
entitled to receive additional cash payments patytotaling $44.0 million for each product foselin the Exclusive Field and $10 million
each product for use outside Exclusive Field upcimexvement of development and regulatory milestoiiée Company is also entitled
receive royalties on product sales at a royaltg mahich increases with net sales of product andsh ayment of $10.0 million up
achievement of a
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specified sales volume of product sales by Intrexottexon may terminate the agreement prior tarexjn for any reason on a product-by-
product basis upon 90 daygfior written notice to the Company. Upon any stetmination, the license granted to Intrexon (itat@r with
respect to the terminated product, as applicabik}evminate. For the year ended December 31, 2616l Company recognized $9.0 millior
revenue under collaborative agreements under thexbm Partnership.

Connie L. Matsui, a director of the Company, andhesband had a controlling ownership interest taedefore a financial interest) in
entity that held a minority ownership position i€ BBorrento, an entity that leased the 11388 Prpperthe Company until September 2(
The transaction with BC Sorrento was reviewed git@ved by the Company’s Board of Directors in adaace with the Compargrelate:
party transaction policy. Effective September 20, Sorrento sold the 11388 Property to an unrélptety. As such, the Company no lor
has any business transactions with BC Sorrentatafie September 2010. The Company paid BC Sorrepgzoximately zero, $982,000 ¢
$1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2@010 and 2009, respectively.

15. Subsequent Event:

On February 15, 2012, the Company completed anrumiten public offering and issued 7,820,000 skas&common stock, includil
1,020,000 shares sold pursuant to the full exergisgn overallotment option granted to the underwriter. Alltbe shares were offered ¢
public offering price of $10.61 per share, gene@épproximately $81.8 million in proceeds aftedaging the underwriting discounts
commissions but before any deductions for experiRaadal J. Kirk, a member of the Companyoard of directors, through his affiliai
purchased 1,360,000 shares of common stock irffésng at the public offering price of $10.61 fatotal of approximately $14.4 million.

F-32



Table of Contents

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

16. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of the Compasyinaudited quarterly statement of operations dataved from unaudited consolida
financial statements included in the Company’s @ubr Reports on Form 10-Q:

Quarter Ended

2011 (Unaudited): March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Total revenues (a) $ 7,543,89. $ 23,188,94 $ 22,942,42 $ 2,411,161
Total operating expens $ 17,203,48 $ 20,093,01 $ 17,789,59 $ 20,839,28
Net income (loss $ (9,635,71) $ 3,116,28: $ 5,165,19 $(18,415,61)
Net income (loss) per share, basic and dil $ 010 % 0.0 $ 0.0t $ (0.1¢)
Shares used in computing net income (loss) pees
Basic 100,927,40 102,671,41 103,223,35 103,406,40
Diluted 100,927,40 104,393,83 105,009,18 103,406,40
Quarter Ended
2010 (Unaudited): March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31

Total revenues
Total operating expens

$ 3,441,73 $ 3,213,35 $ 3,396,50 $ 3,572,52.
$ 15,229,87 $ 15,365,43 $ 15,830,14 $ 21,456,29

Net loss $(11,787,47)  $(12,150,92)  $(12,409,57) $(16,893,67)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ 0.1 % 0.1 % 0.1 % (0.17)
Shares used in computing net loss per share, ad

diluted 91,610,83 91,766,79 93,626,89 100,337,07

(@) Revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2011 iedlcelvenue from collaborative agreements totali®yGbmillion related to the upfrc
payments received from the ViroPharma and IntréRarinerships

Revenues for the quarter ended September 30, 2@ldded revenue from collaborative agreementsitgfeb17.9 million related
recognition of unamortized deferred prepaid prochaged payments and unamortized deferred upfronin@aty under the Hylen
Partnership with Baxter as a result of the Traosith\greement signed in July 2011.
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-42@hd 333-179444) and Form S-8
(Nos. 333-119969, 333-133829, 333-152914 and 33®13) of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and in thatezl Prospectuses of our reports
dated March 9, 2012, with respect to the consdad fihancial statements of Halozyme Therapeutius, nd the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting of Halozyme Theegafics, Inc., included in this Annual Report (FatfrK) for the year ended December 31,
2011.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
San Diego, California
March 9, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Gregory I. Frost, Ph.D., Chief Executive OffiedrHalozyme Therapeutics, Inc. certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opgerst and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andffie periods presented in this rep

The Registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and ha\

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbd report our conclusion abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Reggig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) ilas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Redisi’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

The Registrant’s other certifying officers anftblve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazammittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which au
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 2012 /s/ Gregory |. Frost, Ph.[

Gregory I. Frost, Ph.C
President and Chief Executive Offic



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Kurt A. Gustafson, Chief Financial Officer of ldayme Therapeutics, Inc. certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opgerst and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andffie periods presented in this rep

The Registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and ha\

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbd report our conclusion abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Reggig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) ilas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Redisi’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

The Registrant’s other certifying officers anftblve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazammittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which au
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 2012 /s/ Kurt A. Gustafsol

Kurt A. Gustafsor
Vice President, Chief Financial Offic



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Halozymeelidpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tiee fiscal year ended December 31,
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @asion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Gmygo Frost, M.D., Chief Executive
Officer of the Registrant, certify, pursuant tol&.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act o1@3% U.S.C. 78m); an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Registrant

Dated: March 9, 2012 /s/ Gregory |. Frost, Ph.[
Gregory I. Frost, Ph.C
President and Chief Executive Offic

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tiee fiscal year ended December 31,
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @asion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, KArtGustafson, Chief Financial Officer of
the Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. iBact350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 os#ibanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the
best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of1@% U.S.C. 78m); an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
the Registrant

Dated: March 9, 201 /sl Kurt A. Gustafsol
Kurt A. Gustafsor
Vice President, Chief Financial Offic




